

## SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

Agenda Item# 12.1a

Meeting Date: February 17, 2022

Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements Approval of Bid Awards Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment Change Notices Notices of Completion



Information Item Only Approval on Consent Agenda Conference (for discussion only) Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: \_\_\_\_\_) Conference/Action Action Public Hearing

**Division**: Business Services

**Recommendation:** Recommend approval of items submitted.

#### Background/Rationale:

#### Financial Considerations: See attached.

**LCAP Goal(s)**: College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence

#### **Documents Attached:**

- 1. Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements
- 2. Expenditure and Other Agreements

Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A Submitted by: Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer Jessica Sulli, Contract Specialist Approved by: Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent

## **GRANTS, ENTITLEMENTS AND OTHER INCOME AGREEMENTS – REVENUE**

Contractor	<u>New Grant</u>	<u>Amount</u>
SPECIAL EDUCATION		
California Department of Education A22-00057	<ul> <li>☐ Yes</li> <li>⊠ No, received grant in 2020/21</li> </ul>	\$139,420 No Match
	t to be used for Early Education Programs run by dically fragile infants and toddlers with disabiliti	

## **EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS**

#### **Restricted Funds**

families.

Contractor	Description	<u>Amount</u>		
FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES				
See Below New Contract: □ Yes ⊠ No	Ratification is requested for 5 agreements for architectural services. The below agreements were previously approved by the Board on January 13, 2022. However, the agreements needed to be updated to add further clarification on scope of work and an update to insurance requirements per legal counsel. The contract amounts have not changed.			
	<u>HMC Architects</u> John F. Kennedy High School Roof & C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project	\$423,000 Measure Q Funds		
	<u>Lionakis</u> Luther Burbank High School Pool Replacement and Locker Room Modernization Project	\$368,000 Measure Q Funds		
	Kit Carson International Academy Gym HVAC Replacement Project	\$294,500 COVID Relief Funds		
	Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Replacement Project	\$144,000 COVID Relief Funds		
	Rainforth Grau Architects Shade Structures at 7 Sites (Group 1) Project at Alice Birney, John Bidwell, John Sloat, Joseph Bonnheim, Leataata Floyd, Sequoia and Tahoe	\$191,100 COVID Relief Funds		
Kitchell/CEM, Inc. SA22-00352	2/17/22 – 8/31/22: Construction management services to complete commissioning of food service equipment at the new Central Kitchen to ensure all equipment is	\$169,060 Measure R Funds		
New Contract: ⊠ Yes □ No	fully functional prior to the 2022/23 school year.			

#### **SPECIAL EDUCATION**

CompuClaim SA22-00014	7/1/21 – 6/30/22: Ratification is requested for amendment to agreement with CompuClaim for Medi- Cal Billing Option software, which is used for submitting	Original Amount: \$102,500
New Contract:	Medi-Cal claims, and consulting services. A \$30,000 increase is required to cover additional consulting	Increase: \$30,000
⊠ No	services from January – June, 2022, due to a vacancy in the Medi-Cal Billing Specialist position. Consultant will assist District in submitting Medi-Cal claims in order to maximize the amount of Medi-Cal reimbursements the District receives.	New Total: \$132,500 Medi-Cal Billing Option Funds

#### **TECHNOLOGY SERVICES**

KS Telecom, Inc. RFP 22-03	7/1/22 – Completion of Services: The District issued RFP 22-03 for E-Rate Year 25 for Cabling Infrastructure at 16 sites: Albert Einstein, Cal, Caroline	\$357,170 E-Rate Funds
New Contract: ⊠ Yes □ No	Wenzel, Cesar Chavez, Edward Kemble, Ethel I. Baker, Father Keith B. Kenny, Fern Bacon, Genevieve Didion, James Marshall, John Still, Martin Luther King Jr., Matsuyama, Rosa Parks, Sam Brannan and Will C. Wood in its efforts to provide data network access to all learning spaces on campuses. The selection advisory committee determined that KS Telecom offered the best value to the District between the two proposals received. 85% of the cost will be paid by the E-Rate program and the District is responsible for the remaining 15%.	\$63,030 Measure Q Funds Total: \$420,200
AMS.net RFP 22-04 New Contract: ⊠ Yes □ No	7/1/22 – Completion of Services: The District issued RFP 22-04, Category Two Equipment for E-Rate Year 25 for networking equipment including outdoor wireless access points and related equipment, software, and service at the same 16 sites above which are also receiving cabling infrastructure, in an effort to increase network coverage and bandwidth to all learning spaces on the campuses. The selection advisory committee determined that AMS.net offered the best value to the District between the three proposals received. 85% of the cost will be paid by the E-Rate program and the District is responsible for the remaining 15%.	\$43,646 E-Rate Funds \$7,702 General Fund Total: \$51,348

## **Grant Award Notification**

	NAME AND ADDRE				CDEC	RANT NUM	SER
Sacramento City Unified School District PO Box 246870 Sacramento, CA 95824-6870		FY	PCA	Vendo Numbo	SUTTIX		
		21	2376				
Attention Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent				STANDARDIZED ACCOUNT CODE STRUCTURE			
Program Of	ffice				ource	Revenue	
	City Unified SELPA	3412		Co	de	<b>Object</b> Code	34
<b>Telephone</b> 916-643-900		*):		3385		8182	INDEX
	ant Program rt C, Early Educatior	1 Program					0663
GRANT DETAILS	Original/Prior Amendments	Amendment Amount	Tota	al	Amend No.	Award Starting Date	Award Ending Date
	\$139,420		\$139,·	420		7/1/2021	6/30/2022
CFDA Number	Federal Grant Number	Feder	al Grant N	lame		Federa	I Agency
he funding u Please scan	apon which this awar and email a signed	pon the availability of d is based, then this copy of the Grant Aw	<sup>f</sup> funds. If th award will vard Notifica	he Legisla be amen ation (fori	ature take ded accor m AO-400	dingly.	
he funding u Please scan	upon which this awar and email a signed a a.gov. Please return	d is based, then this	f funds. If th award will ard Notifica Grant Award rtment of E overnment eet, Room	ne Legisla be amen ation (forn d Notifica Education cal Progra 2401	ature take: ded accor m AO-400 tion to:	s action to rec dingly. ) by email to	
he funding u Please scan PL@cde.ca	apon which this awar and email a signed o <u>a.gov</u> . Please return Alexa <b>epartment of Educ</b>	d is based, then this copy of the Grant Aw the original, signed G California Depa Slater, Associate G 1430 N Stre Sacramento,	funds. If th award will ard Notifica Frant Award rtment of E overnment eet, Room CA 95814	ne Legisla be amen ation (forn d Notifica Education cal Progra 2401	ature take ded accor m AO-400 tion to: m Analyst	s action to rec dingly. ) by email to	
he funding u Please scan PPL@cde.ca PL@cde.ca Alexa Slater,	apon which this awar and email a signed a <u>a.gov</u> . Please return Alexa <b>epartment of Educ</b> Special Education I	d is based, then this copy of the Grant Aw the original, signed G California Depa Slater, Associate G 1430 N Stre Sacramento,	funds. If th award will ard Notifica Grant Award rtment of E overnment eet, Room 3 CA 95814	he Legisla be amen ation (forn d Notifica ducation al Progra 2401 I-5901 <b>Job Title</b>	ature take: ded accor m AO-400 tion to: m Analyst	s action to rec dingly. ) by email to	uce or defer
the funding u Please scan PPL@cde.ca PL@cde.ca Alexa Slater, Email Addre	apon which this awar and email a signed a.gov. Please return Alexa epartment of Educa Special Education I ess	d is based, then this copy of the Grant Aw the original, signed G California Depa Slater, Associate G 1430 N Stre Sacramento,	funds. If th award will ard Notifica Grant Award rtment of E overnment eet, Room 3 CA 95814	he Legisla be amen ation (forn d Notifica ducation al Progra 2401 I-5901 <b>Job Title</b>	ature take ded accor m AO-400 tion to: m Analyst e Governm	s action to rec dingly. ) by email to hental Program	uce or defer
he funding u Please scan PL@cde.ca PL@cde.ca Alexa Slater, <b>Email Addre</b> Aslater@cde	and email a signed of a.gov. Please return Alexa Special Education I ess a.ca.gov f the State Superint	d is based, then this copy of the Grant Aw the original, signed G California Depa Slater, Associate G 1430 N Stre Sacramento,	f funds. If th award will ard Notifica Grant Award rtment of E overnment eet, Room CA 95814	he Legisla be amen ation (for d Notifica ducation al Progra 2401 I-5901 <b>Job Title</b> Associate	ature take ded accor m AO-400 tion to: m Analyst e Governm a Governm Te 91 nee Da	s action to rec dingly. ) by email to by email to hental Program lephone 6-322-0581 te	uce or defer
he funding u Please scan PL@cde.ca PL@cde.ca Alexa Slater, <b>Email Addre</b>	and email a signed and the search of Education I and the search of Education I a	d is based, then this copy of the Grant Aw the original, signed G California Depa a Slater, Associate G 1430 N Stre Sacramento, ation Contact Division	f funds. If th award will ard Notifica Frant Award rtment of E overnment eet, Room 3 CA 95814	he Legisla be amen ation (forn d Notifica Education al Progra 2401 I-5901 <b>Job Title</b> Associate <b>or Desig</b>	ature take: ded accor m AO-400 tion to: m Analyst e Governm 91 nee Da No	s action to rec dingly. ) by email to hental Program lephone 6-322-0581 te vember 15, 2	uce or defer
California D Please scan PL@cde.ca PL@cde.ca Alexa Slater, Email Addre Aslater@cde Signature of On behalf assurances, in thi Printed Nam	and email a signed of a.gov. Please return Alexa Alexa Special Education I ess e.ca.gov f the State Superint CERTIFICA of the grantee name terms, and conditior is document or both; the of Authorized Age of Auth	d is based, then this copy of the Grant Aw the original, signed G California Depa a Slater, Associate G 1430 N Stre Sacramento, Sacramento, tendent of Public Ins tendent of Public Ins TION OF ACCEPTA and above, I accept this is identified on the gr and I agree to comp	funds. If th award will avard Notifica Frant Award rtment of E overnment eet, Room CA 95814 CA 95814 CA 95814	he Legisla be amen ation (for d Notifica ducation al Progra 2401 I-5901 Job Title Associate or Design GRANT R ard. I hav ation (for cequireme Title	ature takes ded accor m AO-400 tion to: m Analyst m Analyst e Governm <u>Fe</u> 91 nee Da No EQUIREN re read the grants with	ental Program by email to by email to by email to ental Program by ember 15, 2 iENTS applicable con an applicable con	n Analyst
the funding u Please scan PPL@cde.ca PPL@cde.ca California D Alexa Slater, Email Addre Aslater@cde Signature of On behalf assurances, in thi Printed Nam BOSC Ham	and email a signed of a.gov. Please return Alexa epartment of Educa Special Education I ess a.ca.gov f the State Superint CERTIFICA of the grantee name terms, and condition is document or both; ne of Authorized Ag	d is based, then this copy of the Grant Aw the original, signed G California Depa a Slater, Associate Go 1430 N Stre Sacramento, ation Contact Division tendent of Public Ins tendent of Public Ins tendent of Public Ins tendent of Public Ins and I agree to comp gent	funds. If th award will avard Notifica Frant Award rtment of E overnment eet, Room CA 95814 CA 95814 CA 95814 Struction of Struction of Struction of Struction of Struction of Struction of Struction of Struction of Struction of Struction of Struction Struction of Struction of Struction Struction of Struction of Struction Struction of Struction	he Legisla be amen ation (for d Notifica ducation al Progra 2401 I-5901 Job Title Associate or Design GRANT R ard. I hav ation (for grequireme	ature takes ded accor m AO-400 tion to: m Analyst m Analyst e Governm grants with the read the grants with ents as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a control of the mets as a cont	ental Program by email to by email to by email to ental Program by ember 15, 2 iENTS applicable con an applicable con	uce or defer n Analyst D21 ertifications, on process) or

CDE Grant Number: 21-23761-67439-01 November 15, 2021 Page 2

Grant Award Notification (Continued)

The following grant conditions apply:

- General assurances and certifications are required for grants supported by state funds and are hereby incorporated by reference. The California Department of Education (CDE) has agreed to accept the assurances your agency currently provides in the Consolidated Application. Information about the general assurances and certifications are available on the CDE General Assurances 2021–22 web page at <a href="https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/fm/generalassurances2021-22.asp">https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/fm/generalassurances2021-22.asp</a>.
- 2. Please return, within 10 days, the signed Certification of Acceptance of Grant Requirements section of the AO-400 form, which certifies that grantee accepts and agrees to the conditions of the grant. Upon receipt, an initial payment will be issued to your County Treasurer. Please ensure that these funds are appropriately reported by using the Standardized Account Code Structure codes as indicated on this award. All approved project funds must be expended or legally obligated within the designated award period and for no more than the total amount indicated.
- 3. The grantee shall cover the expenses by local educational agencies to comply with the California Early Intervention Services Act, Title 14 (commencing with Section 95000) of the California Government Code and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 United States Code 1471 to 1485. Expenses must: (1) be documented; (2) be required (according to Part C of IDEA); and (3) increase the costs of the program. In addition, expenses may not be attributable to activities previously required under the California Education Code as it read on June 30, 1993.
- The grantee must submit to the CDE by November 15, 2021, a funding application and budget summary. The grantee must submit an Interim Expenditure Report to the CDE no later than February 11, 2022, for reporting actual expenditures from July 1, 2021, through January 31, 2022, and projected expenditures from February 1, 2022, through June 30, 2022.
- 5. The grantee must submit to the CDE a Final Expenditure Report no later than **September 1**, **2022.** Upon receipt of the Final Expenditure Report, up to 100 percent of the grant may be reimbursed.
- 6. Under authority of the CDE, if your agency is identified as noncompliant, special conditions may be imposed. The State Superintendent of Public Instruction may authorize the CDE to withhold partial or total funding. Agencies with sanctions will receive notification of special conditions. No payments will be released to agencies with special conditions until the CDE receives written notification from the agency agreeing to the special conditions.

If you have any fiscal questions regarding this grant, please contact Alexa Slater, Associate Governmental Program Analyst, Special Education Division, by phone at 916-322-0581 or by email at <u>aslater@cde.ca.gov</u>.

1.2 1. 1. 1.

cc: Business Fiscal Officer: Final Expenditure Report Director, Special Education Local Plan Area



## **Agreement for Architectural Services**

between

## **Sacramento City Unified School District**

and

**HMC** Group

## John F. Kennedy Roof and C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project

Dated: January 13, 2022

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Article 1	Definitions	1
Article 2	Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect	3
Article 3	Architect Staff	7
Article 4	Schedule of Services	8
Article 5	Construction Cost Budget	9
Article 6	Fee and Method of Payment	. 10
Article 7	Payment for Extra Services or Changes	. 10
Article 8	Ownership of Data	. 11
Article 9	Termination of Contract	. 12
Article 10	Indemnity / Architect Liability	. 14
Article 11	Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site	. 15
Article 12	Responsibilities of the District	. 15
Article 13	Liability of District	. 16
Article 14	Nondiscrimination	. 16
Article 15	Insurance	. 16
Article 16	Covenant against Contingent Fees	. 17
Article 17	Entire Agreement/Modification	. 17
Article 18	Non-Assignment of Agreement	. 17
Article 19	Law, Venue	. 17
Article 20	Alternative Dispute Resolution	. 18
Article 21	Tolling of Claims	. 18
Article 22	Attorneys' Fees	. 18
Article 23	Severability	. 19
Article 24	Employment Status	. 19
Article 25	Certificate of Architect	. 20
Article 26	Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports	. 20
Article 27	Notice & Communications	. 21
Article 28	[RESERVED]	. 21
Article 29	District's Right to Audit	. 21
Article 30	Other Provisions	. 22
Article 31	Exhibits "A" through "F"	. 23

EXHIBIT "A" – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT	A-1
EXHIBIT "B" – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES	B-1
EXHIBIT "C" – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES	C-1
EXHIBIT "D" – PAYMENT SCHEDULE	D-1
EXHIBIT "E" – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	E-1
EXHIBIT "F" – ROOFING PROJECT CERTIFICATION	F-1

#### AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of January 13, 2022, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district ("District"), and HMC Group ("Architect") (collectively "Parties"), for the following project ("Project"):

Roof and C-Wing HVAC Replacement on the campus of John F. Kennedy High School located at 6715 Gloria Drive, Sacramento, CA 95831.

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

#### Article 1. Definitions

- 1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
  - 1.1.1. **Agreement**: The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
  - 1.1.2. **Architect**: The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect. The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
  - 1.1.3. **As-Built Drawings ("As-Builts")**: Any document prepared and submitted by District's Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District's construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.
  - 1.1.4. **Bid Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect ("DSA") has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
  - 1.1.5. **Conforming Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase. The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA approval is required.

- 1.1.6. **Construction Budget**: The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
- 1.1.7. <u>Construction Change Documents ("CCD")</u>: The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- 1.1.8. **Construction Cost Budget**: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement. The Construction Cost Budget does not include the compensation of the Architect and the Architect's Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other costs which are the responsibility of the District, including construction management.
- 1.1.9. **Construction Manager**: The District's representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner's representative.
- 1.1.10. **Contractor**: One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
- 1.1.11. **Consultant(s)**: Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
- 1.1.12. **District**: The Sacramento City Unified School District.
- 1.1.13. **DSA**: The Division of the State Architect.
- 1.1.14. **Extra Services**: District-authorized services outside of the scope in **Exhibit "A"** or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect's Fee.
- 1.1.15. **Laboratory of Record**: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
- 1.1.16. **Project**: District's John F. Kennedy Roof and C-Wing HVAC Replacement Project at 6715 Gloria Drive, Sacramento, CA 95831.
- 1.1.17. **<u>Record Drawings</u>**: A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.

- 1.1.18. **Service(s)**: All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.
- 1.1.19. **<u>Visually Verify</u>**: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

## Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect

- 2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in **Exhibit "A**," commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative. Architect's Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as **Exhibit "C**."
- 2.2. Architect shall provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law, including, but not limited to, the requirements of the California Business and Professions Code, the California Education Code, and the California Code of Regulations. All persons providing professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required by California law.
- 2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process. District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect's scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
- 2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are obligated to develop and implement the following storm water requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one (1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance (e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities.
  - 2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation:
    - 2.4.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System ("MS4"). An MS4 is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins,

curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm drains.

- 24.12. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan ("SWPPP") that contains specific best management practices ("BMPs") and establishes numeric effluent limitations.
- 2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District's storm water requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District. In addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final development of the site. This drawing will also include a horizontal and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan. The Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of the Architect.
- 2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect's expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement. The names of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to commencement of Services, as indicated below. The District reserves the right to reject Architect's use of any particular Consultant. Nothing in the foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the Agreement. Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement.
- 2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related to the Project. This shall include, without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any. If the Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any.
- 2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation,

the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects.

- 2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or referenced in the following forms, bulletins ("BU"), interpretations of regulations ("IR"), policies ("PL"), or procedures ("PR"):
  - 2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal and Approval Process.
  - 2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School District, Contractor and Design Professional.
  - 2.7.1.3. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018.
  - 2.7.1.4. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-Counter ("OTC") Projects Using Bluebeam 2018.
  - 2.7.1.5. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process.
    - 2.7.1.5.1. Each of Architect's duties as provided in the DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be performed timely so as not to result in any delay to the Project.
  - 2.7.1.6. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process.
- 2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission, for all projects submitted to DSA. Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the

extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control.

- 2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or federal agencies' approval for on-site and off-site work related to the Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.
- 2.9. Architect shall direct and monitor the work of the District's DSA project inspector(s) ("Project Inspector(s)") and the Laboratory of Record. Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory of Record.
- 2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its best skill and attention. Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions ("Contract Documents") and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project Inspector(s). Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions.
- Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a 2.11. Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information ("RFI"), providing RFI responses, and leading all coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and Contractors on the Project. The District reserves the right to retain the services of a Construction Manager at any time. The Construction Manager, if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District. The District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at any time. Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed by the Governing Board of the District. In addition, the District may have a constructability review of Architect's design documents. Architect shall conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any compensation as Extra Services for this activity.
- 2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may use on its website.

- 2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not responsible for:
  - 2.13.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.
  - 2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such information provided by District.
  - 2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no additional cost to the District.
  - 2.13.4. Historical significance report.
  - 2.13.5. Soils investigation.
  - 2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in **Exhibit "A."**

#### Article 3. Architect Staff

- 3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
- 3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect's firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:

Principal In Charge:	Brian Meyers
Project Director:	
Project Architect(s):	Michael Rath
Project Architect(s):	
Other:	

Major Consultants:

Electrical:	Edge Electrical
Mechanical:	Capital Engineering
Structural:	Degenkolb Engineering
Civil:	<u>N/A</u>
Other:	<u>N/A</u>

- 3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect. In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve replacement personnel.
- 3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to the District. All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions stated in this paragraph.
- 3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect.
- 3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in "responsible charge" of persons who observe the construction.

#### Article 4. Schedule of Services

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in **Exhibit "A**," so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule in **Exhibit "C**." Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement. It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect's or its Consultant(s)' reasonable control.

## Article 5. Construction Cost Budget

- 5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District's established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope. In accordance with **Exhibit "A**," the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project and at the completion of each design phase. The District and Construction Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget with the Architect.
- 5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in **Exhibit "A**," including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the District's written approval. Architect shall maintain cost controls throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost Budget.
- 5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur:
  - 5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the Construction Cost Budget.
  - 5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or rebid the Project within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids (exclusive of District and other agencies' review time) at no additional cost to the District.
  - 5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the District, without further obligation by either party.
  - 5.3.4. Within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as approved by the District) to bring the Project within the Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the District.
- 5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above:
  - 5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
  - 5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to uncontrollable events in the world economy.

## Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following ("Fee"):

An amount not to exceed Four Hundred Eighteen Thousand Dollars (\$418,000) based on the rates set forth in **Exhibit "D**."

- 6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of **Exhibit** "**D**."
- 6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect's error or omission.
- 6.5. The Architect's Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect's Fee, the Architect's Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
- 6.7. Neither the District's review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the District caused by Architect's failure to perform any of the Services furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in or around the same geographic area as the District.

#### Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit** "**B**" only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed. If any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative, the District will not be obligated to pay for such service. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, Architect will be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit "B"** for Extra Services that the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative verbally requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the request from the Architect.

#### Article 8. Ownership of Data

- 8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a nonexclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology ("CADD") (e.g., AutoCAD). Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format. As to any drawings that Architect provides in a CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all documents.
- 8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a "hard" copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information. The District agrees to release Architect from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) subsequent to it being given to the District.
- 8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter "Instruments of

Service"), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way permitted by statute:

- 8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
- 8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
- 8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
- 8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
- 8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.
- 8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect's knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction. In the event that the District uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect's full involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information that might identify Architect and its Consultants.

## Article 9. Termination of Contract

9.1. <u>District's Request for Assurances</u>: If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the District may advise Architect of in writing. Architect shall, within ten (10) days of District's request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the requirements of the District's request for assurances. Architect's failure to provide such written assurances of performance and the required written

plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause.

- 9.2. <u>District's Termination of Architect for Cause</u>: If Architect fails to perform Architect's duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect's material obligations under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect. In the event of a termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to the District's costs because of Architect's actions, errors, or omissions.
- 9.3. <u>District's Termination of Architect for Convenience</u>: District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience. In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until the District's notice of termination for convenience.
- 9.4. <u>Architect's Termination of Agreement for Cause</u>: Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect. Such termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Architect to the District. Architect may invoice the District and the District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until Architect's notice of termination.
- 9.5. <u>Effect on Pre-Termination Services</u>: Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such termination.
- 9.6. <u>Ceasing Services upon Termination</u>: If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project. The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of termination.

9.7. <u>Project Suspension</u>: If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect's compensation shall be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the Architect's Services. Architect shall make every effort to maintain the same Project personnel after suspension. If the District suspends the Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice.

## Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability

To the fullest extent permitted by California law and in accordance with 10.1. California Civil Code section 2782.8, Architect shall indemnify, and hold free and harmless the District, its agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees and members ("Indemnified Parties") from any and all actions, assessments, counts, citations, claims, costs, damages, demands, judgments, liabilities (legal, administrative or otherwise), losses, notices, expenses, fines, penalties, proceedings, responsibilities, violations, attorney's and consultants' fees and causes of action to property or persons, including personal injury and/or death ("Claim(s)"), to the extent that the Claim(s) arises out of, pertains to, or relates to, the negligence (active or passive, ordinary or gross), recklessness (ordinary or gross), or willful misconduct of Architect, its directors, officials, officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, subconsultants or agents arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performance of the Services, the Project, or this Agreement. Architect also has the duty to defend the Indemnified Parties from all Claims at Architect's own expense, including attorneys' fees and costs; however, in no event shall the cost to defend charged to the Architect exceed the Architect's proportionate percentage of fault. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, in the event one or more defendants is unable to pay its share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or dissolution of the business, the design professional shall meet and confer with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs. If a Claim arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's or the Architect's request, the District and the Architect agree to undertake good faith measures to allow the Architect to assist the District in resolving the dispute or litigation. The Architect's assistance, described as "Mandatory Assistance" in Exhibit A, Section B.8, shall be provided at Architect's own expense and excluded from any reimbursement calculation. At the commencement of the Mandatory Assistance Phase, District and Architect shall also in good faith as to the scope and extent of further assistance, including a joint defense agreement. During the Mandatory Assistance Phase, each Party shall be responsible for their own

attorneys' fees and costs incurred; however, each Party reserves its rights pursuant to Civil Code section 2782.8.

- 10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim as defined in Article 10.1. These amounts may be paid by Architect to District or the District may in reasonable good faith withhold those costs from amounts owing to Architect, pending resolution of the dispute..
- 10.3. Architect's duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement until any such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute of limitations and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the District may have under the law or under this Agreement.

## Article 11. Fingerprinting

- 11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. Architect shall promptly notify the District in writing of any facts or circumstances which might reasonably lead the District to determine that contact will be more than limited as defined by Education Code section 45125.1(d).
- 11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19. Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect's personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable terms in the CDPH's State Public Health Officer Orders.

## Article 12. Responsibilities of the District

- 12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect's Services.
- 12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect's documents. Failure to provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, if any.
- 12.3. Unless the District and Architect agree that a hazardous materials consultant shall be a Consultant of the Architect, the District shall furnish

the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall include: asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement documentation; and specifications related to said matters, which are to be incorporated into bid documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous materials consultant is furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of the Architect, the specifications shall include a note to the effect that the hazardous materials consultant's specifications are included in the Architect's bid documents for the District's convenience and have not been prepared or reviewed by the Architect. The note shall also direct questions about the hazardous materials consultant's specifications related to asbestos and lead paint survey and/or abatement documentation to the preparer of the hazardous materials consultant's specifications.

## Article 13. Liability of District

- 13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District's financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services performed in connection with this Agreement.
- 13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

#### Article 14. Nondiscrimination

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance by all of its subcontractor(s).

#### Article 15. Insurance

15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in **Exhibit "E."** 

15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in **Exhibit "E."** 

#### Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency.

#### Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto. Architect shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no others.

#### Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.

#### Article 19. Law, Venue

19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.

19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

### Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution

- 20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other party to the Agreement. The demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial written notice.
- 20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to the Architect's right to bring a civil action against the District. For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized by any applicable meet and confer process.
- 20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.

## Article 21. Tolling of Claims

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District's assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors' or subcontractors' claims against District involving Architect's work, until the Contractors' or subcontractors' claims are finally resolved.

## Article 22. Attorneys' Fees

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, including consultants' fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as may be fixed by the court. The term "prevailing party" shall mean the party who received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.

### Article 23. Severability

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

## Article 24. Employment Status

- 24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such Services.
- 24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect's personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District employee.
- 24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability). The District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.
- 24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect

under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability).

- 24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of the District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a reduction in District's liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an employee.
- 24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

## Article 25. Certificate of Architect

- 25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
- 25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this Agreement.
- 25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain "public works" and "maintenance" projects ("Prevailing Wage Laws"). Architect agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect and its Consultants' professional services to be provided under this Agreement.

## Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars (\$5,000).

#### Article 27. Notice & Communications

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent to the following addresses:

#### **District:**

Sacramento City Unified School District 5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824 ATTN: Contracts Office EMAIL: Jessica-sulli@scusd.edu

With a Copy to: Dannis Woliver Kelley 200 California Street #400 San Francisco, CA 94111 ATTN: Deidree Sakai, Esq.

## Architect:

HMC Architects 2495 Natomas Park Drive Studio 100 Sacramento, CA 95833 ATTN: Brian Meyers EMAIL: brian.meyers@hmcarchitects.com

Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt. Any notice sent by electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission. Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery. Any notice given by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail.

## Article 28. [RESERVED]

#### Article 29. District's Right to Audit

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect's and any Consultant's premises to review and audit the Architect's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement ("District's Right"). The District's Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to retain copies, outside of Architect's premises, of any and all Project-related records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The

District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable law.

- 29.2. The District's Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement.
- 29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District's Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, or anticipated to be incurred.
- 29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon District's request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all requested records to the District.
- 29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
- 29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District's written request to review and audit any or all of Architect's Project-related records and information.

## Article 30. Other Provisions

- 30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter of the Agreement.
- 30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.
- 30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All

counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the Parties hereto.

- 30.4. Architect shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount of any tax deduction and/or credit Architect receives for District Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179D ("Section 179D"). Architect shall provide District with all necessary documentation to enable District to verify the amounts of the Section 179D tax deduction. Architect shall notify District in writing of the Section 179D tax deduction within 30 days of when Architect receives IRS notice of the Section 179D tax deduction or receives the Section 179D tax refund, whichever occurs first.
- Article 31. Exhibits "A" through "F" attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.

## [SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

# SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

**HMC GROUP** 

By: Rose Ramos Chief Business Officer

Date: 01/28/2022

By: Brian Meyers Principal-in-Charge

Date: <u>1/20/2022</u>

## EXHIBIT "A"

## **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

Α.	SCOPE OF PROJECT	1
В.	BASIC SERVICES	2
С.	CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE	5
G.	BIDDING PHASE	. 12
Н.	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE	. 13
Ι.	CLOSE OUT PHASE	. 17
J.	MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS	.18

## EXHIBIT "A"

### **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following:

#### SCOPE OF PROJECT

Project Name: John F. Kennedy Roof and C-Wing HVAC Replacement

Construction Cost Budget: \$8,000,000

- 1. Reroofing of all buildings, with any exceptions noted below also refer to report from Tremco (Attachment A).
  - a. A Wing A1 and A2, recently replaced no work required.
  - b. Replace all roofing on Wings B, C, D, E, F auxiliary gym, boys and girls locker rooms and cafeteria.
  - c. All canopy walkways to have roofing replaced with some structural repairs likely required for roof areas over wood framing (where dry rot).
  - d. Auditorium has a newer PVC roof no work required.
  - e. Relocatable Buildings T Wing and V Wing; District option to replace metal roofing with PVC or cover metal roofing with insulation and PVC.
  - f. All Wings/Building will require new roof hatches, with new safety barriers, as well as Interior Ladders to properly/safely access roof areas.
  - g. All Wings/Buildings will require new exterior cross-over ladders meeting OSHA requirements.
  - h. Remove current equipment on the roof areas that are obsolete
  - i. Replace thru-roof gravity vents with ones that are more rain-proof.
  - j. All gas lines on roof shall be properly supported/restrained and painted yellow.
  - k. All HVAC condensate piping be properly supported. Any (e) pvc pipe to be replaced with galvanized or copper (painted).
- 2. Campus Façade Improvements.
  - a. All (e) painted surfaces/components 
    including metal mansard panels.
  - b. Power-wash and provide anti-graffiti coating on all brick surfaces.
  - c. Power-wash and provide anti-graffiti coating on all CMU surfaces.
  - d. Power-wash and seal any exposed concrete surfaces (i.e., C Wing).
  - e. Remove and reinstall/replace (e) bird-screens (i.e., C Wing, Auditorium)
  - f. Paint existing lockers
- 3. Addition of HVAC scope to Building C (roof related)
  - a. Replace existing roof mounted HVAC units (serving 2<sup>nd</sup> and 3<sup>rd</sup> floors).
  - b. Install new control components along with Co2 sensors to meet SCUSD standard Johnson Controls

- c. Demo all roof mounted ducting, ducting enclosures, and condensing units.
- d. Replace all Roof Mounted Exhaust Fans, and Roof Vents.
- e. Replace roofing, flashing, curb flashing and accessories.
- f. Connect all new Furnaces and AC-Units units to existing building gas distribution piping.
- g. Provide Space Conditioning to second and third floor corridors.
- 4. Addition of HVAC scope to Building C (non-roof related scope)
  - a. Replace existing Air Handlers (first floor).
  - b. Demolish Air Handler at first floor, and pneumatic controls (existing ductwork to remain).
  - c. Install new control components along with Co2 sensors to meet SCUSD standard Johnson Controls
  - d. Connect all new Furnaces and AC-Units units to existing building gas distribution piping.
- 5. Accessibility Improvements to Building C
  - a. Provide all DSA required ADA improvements to Building C

Exclusions:

- 1. Specialty consultants and engineers not listed above
- 2. Special studies
- 3. Tests and inspections
- 4. Permit/Agency fees

#### **BASIC SERVICES**

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:

- Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District. Architect shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.
- 2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance. Architect shall advise the District of the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each

stage of design. Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and disclosed information.

- 3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect's scope of work. This information shall include, if available,
  - a. As-builts;
  - b. Physical characteristics;
  - c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
  - d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
  - e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
  - f. Adjacent drainage;
  - g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
  - h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
  - i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
  - j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
  - k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the documents provided by the District.

If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires: a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that

information. If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as Extra Services.

4. **Mandatory Assistance.** If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation ("Mandatory Assistance").

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# C. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect's scope of work. All Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission.

#### 1. Construction Documents ("CD") 50% Stage:

#### a. General

Verify lead times and availability of all Project equipment, materials, and supplies and ensure that all of these will be available to the Contractor in a timely fashion so as not to delay the Project.

#### b. Architectural

- (i) Site plan developed to show building location, all topographical elements and existing/proposed contour lines.
- (ii) Elevations (exterior and interior), sections and floor plans corrected to reflect design development review comments.
- (iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups started.
- (iv) Well-developed finish, door, and hardware schedules.
- (v) Site utility plans started.
- (vi) Fixed equipment details and identification started.
- (vii) Reflected ceiling plans coordinated with floor plans and mechanical and electrical systems.

#### c. Structural

- (i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing well advanced.
- (ii) Structural footing and foundation plans, floor and roof framing plans with detailing well advanced.
- (iii) Completed cover sheet with general notes, symbols and legends.

#### d. Mechanical

- (i) Mechanical calculations virtually completed with all piping and ductwork sized.
- (ii) Large scale mechanical details started.
- (iii) Mechanical schedule for equipment substantially developed.
- (iv) Complete design of Energy Management System ("EMS").

#### e. **Electrical**

- (i) Lighting, power, signal and communication plans showing all switching and controls. Fixture schedule and lighting details development started.
- (ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment; lighting and device branch wiring development well started.
- (iii) All electrical equipment schedules started.
- (iv) Special system components approximately located on plans.
- (v) Complete design of low-voltage system. Low-voltage system includes fire alarm system, security system, clock and public address system, voice-data system, and telecom/technology system.

#### f. Civil

All site plans, site utilities, parking, walkway, and roadway systems updated to reflect update revisions from Design Development Phase Documents.

#### g. Construction Cost Budget

- (i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the Design Development Phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget. Architect shall provide a Construction Cost Budget sorted by Project Bid Packages, if more than one.
- (ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.

- (iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, the Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.
- (iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design contingencies of no more than five percent (5%) in the cost estimates.

#### h. Specifications

More than fifty percent (50%) complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria required for the construction of the Project.

- (i) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by specific brand or trade name unless:
  - (A) The specification is followed by the words "or equal" so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public Contract Code section 3400, or
  - (B) The designation is allowable by a specific allowable exemption or exception pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400.
- (ii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with District's prior approval.
- (iii) Specifications shall be in CSI format.

#### i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- (i) working drawings;
- (ii) Specifications;
- (iii) statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance with Contract Documents and applicable codes; and

(iv) statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved Construction Cost Budget. If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur between disciplines, identify for District review.

#### 2. Construction Documents – 100% / Completion Stage:

#### a. Architectural

- (i) Completed site plan.
- (ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections.
- (iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed.
- (iv) Finish, door, and hardware schedules completed, including all details.
- (v) Site utility plans completed.
- (vi) Fixed equipment details and identification completed.
- (vii) Reflected ceiling plans completed.

#### b. Structural

- (i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing completed.
- (ii) Structural calculations completed.

#### c. Mechanical

- (i) Large scale mechanical details complete.
- (ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed.
- (iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment.
- (iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report.

#### d. Electrical

(i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls. Fixture schedule and lighting details completed.

- (ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed.
- (iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed.
- (iv) Special system components plans completed.
- (v) Electrical load calculations completed.

#### e. Civil

All site plans, site utilities, parking and roadway systems completed.

#### f. Construction Cost Budget

- (i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the fifty percent (50%) Construction Documents Phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget.
- (ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.
- (iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.
- (iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates.

#### g. Specifications

- (i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria required for the construction of the Project.
- (ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by specific brand or trade name unless:
  - (A) The specification is followed by the words "or equal" so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public Contract Code section 3400, or

- (B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400.
- (iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with District's prior approval.
- (iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District.
- (v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other disciplines.
- (vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format.

#### h. Constructability Review

The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a constructability review of the Construction Documents. A report shall be given to the Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments for each item listed in the report. Conducting a constructability review does not excuse the Architect's obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law.

#### i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- (i) Working drawings;
- (ii) Specifications;
- (iii) Engineering calculations;
- (iv) Construction Cost Budgets;
- (v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance with Construction Documents and applicable codes;

- (vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, backcheck comments, checklists to date; and
- (vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved Construction Cost Budget. If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur between disciplines, identify for District review.

#### 3. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage:

- a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, specifications, and estimate. All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall be at no additional cost to the District.
- b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the Architect's work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following:
  - (i) Drawings: Original tracings of all drawings on Architect's tracing paper with each Architect/Consultant's State license stamp.
  - (ii) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible masters in CSI format.
- c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants' completed Contract Documents.
- d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA.

#### 4. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

# D. BIDDING PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for District as follows:

- 1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
- 2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
- 3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect. Nevertheless, Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.
- 4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect.
- 5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for decision by the District as to the proper procedure required. Corrective action will be in the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.
- 6. Attend bid opening.
- 7. Coordinate with Consultants.
- 8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
- 9. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and
- c. Upon completion of the Bidding Phase, Architect shall produce a Conforming Set of plans and specifications incorporating all addenda issued thus far. Architect shall supply District with two (2) complete, reproducible sets of plans and specifications marked as a Conforming Set.

#### E. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract Administration Phase services for the District as follows:

1. Architect's responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District's terminating the Agreement, whichever is earlier.

#### 2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process

- a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project by submitting the applicable Inspector's Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 152 or more current version).
- b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards (forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been awarded. Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior to commencement of construction.
- c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record.
- d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more current version) for all construction contracts.
- e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved construction documents. Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.
- f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary.

- h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off that section of the project inspection card.
- i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more current version) to the DSA.
- j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur: (1) when construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) DSA requests a Verified Report.

# 3. Change Orders

- a. Architect shall review all of Contractor's change order requests to determine if those requests are valid and appropriate. Architect shall provide a recommendation to District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.
- b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change orders. The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as Extra Services by the District. The original tracing(s) and/or drawings and contract wording for change orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and distribution.

# 4. Submittals

- a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.
- b. Architect shall review Contractor's schedule of submittals and advise the District on whether that schedule is complete. Architect shall provide the District with proposed revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should approve this schedule.

- c. Architect's action upon Contractor's submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to permit adequate review. In no case shall the review period associated with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt by the Architect. Architect's response to each submittal shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.
- 5. **RFIs.** During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must respond to all Requests for Information ("RFI") as expeditiously as possible so as not to impact and delay the construction progress. In no case shall the review period associated with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect. Architect's response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This seven-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce the Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents. Architect must verify that RFIs are passed through the Project Inspector, if any.
- 6. **Notices of Deficient Work**. On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard the District against defects and deficiencies in the work. Architect shall timely notify the District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District's Contractors that Architect may observe. However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of the Contractor's performance.
- 7. **As-Built Drawings.** Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)' documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts. As-Builts are documents that show the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District's construction Contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.
- 8. **Record Drawings.** Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District. The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the construction Contractor's representations of actual construction. Architect shall deliver the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District's approval

of Architect's final payment. Architect may insert the following notice on the Record Drawings:

These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others. Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

- 9. **O&M Manuals and Warranties.** Architect shall review equipment, operation and maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and specifications.
- 10. **Start-up.** Architect shall also provide, at the District's request, architectural/engineering advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the acceptance of the Contractor's work.
- 11. **Payment Statements.** Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect's representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best of Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in general conformance with the Contract Documents.

#### 12. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Observation reports; and
- c. Weekly meeting reports.

#### 13. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# F. CLOSE OUT PHASE

- 1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner:
  - a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion.
  - b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect's recommendation as to the adequacy of these items.
  - c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project.
  - d. Architect shall respond to the DSA "90-day" letter.
  - e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents and addenda to the Contractor's contract.
  - f. Architect shall prepare a set of As-Built Drawings for the Project, as required by the District.
  - g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation.
  - h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder.
  - i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to closeout the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.
- 2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project.

#### 3. Deliverables and Number of Copies

- a. Punch list; and
- b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and Record Drawings. These are the sole property of the District.

#### 4. Meetings

During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

# G. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS

 Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below. Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all coordination meetings with its Consultant(s) during the entire design phase. Architect shall invite the District and/or its representative to participate in these meetings. Architect shall keep a separate log to document design/coordination comments generated in these meetings.

## 2. General Meeting, Site Visit, and Workshop Requirements

- a. Architect shall always be prepared to answer questions and issues from District staff, site staff, potential bidders, and/or Contractors, as applicable.
- b. Architect shall maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or site observations held in conjunction with the design and construction of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions, questions or comments. These shall be furnished to the District and/or its representative for inclusion in the overall Project documentation.
- c. As required, Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.
- d. Each meeting may last up to a full day (eight (8) hours) and shall be held at the District office or at the Project site, unless otherwise indicated.

# 3. Meetings During Construction Documents Phase (five (5) meeting(s))

- a. Prior to beginning work on the fifty percent (50%) design package, Architect shall conduct two (2) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to revise the Design Development package and receive comments.
- b. At the time designated for completion of the fifty percent (50%) submittal package, Architect shall conduct two (2) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present the fifty percent (50%) submittal package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.

- c. At the time designated for completion of the one hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package, Architect shall conduct one (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present the hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.

#### 4. Meetings During Bidding Phase (two (2) meeting(s))

- a. Attend and take part in one (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with all potential bidders, District staff, and Construction Manager.
- b. Conduct one (1) kick-off meeting(s) with the successful bidder, District staff, and Construction Manager to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each party and provide protocols and processes to follow during construction.

# 5. Meetings During Construction Administration Phase (weekly Project meetings until entire Project is complete)

- a. Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepancies in the Contract Documents and to monitor the progress of the construction of the Project.
- b. Conduct weekly Project meetings with District staff to review with District staff the progress of the work. Architect agrees to attend weekly Project meetings, at no additional cost to the District, until the work of the Project is complete.
- c. Architect shall ensure that Consultant(s) visit the site in conformance with their agreement(s) and that Consultant agreements shall reference District requirements for Construction Phase services.

#### EXHIBIT "B"

## **CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES**

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:

- A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within **Exhibit "A."**
- B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A." Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A," so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct Architect to procure the deliverables at the District's expense or on the District's account at a specific vendor.
- C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
- D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
- E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
- F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement.
- G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
- H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.

Job Title	Hourly Rate
Principal in Charge	\$275
Sr Project Manager/Sr Project Architect/Sr Technical Manager	\$215
Project Manager/Project Architect/Technical Manager	\$190
Project Leader/Technical Leader	\$170
Project Coordinator	\$140

	¢225
Senior Construction Administrator	\$225
Construction Administrator	\$160
Construction Administration Support	\$105
Design Principal	\$275
Senior Project Designer	\$215
Project Designer	\$190
Design Leader	\$170
Designer II	\$125
Designer	\$115
Senior Interior Designer	\$215
Senior Interior Project Designer	\$215
Sustainable Design	\$205
Specifications Writer	\$205
Visualization Arts	\$180
Agency Compliance	\$135
Senior Education Facilities Planner	\$220
Education Facilities Planner	\$180

- I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
  - 1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
    - a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
  - 2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.

#### J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect's invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed. For example, a six hour charge for "RFIs and CORs" is unacceptable and will not be payable. A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is required. This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order. For example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this Agreement, would be payable. The times indicated below are just placeholders:

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to	0.8 hours
same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor,	
district, construction manager, and project inspector.	

Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and language for same.	0.7 hours
Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR.	1.2 hours

# EXHIBIT "C"

# SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

Construction Documents	Dec 2021 – Jan 2022
Agency Review	Feb 2022 – Mar 2022
Bidding	Feb 2022 – Apr 2022
Construction Administration	May 2022 – Aug 2022
Close Out	Sep 2022

All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement. If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District's inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the deadlines set forth in this Exhibit. If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in writing by the District.

#### EXHIBIT "D"

#### **PAYMENT SCHEDULE**

#### A. Compensation

- The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem expenses, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in **Exhibit** "A," or any other direct or indirect expenses incident to providing the Services. Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and **Exhibit** "B," there shall be no payment for extra costs or expenses.
- 2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
- District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:

Phase	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4	Task 5	Total
Construction Documents	\$82,500	\$8,700	\$123,300	\$25,025	\$8,250	\$247,775
Bidding	\$6,785	\$725	\$10,275	\$2,275	\$750	\$20,900
DSA				\$2,275	\$750	\$3,025
<b>Construction Administration</b>	\$41,250	\$4,350	\$61,650	\$13,650	\$4,500	\$125,400
Closeout	\$6,875	\$725	\$10,275	\$2,275	\$750	\$20,900
	\$137,500	\$14,500	\$205,500	\$45,500	\$15,000	\$418,000

#### B. Method of Payment

- 1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District's authorized representative.
- 2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
- 3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect's monthly pay request format.
- 4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect's invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:

#### a. For Construction Documents Phase:

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%)

payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents Phase by the District.

#### b. For Bidding Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon the District's award of the bid.

#### c. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon the District's notice of completion.

#### d. For Close Out:

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase.

#### EXHIBIT "E"

#### **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

- A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and Consultant(s). Architect's liabilities, including but not limited to Architect's indemnity or defense obligations, under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this Agreement and Architect's failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when requested, may be treated by the District as a material breach of contract.
- B. **Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance**: Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits:
  - 1. **Commercial General Liability.** One million dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.
  - 2. **Commercial Automobile Liability, Any Auto**. One million dollars (\$1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
  - 3. **Workers' Compensation Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation policy.
  - 4. **Employers' Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of Two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence.
  - 5. **Professional Liability**. This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000) per claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two (2) years thereafter.
- C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.

- D. **Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention**: Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000). At the option of the District, either:
  - 1. The District can accept the higher deductible;
  - 2. Architect's insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or
  - 3. Architect shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.
- E. **Other Insurance Provisions**: The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
  - The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers ("Additional Insureds") are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Architect; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Architect. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.
  - 2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
  - 3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
  - 4. Architect's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
  - 5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
  - 6. No policy may exclude insurance coverage for contractual indemnity and/or defense obligations, and all policies shall contain an endorsement specifying coverage for contractual indemnity and/or defense.
  - 7. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested,

has been given to the District.

- 8. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement.
- 9. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant's scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District's request. Should Architect not require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is required of Architect, as provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement.
- 10. If Architect normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the minimum amounts required herein, that greater amount shall become the minimum required amount of insurance for purposes of the Agreement. Therefore, Architect hereby acknowledges and agrees that all insurance carried by it shall be deemed liability coverage for all actions it performs in connection with the Agreement.
- F. **Acceptability of Insurers**: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best's rating less than A:VII. At the option of the District, the District may either:
  - 1. Accept the lower rating; or
  - 2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
- G. **Verification of Coverage**: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
  - 1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
  - 2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before Services commence.
- H. **Copy of Insurance Policy(ies)**: Upon the District's request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.

#### EXHIBIT "F"

#### **ROOFING PROJECT CERTIFICATION**

This form shall be executed by all architects, engineers, or roofing consultants who provide professional services related to the repair or replacement of a roof of a public school where the project is for repair of more than 25% of the roof or that has a total cost more than \$21,000 ("roofing project") and submitted to the District prior to the time professional services are engaged. Not applicable to a school district with an average daily attendance less than 2,500.

Certification of:	X Architect	🗆 Engineer
	Roofing Consultant	🗆 Other

I, <u>Brian Meyers</u>, <u>HMC Architects</u>, certify that I have not offered, given, or agreed to give, received, accepted, or agreed to accept, any gift, contribution, or any financial incentive whatsoever to or from any person in connection with the roofing project contract. As used in this certification, "person" means any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee, club, or other organization, entity, or group of individuals.

Furthermore, I, <u>Brian Meyers</u>, <u>HMC Architects</u>, certify that I do not have, and throughout the duration of the contract, I will not have, any financial relationship in connection with the performance of this contract with any architect, engineer, roofing consultant, materials manufacturer, distributor, or vendor that is not disclosed below.

By my signature below, I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the contents of this disclosure are true, or are believed to be true. I further certify on behalf of the Firm that I am aware of section 3000 *et seq.* of the California Public Contract Code, and the sections referenced therein regarding the penalties for providing false information or failing to disclose a financial relationship in this disclosure. I further certify that I am authorized to make this certification on behalf of the Firm.

Date:	1/20/2022
Proper Name of Firm:	HMC Group
Signature:	marka
Print Name:	Brian Meyers
Title:	Pre-K12 Practice Leader



# **Agreement for Architectural Services**

between

# **Sacramento City Unified School District**

and

Lionakis

# Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project

Dated: January 13, 2022

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1	Definitions	1
Article 2	Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect	3
Article 3	Architect Staff	7
Article 4	Schedule of Services	8
Article 5	Construction Cost Budget	9
Article 6	Fee and Method of Payment	
Article 7	Payment for Extra Services or Changes	
Article 8	Ownership of Data	
Article 9	Termination of Contract	
Article 10	Indemnity / Architect Liability	
Article 11	Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site	
Article 12	Responsibilities of the District	
Article 13	Liability of District	
Article 14	Nondiscrimination	
Article 15	Insurance	
Article 16	Covenant against Contingent Fees	
Article 17	Entire Agreement/Modification	
Article 18	Non-Assignment of Agreement	
Article 19	Law, Venue	
Article 20	Alternative Dispute Resolution	
Article 21	Tolling of Claims	
Article 22	Attorneys' Fees	
Article 23	Severability	
Article 24	Employment Status	
Article 25	Certificate of Architect	
Article 26	Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports	21
Article 27	Notice & Communications	21
Article 28	[RESERVED]	21
Article 29	District's Right to Audit	21
Article 30	Other Provisions	
Article 31	Exhibits "A" through "E"	23

EXHIBIT "A" – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT	A-1
EXHIBIT "B" – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES	B-1
EXHIBIT "C" – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES	C-1
EXHIBIT "D" – PAYMENT SCHEDULE	D-1
EXHIBIT "E" – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	E-1

#### AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of January 13, 2022, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district ("District"), and Lionakis ("Architect") (collectively "Parties"), for the following project ("Project"):

Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvements on the campus of Luther Burbank High School, 3500 Florin Road, Sacramento, CA 95823

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

#### Article 1. Definitions

- 1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
  - 1.1.1. <u>Agreement</u>: The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
  - 1.1.2. **Architect**: The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect. The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
  - 1.1.3. **As-Built Drawings ("As-Builts")**: Any document prepared and submitted by District's Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District's construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.
  - 1.1.4. **Bid Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect ("DSA") has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
  - 1.1.5. **Conforming Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase. The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA approval is required.

- 1.1.6. **Construction Budget**: The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
- 1.1.7. <u>Construction Change Documents ("CCD")</u>: The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- 1.1.8. **Construction Cost Budget**: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement. The Construction Cost Budget does not include the compensation of the Architect and the Architect's Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other costs which are the responsibility of the District, including construction management.
- 1.1.9. **Construction Manager**: The District's representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner's representative.
- 1.1.10. **Contractor**: One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
- 1.1.11. **Consultant(s)**: Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
- 1.1.12. **District**: The Sacramento City Unified School District.
- 1.1.13. **DSA**: The Division of the State Architect.
- 1.1.14. **Extra Services**: District-authorized services outside of the scope in **Exhibit "A"** or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect's Fee.
- 1.1.15. **Laboratory of Record**: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
- 1.1.16. **Project**: District's Luther Burbank Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvement Project Project at 3500 Florin Road, Sacramento, CA 95823.
- 1.1.17. **<u>Record Drawings</u>**: A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.

- 1.1.18. **Service(s)**: All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.
- 1.1.19. **Visually Verify**: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical observation and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

## Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect

- 2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in **Exhibit "A**," commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative. Architect's Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as **Exhibit "C**."
- 2.2. Architect and its Consultants shall provide Services for a Project: (i) using its professional skill and judgment; (ii) acting with due care and in accordance with respective applicable standards of care under California law for those providing similar services for projects of the size, scope and complexity of the Project for California school districts in or around the same geographic area of the District; (iii) the terms of this Agreement; and (iv) in accordance with said standards regarding application and interpretation of applicable law, code, rule or regulation at the time the Services are rendered ("Standard of Care"). All persons providing professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required under California law.
- 2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process. District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect's scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
- 2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are obligated to develop and implement the following storm water requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one (1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance (e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities.
  - 2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation:

- 24.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System ("MS4"). An MS4 is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm drains.
- 2.4.1.2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan ("SWPPP") that contains specific best management practices ("BMPs") and establishes numeric effluent limitations.
- 2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District's storm water requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District. In addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final development of the site. This drawing will also include a horizontal and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan. The Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of the Architect.
- 2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect's expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement. The names of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to commencement of Services, as indicated below. The District reserves the right to reject Architect's use of any particular Consultant. Nothing in the foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the Agreement. Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement.
- 2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related to the Project. This shall include, without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any. If the Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any.

- 2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects.
  - 2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or referenced in the following forms, bulletins ("BU"), interpretations of regulations ("IR"), policies ("PL"), or procedures ("PR"):
    - 2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal and Approval Process.
    - 2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School District, Contractor and Design Professional.
    - 2.7.1.3. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018.
    - 2.7.1.4. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-Counter ("OTC") Projects Using Bluebeam 2018.
    - 2.7.1.5. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process.
      - 2.7.1.5.1. Each of Architect's duties as provided in the DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be performed timely so as not to result in any delay to the Project.
    - 2.7.1.6. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process.
  - 2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission, for all projects submitted to DSA. Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating

to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control.

- 2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or federal agencies' approval for on-site and off-site work related to the Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.
- 2.9. Architect shall coordinate the work of the District's DSA project inspector(s) ("Project Inspector(s)") and the Laboratory of Record. Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory of Record.
- 2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its professional skill and attention. Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions ("Contract Documents") and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project Inspector(s). Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions in its own Contract Documents and that of its Subconsultants, but shall have no responsibility for District hired consultants.
- 2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information ("RFI"), providing RFI responses, and leading all coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and Contractors on the Project. The District reserves the right to retain the services of a Construction Manager at any time. The Construction Manager, if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District. The District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at any time. Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed by the Governing Board of the District. In addition, the District may have a constructability review of Architect's design documents. Architect shall conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any compensation as Extra Services for this activity.

- 2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may use on its website.
- 2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not responsible for:
  - 2.13.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.
  - 2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such information provided by District.
  - 2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no additional cost to the District.
  - 2.13.4. Historical significance report.
  - 2.13.5. Soils investigation.
  - 2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in **Exhibit "A."**
  - 2.13.7. Topographic surveys of existing conditions.
  - 2.13.8. State and local agency fees.
  - 2.13.9. Testing and inspection.

#### Article 3. Architect Staff

- 3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
- 3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect's firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:

Principal In Charge:	<u>Laura Knauss</u>
Project Director:	Brian Bell
Project Architect(s):	
Project Architect(s):	

Other:				
Major Consultants:				
Electrical:	LP and Associates			
Mechanical:	Capital Engineering			
Structural:	<u>Lionakis</u>			
Civil:	TBD			
Pool Consultant:	Aquatic Design Group			
Cost Estimator:	<u>Cumming</u>			
Door Hardware:	Opening Consultants			

- 3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect. In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve replacement personnel.
- 3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to the District. All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions stated in this paragraph.
- 3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect.
- 3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in "responsible charge" of persons who observe the construction.

### Article 4. Schedule of Services

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in **Exhibit "A**," so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule in **Exhibit "C**." Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement. It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect's or its Consultant(s)' reasonable control.

# Article 5. Construction Cost Budget

- 5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District's established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope. In accordance with **Exhibit "A**," the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project and at the completion of each design phase. The District and Construction Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget with the Architect.
- 5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in **Exhibit "A**," including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the District's written approval. Architect shall maintain cost controls throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost Budget.
- 5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur:
  - 5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the Construction Cost Budget.
  - 5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or rebid the Project within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids (exclusive of District and other agencies' review time) at no additional cost to the District.
  - 5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the District, without further obligation by either party.
  - 5.3.4. Within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as approved by the District) to bring the Project within the Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the District.
- 5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above:
  - 5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or

- 5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or
- 5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to uncontrollable events in the world economy.

## Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following ("Fee"):

An amount not to exceed Three Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars (\$360,000) based on the rates set forth in **Exhibit "D**."

- 6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect's error or omission.
- 6.5. The Architect's Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect's Fee, the Architect's Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
- 6.7. Neither the District's review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the District caused by Architect's failure to perform any of the Services furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in or around the same geographic area as the District.

### Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit** "**B**" only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed. If any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative, the District will not be obligated to pay for such service. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, Architect will be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit** "**B**" for Extra Services that the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative verbally requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the request from the Architect.

## Article 8. Ownership of Data

- 8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a nonexclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology ("CADD") (e.g., AutoCAD). Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format. As to any drawings that Architect provides in a CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all documents.
- 8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a "hard" copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information. The District agrees to release Architect from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) subsequent to it being given to the District.

- 8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter "Instruments of Service"), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way permitted by statute:
  - 8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
  - 8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
  - 8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
  - 8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
  - 8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.
- 8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect's knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction. In the event that the District uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect's full involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information that might identify Architect and its Consultants.

### Article 9. Termination of Contract

9.1. <u>District's Request for Assurances</u>: If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the District may advise Architect of in writing. Architect shall, within ten (10) days of District's request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the

requirements of the District's request for assurances. Architect's failure to provide such written assurances of performance and the required written plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause.

- 9.2. <u>District's Termination of Architect for Cause</u>: If Architect fails to perform Architect's duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect's material obligations under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect. In the event of a termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District for all Services performed until the notice of termination, but the District shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to the District's costs because of Architect's actions, errors, or omissions. District may, at its discretion, provide the Architect time to cure its default or breach.
- 9.3. <u>District's Termination of Architect for Convenience</u>: District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience. In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until the District's notice of termination for convenience.
- 9.4. <u>Architect's Termination of Agreement for Cause</u>: Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect. Such termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Architect to the District. Architect may invoice the District and the District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until Architect's notice of termination.
- 9.5. <u>Effect on Pre-Termination Services</u>: Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such termination.
- 9.6. <u>Ceasing Services upon Termination</u>: If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the

District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project. The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of termination.

9.7. <u>Project Suspension</u>: If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect's compensation shall be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the Architect's Services. Architect shall make every effort to maintain the same Project personnel after suspension. If the District suspends the Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice.

# Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability

To the fullest extent permitted by California law and in accordance with 10.1. California Civil Code section 2782.8, Architect shall indemnify, protect, and hold free and harmless the District, its agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees and members ("Indemnified Parties") from any and all actions, assessments, counts, citations, claims, costs, damages, demands, judgments, liabilities (legal, administrative or otherwise), losses, notices, expenses, fines, penalties, proceedings, responsibilities, violations, attorney's and consultants' fees and causes of action to property or persons, including personal injury and/or death ("Claim(s)"), to the extent that the Claim(s) arises out of, pertains to, or relates to, the negligence (active or passive, ordinary or gross), recklessness (ordinary or gross), or willful misconduct of Architect, its directors, officials, officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, subconsultants or agents arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performance of the Services, the Project, or this Agreement. Architect also has the duty to defend the Indemnified Parties from all Claims at Architect's own expense, including attorneys' fees and costs; however, in no event shall the cost to defend charged to the Architect exceed the Architect's proportionate percentage of fault. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, in the event one or more defendants is unable to pay its share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or dissolution of the business, the design professional shall meet and confer with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs. If a Claim arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's or the Architect's request, the District and the Architect agree to undertake good faith measures to allow the Architect to assist the District in resolving the dispute or litigation. The

Architect's assistance, described as "Mandatory Assistance" in Exhibit A, Section B.8, shall be provided at Architect's own expense and excluded from any reimbursement calculation. At the commencement of the Mandatory Assistance Phase, District and Architect shall also negotiate in good faith as to the scope and extent of further assistance, including consideration of a joint defense agreement if appropriate. During the Mandatory Assistance Phase, each Party shall be responsible for their own attorneys' fees and costs incurred; however, each Party reserves its rights pursuant to Civil Code section 2782.8.

- 10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim as defined in Article 10.1. These amounts may be paid by Architect to District or the District may in reasonable good faith withhold those costs from amounts owing to Architect, pending resolution of the dispute.
- 10.3. Architect's duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement until any such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute of limitations and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the District may have under the law or under this Agreement.

# Article 11. Fingerprinting and Other On-Site Requirements

- 11.1. The District has determined that Architect, its Consultants and their employees shall not interact with pupils, except under the immediate supervision and control of the pupil's parent or guardian or a school employee, so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation requirements of Education Code section 45125.2 shall not apply.
- 11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19. Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect's personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable terms in the CDPH's State Public Health Officer Orders.

# Article 12. Responsibilities of the District

- 12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect's Services.
- 12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors,

omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect's documents. Failure to provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, if any.

- 12.3. The District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall include: asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement documentation; and specifications related to said matters, which are to be incorporated into bid documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous materials consultant is furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of the Architect, the specifications shall include a note to the effect that the hazardous materials consultant's specifications are included in the Architect's bid documents for the District's convenience and have not been prepared or reviewed by the Architect. The note shall also direct questions about the hazardous materials consultant's specifications related to asbestos and lead paint survey and/or abatement documentation to the preparer of the hazardous materials consultant's specifications.
- 12.4. The District shall timely provide to the Architect all relevant information in its possession regarding the project that is necessary for performance of Architect's services.

# Article 13. Liability of District

- 13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District's financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services performed in connection with this Agreement.
- 13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

# Article 14. Nondiscrimination

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance by all of its subcontractor(s).

## Article 15. Insurance

- 15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in **Exhibit "E."**
- 15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in **Exhibit "E."**

## Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency.

### Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto. Architect shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no others.

### Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect's prior written

consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.

### Article 19. Law, Venue

- 19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
- 19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

### Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution

- 20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other party to the Agreement. The demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial written notice.
- 20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to the Architect's right to bring a civil action against the District. For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized by any applicable meet and confer process.
- 20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.

# Article 21. Tolling of Claims

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District's assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors' or

subcontractors' claims against District involving Architect's work, until the Contractors' or subcontractors' claims are finally resolved.

### Article 22. Attorneys' Fees

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, including consultants' fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as may be fixed by the court. The term "prevailing party" shall mean the party who received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.

## Article 23. Severability

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

### Article 24. Employment Status

- 24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such Services.
- 24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect's personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District employee.
- 24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of

collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability). The District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.

- 24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability).
- 24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of the District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a reduction in District's liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an employee.
- 24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

# Article 25. Certificate of Architect

- 25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
- 25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this Agreement.
- 25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain "public

works" and "maintenance" projects ("Prevailing Wage Laws"). Architect agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect and its Consultants' professional services to be provided under this Agreement.

#### Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars (\$5,000).

#### Article 27. Notice & Communications

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent to the following addresses:

#### **District**:

#### Architect:

Sacramento City Unified School District 5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824 ATTN: Contracts Office EMAIL: Jessica-sulli@scusd.edu Lionakis 1919 19<sup>th</sup> Street Sacramento, CA 95811 ATTN: Laura Knauss EMAIL: <u>laura.knauss@lionakis.com</u>

With a Copy to: Dannis Woliver Kelley 200 California Street #400 San Francisco, CA 94111 ATTN: Deidree Sakai, Esq.

Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt. Any notice sent by electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission. Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery. Any notice given by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail.

### Article 28. [RESERVED]

# Article 29. District's Right to Audit

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect's and any Consultant's premises to review and audit the Architect's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement ("District's Right"). The District's Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to retain copies, outside of Architect's premises, of any and all Project-related records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such

retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable law.

- 29.2. The District's Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement.
- 29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District's Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, or anticipated to be incurred.
- 29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon District's request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all requested records to the District.
- 29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
- 29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District's written request to review and audit any or all of Architect's Project-related records and information.

# Article 30. Other Provisions

- 30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter of the Agreement.
- 30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.
- 30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All

counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the Parties hereto.

- 30.4. Architect shall issue a credit to the District as an offset to the Architect's Fee, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the actual tax benefit derived by the Architect or its shareholders, after deducting associated tax consulting fees based on the Project per Internal Revenue Code section 179D (the Energy Efficient Commercial Buildings deduction).
- **Article 31. Exhibits "A"** through **"E"** attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT		LIONAKIS	
By:	Rose Ramos Chief Business Officer	Ву:	Laura-Knauss Principal-in-Charge
Date:		Date:	1/31/2022

# EXHIBIT "A"

# **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Α.	SCOPE OF PROJECT	1
B.	BASIC SERVICES	1
C.	SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE	4
D.	DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE	8
Ε.	CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE	
F.	BIDDING PHASE	
G.	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE	
H.		
I.	MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS	

# EXHIBIT "A"

## **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following:

### SCOPE OF PROJECT

Project Name: Luther Burbank High School Pool Replacement and Locker Room Improvements

Construction Cost Budget: \$3,000,000 (budget)

- Complete removal and replacement of a 6-lane x 25-yard swimming pool and mechanical / chemical systems.
- Complete removal and replacement of the swimming pool deck and deck drainage system.
- Evaluation of the existing pool equipment area including chemical storage and aquatic equipment storage areas for code compliance, systems efficiency, and ease of personnel access.
- Coordination with SCUSD M&O personnel to validate / confirm existing mechanical systems that have been decommissioned and/or still operational in the existing boiler room; i.e. storage tanks, boilers, compressors, pumps, etc. This space could possibly be repurposed for pool equipment storage; i.e. lane lines, covers, etc. due to the limited pool deck space available.
- Evaluation of existing accessibility constraints due to the lowered pool deck; possibly raising the pool elevation to be level with adjacent walkways, locker rooms, etc. This will increase the amount of usable pool deck area for possible bleacher placement.
- Development of a new security and decorative fencing / screen wall for along the north edge of the egress hallway
- Preparation of locker replacement plans and elevations for both the Boy's and Girl's Locker Rooms to meet current ADA compliance requirements.
- Removal of the existing shower areas for both the Boy's and Girl's Locker Rooms to possibly expand the locker areas. Provide the CBC minimum number of showers in stall configurations with more privacy; including possible pool deck shower areas.

Site related scope of work shall include: utility extensions as required including roof drain tie-ins at the pool deck area, upgrades as required for accessibility (ADA) improvements within scope of work, emergency access, egress, etc.

### **BASIC SERVICES**

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:

1. Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all

master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District. Architect shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.

- 2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance. Architect shall advise the District of the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each stage of design. Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and disclosed information.
- 3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect's scope of work. This information shall include, if available,
  - a. As-builts;
  - b. Physical characteristics;
  - c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
  - d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
  - e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
  - f. Adjacent drainage;
  - g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
  - h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
  - i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
  - j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
  - k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the documents provided by the District.

If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires: a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that information. If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as Extra Services.

4. **Mandatory Assistance.** If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation ("Mandatory Assistance").

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

## C. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE

Architect shall prepare for the District's review a Schematic Design Study, containing the following items as applicable to the Project scope, as follows:

- Prepare and review with District staff a scope of work list and work plan identifying specific tasks including, but not limited to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, planning, architectural programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and estimating that are part of the work of the Project. Also identified will be milestone activities or dates, specific task responsibilities of the Architect, required completion times necessary for the review and approval by the District and by pertinent regulatory agencies and additional definition of deliverables.
- 2. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications.

### 3. Architectural

- a. Scaled floor plans showing overall dimensions, identifying the various major areas and their relationship. Include circulation and room-by-room tabulation of all net usable floor areas and a summary of gross floor area. Also, provide typical layouts of major equipment or operational layout.
- b. Preliminary building exterior elevations and sections in sufficient detail to demonstrate design concept indicating location and size of fenestration.
- c. Preliminary Building Code Analysis and Plumbing Fixture County identifying ADA requirements that will influence the design.
- d. Identify minimum finish requirements, including ceiling, floors, walls, doors, windows, and types of hardware.
- e. Identify code requirements, include occupancy classification(s) and type of construction.

### 4. Mechanical

- a. Show selected system on drawings as follows:
  - (i) Single line drawing(s) of all mechanical equipment spaces, ductwork and pipe chases.
  - (ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major equipment and duct work in allocated spaces.

- (iii) Schematic piping.
- (iv) Temperature control zoning.
- b. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project.
- c. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to accommodate the increase.

### 5. Electrical

- a. Calculate overall approximate electrical loads.
- b. Identify proposed electrical system for service, power, lighting, low voltage and communication loads, including proposed or planned additional buildings or other facilities on the Project site.
- c. Show system(s) selected on drawings as follows:
  - (i) Single line drawing(s) showing major distribution system.
  - (ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major electrical systems and components including:
    - (A) Load centers.
    - (B) Main panels.
    - (C) Switch gear.
- d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project.
- e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to accommodate the increase.

### 6. **Civil**

- a. Develop on site utility systems such as sewer, water, storm drain, firewater lines and fire hydrants.
- b. Identify surface improvements including walkways, preliminary finish grades and drainage.

c. Coordinate finish floor elevations with architectural site plan.

# 7. Specifications

Prepare outline specifications of proposed architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical materials, systems and equipment and their criteria and quality standards. Architect is to use District's standardized equipment/material list for new construction and modernization in development of the Project design and specifications. Architect shall review and comment on District's construction bid contracts and contract documents (the "Division 0" and "Division 1" documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement.

# 8. Construction Cost Budget

A.

Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the preceding Phase, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost Budget:

- Schematic Estimates: This estimate consists of unit cost applied to the major items and quantities of work. The unit cost shall reflect the complete direct current cost of work. Complete cost includes labor, material, waste allowance, sales tax and subcontractor's mark-up.
  - (i) General conditions shall be applied separately. This estimate shall be prepared by specification section and summarized by the CSI categories.
- b. The estimate shall separate the Project's building cost from site and utilities cost. Architect shall submit to the District the cost estimating format for prior review and approval.
- c. Escalation: all estimates shall be priced out at current market conditions. The estimates shall incorporate all adjustments as appropriate, relating to mid-point construction, contingency, and cost index (i.e. Lee Saylor Index).
- d. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect; however, the priorities will be established at the completion of the Schematic Design phase by the District should the requested scope as determined in this phase exceed the original budget.
- e. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District and Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.

f. At the end of this Phase, the Construction Cost Budget may include design contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates.

#### 9. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Breakdown of Construction Cost Budget as prepared for this Phase;
- b. Meeting reports/minutes;
- c. Schematic Design Package with alternatives;
- d. Statement indicating changes made to the Architectural Program and Schedule; and
- e. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.

#### 10. Presentation

- a. Architect shall present and review with the District the detailed Schematic Design.
- b. The Schematic Design shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District.

#### 11. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

### D. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted deliverables from the Schematic Design Phase, the Design Development Phase documents consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect's scope of services:

#### 1. Architectural

- a. Scaled, dimensioned floor plans with final room locations including all openings.
- b. 1/8" scale building sections showing dimensional relationships, materials and component relationships.
- c. Exterior elevations of existing buildings to be renovated and all architectural elements of the Project.
- d. Identification of all fixed equipment to be installed in Project.
- e. Interior finishes identified and located within the rooms of all buildings.
- f. Site plan completely drawn with beginning notes and dimensions including grading and paving.
- g. Preliminary development of details and large scale blow-ups.
- h. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings.
- i. Floor plans identifying all fixed and major movable equipment and furniture.
- j. Further refinement of Outline Specifications for architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, civil and landscape manuals, systems and equipment.
- k. Typical reflected ceiling development including ceiling grid and heights for each ceiling to be used, showing:
  - (i) Light fixtures.
  - (ii) Ceiling registers or diffusers.
  - (iii) Access Panels.

## 2. Structural

- a. Structural drawings with all major members located and sized.
- b. Establish final building and floor elevations.
- c. Preliminary specifications.
- d. Preliminary calculations for the structural systems including lateral force resistive systems, foundations, and all structural system components.
- e. Identify foundation requirement (including fill requirement, piles) with associated soil pressure, water table and seismic center.

### 3. Mechanical

- a. Heating and cooling load calculations as required and major duct or pipe runs sized to interface with structural.
- b. Major mechanical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity.
- c. Ductwork and piping should be substantially located and sized.
- d. Plumbing plans for the Project shall indicate numbers and locations of fixtures and be in conformance with the code-mandated fixture count requirements of the Project.
- e. Devices in ceiling should be located.
- f. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings.
- g. More developed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture.
- h. Control Systems identified.
- i. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to accommodate the increase.

### 4. Electrical

- a. All lighting fixtures should be located and scheduled showing all types and quantities of fixtures to be used, including proposed lighting levels for each usable space.
- b. All major electrical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity.

- c. Complete electrical distribution including a one-line diagram indicating final location of switchboards, communications, controls (high and low voltage), motor control centers, panels, transformers and emergency generators, if required. Low-voltage system includes fire alarm system, security system, clock and public address system, bell system, voice-data system, and telecom/technology system.
- d. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings.
- e. More developed and detailed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture.
- f. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to accommodate the increase.

# 5. **Civil**

- a. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase development of on and off site utility systems for sewer, electrical, water, storm drain and fire water. Includes, without limitation, pipe sizes, materials, invert elevation location and installation details.
- b. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase walkways, and storm drainage improvements.

# 6. Bid Documents

Architect shall review and comment on District's construction bid contracts and contract documents (the "Division 0" documents and "Division 1" documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement.

# 7. Construction Cost Budget

- a. Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the Agreement and the preceding Phases, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost Budget:
  - (i) Design Development Estimate: This further revised estimate shall be prepared by specification section, summarized by CSI category and divided by trade and work item. The estimate shall include individual item unit costs of materials, labor and equipment. Sales tax, Contractor's mark-ups, and general conditions shall be listed separately.

- (ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.
- (iii) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates.
- b. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, the Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.

## 8. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Design Development drawing set from all professional disciplines necessary to deliver the Project;
- b. Specifications;
- c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; and
- d. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.

The Design Development deliverables shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District.

### 9. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

## E. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect's scope of work. All Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission.

# 1. Construction Documents ("CD") 100% Stage:

### a. General

Endeavor to determine lead times and availability of all Project equipment, materials, and supplies and ensure that all of these will be available to the Contractor in a timely fashion so as not to delay the Project.

### b. Architectural

- (i) Completed site plan.
- (ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections.
- (iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed.
- (iv) Finish, door, and hardware schedules completed, including all details.
- (v) Fixed equipment details and identification completed.
- (vi) Reflected ceiling plans completed.

#### c. Structural

- (i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing completed.
- (ii) Structural calculations completed.

#### d. Mechanical

- (i) Large scale mechanical details complete.
- (ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed.
- (iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment.

(iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report.

### e. **Electrical**

- (i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls. Fixture schedule and lighting details completed.
- (ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed.
- (iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed.
- (iv) Special system components plans completed.
- (v) Electrical load calculations completed.

### f. Civil

All site plans, site utilities, and drainage systems completed.

## g. Construction Cost Budget

- (i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the Design Development Phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget.
- (ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.
- (iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.
- (iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates.

# h. Specifications

(i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria required for the construction of the Project.

- (ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by specific brand or trade name unless:
  - (A) The specification is followed by the words "or equal" so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public Contract Code section 3400, or
  - (B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400.
- (iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with District's prior approval.
- (iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District.
- (v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other disciplines.
- (vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format.

### i. Constructability Review

The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a constructability review of the Construction Documents. A report shall be given to the Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments for each item listed in the report. Conducting a constructability review does not excuse the Architect's obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law.

### j. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- (i) Working drawings;
- (ii) Specifications;
- (iii) Engineering calculations;

- (iv) Construction Cost Budgets;
- (v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance with Construction Documents and applicable codes;
- (vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, backcheck comments, checklists to date; and
- (vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved Construction Cost Budget. If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur between disciplines, identify for District review.

## 2. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage:

- a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, specifications, and estimate. All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall be at no additional cost to the District.
- b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the Architect's work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following:
  - (i) Drawings: Original tracings of all drawings on Architect's tracing paper with each Architect/Consultant's State license stamp.
  - (ii) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible masters in CSI format.
- c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants' completed Contract Documents.
- d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA.

### 3. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

### F. BIDDING PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for District as follows:

- 1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
- 2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
- 3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect. Nevertheless, Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.
- 4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect.
- 5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for decision by the District as to the proper procedure required. Corrective action will be in the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.
- 6. Attend bid opening.
- 7. Coordinate with Consultants.
- 8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
- 9. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and

## G. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract Administration Phase services for the District as follows:

1. Architect's responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District's terminating the Agreement, whichever is earlier.

### 2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process

- a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project by submitting the applicable Inspector's Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 152 or more current version).
- b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards (forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been awarded. Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior to commencement of construction.
- c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record.
- d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more current version) for all construction contracts.
- e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved construction documents. Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.
- f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary.

- h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off that section of the project inspection card.
- i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more current version) to the DSA.
- j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur: (1) when construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) DSA requests a Verified Report.

# 3. Change Orders

- a. Architect shall review all of Contractor's change order requests to determine if those requests are valid and appropriate. Architect shall provide a recommendation to District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.
- b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change orders. The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as Extra Services by the District. The original drawings and contract wording for change orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and distribution.

### 4. Submittals

- a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.
- b. Architect shall review Contractor's schedule of submittals and advise the District on whether that schedule is complete. Architect shall provide the District with proposed revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should approve this schedule.
- c. Architect's action upon Contractor's submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in

the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to permit adequate review. In no case shall the review period associated with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt by the Architect. Architect's response to each submittal shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.

- 5. **RFIs.** During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must respond to all Requests for Information ("RFI") as expeditiously as possible so as not to impact and delay the construction progress. In no case shall the review period associated with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect unless the complexity of the RFI warrants a longer time period for the review as reasonably agreed to by both parties. Architect's response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This seven-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce the Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents. Architect must verify that RFIs are passed through the Project Inspector, if any.
- 6. **Notices of Deficient Work**. On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard the District against defects and deficiencies in the work. Architect shall timely notify the District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District's Contractors that Architect may observe. However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of the Contractor's performance. Further, the Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the work. These are the responsibility of the General Contractor.
- 7. **Record Drawings.** Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District. The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the construction Contractor's representations of actual construction. Architect shall deliver the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District's approval of Architect's final payment. Architect may insert the following notice on the Record Drawings:

These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others. Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

- 8. **O&M Manuals and Warranties.** Architect shall review equipment, operation and maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and specifications.
- 9. **Start-up.** Architect shall also provide, at the District's request, architectural/engineering advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the acceptance of the Contractor's work.
- 10. **Payment Statements.** Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect's representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best of Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in general conformance with the Contract Documents.

### 11. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Observation reports; and
- c. Weekly meeting reports.

### 12. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

### [REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# H. CLOSE OUT PHASE

- 1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner:
  - a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion.
  - b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect's recommendation as to the adequacy of these items.
  - c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project.
  - d. Architect shall respond to the DSA "90-day" letter.
  - e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents and addenda to the Contractor's contract.
  - f. Architect shall prepare a set of Record Drawings for the Project, as required by the District.
  - g. Architect shall review all warranty and O&M documentation prepared by the General Contractor.
  - h. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to closeout the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.
- 2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project.

### 3. Deliverables and Number of Copies

- a. Punch list; and
- b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including Record Drawings. These are the sole property of the District.

### 4. Meetings

During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

# I. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS

 Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below. Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all coordination meetings with its Consultant(s) during the entire design phase. Architect shall invite the District and/or its representative to participate in these meetings. Architect shall keep a separate log to document design/coordination comments generated in these meetings.

# 2. General Meeting, Site Visit, and Workshop Requirements

- a. Architect shall always be prepared to answer questions and issues from District staff, site staff, potential bidders, and/or Contractors, as applicable.
- b. Architect shall maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or site observations held in conjunction with the design and construction of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions, questions or comments. These shall be furnished to the District and/or its representative for inclusion in the overall Project documentation.
- c. As required, Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.
- d. Each meeting may last up to four hours and shall be held at the District office or at the Project site, unless otherwise indicated.

# 3. Initial Site Visits (One (1) meeting(s))

a. Architect shall visit the Project site to complete a visual inventory and documentation of the existing conditions.

### 4. Meetings During Schematic Design Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. Within the first two weeks following the start of the Schematic Design Phase, Architect shall conduct one (1) design meeting with the District's facilities team and site personnel to complete a basic design framework with computer-aided design equipment ("CADD"). The District may, at its discretion, allow Architect to proceed with this meeting without using CADD. This meeting shall include the following:
  - (i) Architect shall designate its team member duties and responsibilities.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall review District goals and expectations.
  - (iii) District shall provide input and requirements.

- (iv) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
- (v) Prepare and/or revise the scope of work list and general work plan from the Pre-Design Phase, for documentation in a computer-generated Project schedule.
- (vi) Establish methods to facilitate the communication and coordination efforts for the Project.
- b. Architect shall participate in One (1) additional meeting to review the schematic design package and opinion of probable cost and confirm any design alternates that may be required.

# 5. Meetings During Design Development Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. At approximately mid-point of the Design Development phase, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting with District personnel and applicable engineering sub-consultants to confirm District standards and preferred systems.
- b. At the time designated for completion of the Design Development package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting, per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present the Design Development package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specification.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget. At this time, proposed design alternates that may be required to ensure compliance with the District's Construction Budget will be determined.

# 6. Meetings During Construction Documents Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. At approximately the time designated for completion of the fifty percent (50%) submittal package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present progress on the Construction Documents submittal package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.

- b. At the time designated for completion of the one hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package, concurrent with review by the Division of the State Architect, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present the hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.

# 7. Meetings During Bidding Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. Attend and take part in One (1) pre-bid meeting(s), per package or submittal, with all potential bidders, District staff, and Construction Manager.
- b. Conduct One (1) kick-off meeting(s) with the successful bidder, District staff, and Construction Manager to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each party and provide protocols and processes to follow during construction.

# 8. Meetings During Construction Administration Phase (weekly Project meetings until entire Project is complete, (6-month construction schedule assumed))

- a. Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepancies in the Contract Documents and to monitor the progress of the construction of the Project.
- b. Conduct weekly Project meetings with District staff to review with District staff the progress of the work. Architect agrees to attend weekly Project meetings, at no additional cost to the District, until the work of the Project is complete.
- c. Architect shall ensure that Consultant(s) visit the site in conformance with their agreement(s) and that Consultant agreements shall reference District requirements for Construction Phase services.

### END OF EXHIBIT

### EXHIBIT "B"

### **CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES**

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:

- A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within **Exhibit "A."**
- B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A." Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A," so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct Architect to procure the deliverables at the District's expense or on the District's account at a specific vendor.
- C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
- D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
- E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
- F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement.
- G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
- H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.

Job Title	Hourly Rate
Principal In Charge:	\$250
Associate Principal:	\$240
Project Manager (Senior):	\$200
Designer:	\$130 - \$150
Assistant Project Manager:	\$190
Architect:	\$165 - \$190

Contract Administrator:	
Other	
Other	

- I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
  - 1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
    - a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
  - 2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.

### J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect's invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed. For example, a six hour charge for "RFIs and CORs" is unacceptable and will not be payable. A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is required. This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order. For example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this Agreement, would be payable. The times indicated below are just placeholders:

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, district, construction manager, and project inspector.	0.8 hours
Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and language for same.	0.7 hours
Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR.	1.2 hours

END OF EXHIBIT

# EXHIBIT "C"

# SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

- A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect proposes to carry out Architect's Services ("Schedule of Services"). The Schedule of Services shall apply to the completion of all Services listed hereunder within the times established by this Agreement. The Schedule of Services shall be in the form of a progress chart clearly delineating all important increments and review dates.
- B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Schematic Design Phase within <u>30</u> calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed.
- C. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within<u>30</u> **calendar days** after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed.
- D. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within <u>60</u> calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically indicated below. Excluded from this duration is the time associated with DSA review the Construction Documents back-check stage.
  - 1. 100% Submittal Package

# 60 calendar days

E. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement. If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District's inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the deadlines set forth in this Exhibit. If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in writing by the District.

END OF EXHIBIT

## EXHIBIT "D"

# PAYMENT SCHEDULE

### A. Compensation

- The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem expenses, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit "A," or any other direct or indirect expenses incident to providing the Services. Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and Exhibit "B," there shall be no payment for extra costs or expenses.
- 2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
- 3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FEE PER PHASE		
Phase	Phase Amount	
Schematic Design Phase	<u>10%</u>	
Design Development Phase	<u>15%</u>	
Construction Documents Phase-Submittal to DSA	<u>30%</u>	
Approval by DSA	<u>10%</u>	
Bidding Phase	<u>5%</u>	
Construction Contract Administration Phase	<u>25%</u>	
Close Out Phase	<u>5%</u>	
TOTAL BASE COMPENSATION	<u>100%</u>	

### B. Method of Payment

- 1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District's authorized representative.
- 2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
- 3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect's monthly pay request format.
- 4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect's invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:

# a. For Schematic Design Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by the District.

# b. For Design Development Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Design Development Phase by the District.

### c. For Construction Documents Phase:

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents Phase by the District.

### d. For Bidding Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon the District's award of the bid.

### e. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon the District's notice of completion.

### f. For Close Out:

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase.

### END OF EXHIBIT

## EXHIBIT "E"

# **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

- A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and Consultant(s). Architect's liabilities, including but not limited to Architect's indemnity or defense obligations, under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this Agreement and Architect's failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when requested, may be treated by the District as a material breach of contract.
- B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability coverages that at least follow form over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for Commercial General Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability, Employers' Liability, and other liability coverage (except Professional Liability) designated under this Section B Insurance Requirements." Minimum Scope of Insurance.
  - 1. **Commercial General Liability.** Two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.
  - 2. **Commercial Automobile Liability**. One million dollars (\$1,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage.
  - 3. **Workers' Compensation Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation policy.
  - 4. **Employers' Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of Two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence.
  - 5. **Professional Liability**. This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$200,000) per claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two (2) years thereafter.

- C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.
- D. **Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention**: Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$200,000). At the option of the District, either:
  - 1. The District can accept the higher deductible; or
  - 2. Architect's insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.
- E. **Other Insurance Provisions**: The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
  - The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers ("Additional Insureds") are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Architect; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Architect. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.
  - 2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
  - 3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
  - 4. Architect's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
  - 5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
  - 6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.
  - 7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain

insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement.

- 8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant's scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District's request. Should Architect not require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is required of Architect, as provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement.
- F. **Acceptability of Insurers**: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best's rating less than A:VII. At the option of the District, the District may either:
  - 1. Accept the lower rating; or
  - 2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
- G. **Verification of Coverage**: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
  - 1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
  - 2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before Services commence.
- H. **Copy of Insurance Policy(ies)**: Upon the District's request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.

END OF EXHIBIT



# **Agreement for Architectural Services**

between

# **Sacramento City Unified School District**

and

Lionakis

Kit Carson Buildings B, C, D & E HVAC Modernization Project

Dated: January 13, 2022

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1	Definitions	1
Article 2	Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect	3
Article 3	Architect Staff	7
Article 4	Schedule of Services	8
Article 5	Construction Cost Budget	9
Article 6	Fee and Method of Payment	
Article 7	Payment for Extra Services or Changes	11
Article 8	Ownership of Data	11
Article 9	Termination of Contract	12
Article 10	Indemnity / Architect Liability	14
Article 11	Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site	15
Article 12	Responsibilities of the District	15
Article 13	Liability of District	16
Article 14	Nondiscrimination	16
Article 15	Insurance	17
Article 16	Covenant against Contingent Fees	17
Article 17	Entire Agreement/Modification	17
Article 18	Non-Assignment of Agreement	17
Article 19	Law, Venue	
Article 20	Alternative Dispute Resolution	
Article 21	Tolling of Claims	
Article 22	Attorneys' Fees	
Article 23	Severability	
Article 24	Employment Status	
Article 25	Certificate of Architect	
Article 26	Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports	21
Article 27	Notice & Communications	21
Article 28	[RESERVED]	21
Article 29	District's Right to Audit	21
Article 30	Other Provisions	
Article 31	Exhibits "A" through "E"	23

EXHIBIT "A" – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT	A-1
EXHIBIT "B" – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES	B-1
EXHIBIT "C" – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES	C-1
EXHIBIT "D" – PAYMENT SCHEDULE	D-1
EXHIBIT "E" – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	E-1

#### AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of January 13, 2022, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district ("District"), and Lionakis ("Architect") (collectively "Parties"), for the following project ("Project"):

HVAC modernization of buildings B, C, D and E on the campus of Kit Carson International Academy, 5301 N Street, Sacramento, CA 95819

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

### Article 1. Definitions

- 1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
  - 1.1.1. **<u>Agreement</u>**: The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
  - 1.1.2. **Architect**: The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect. The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
  - 1.1.3. **As-Built Drawings ("As-Builts")**: Any document prepared and submitted by District's Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District's construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.
  - 1.1.4. **Bid Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect ("DSA") has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
  - 1.1.5. **Conforming Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase. The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA approval is required.

- 1.1.6. **Construction Budget**: The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
- 1.1.7. <u>Construction Change Documents ("CCD")</u>: The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- 1.1.8. **Construction Cost Budget**: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement. The Construction Cost Budget does not include the compensation of the Architect and the Architect's Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other costs which are the responsibility of the District, including construction management.
- 1.1.9. **Construction Manager**: The District's representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner's representative.
- 1.1.10. **<u>Contractor</u>**: One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
- 1.1.11. **Consultant(s)**: Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
- 1.1.12. **District**: The Sacramento City Unified School District.
- 1.1.13. **DSA**: The Division of the State Architect.
- 1.1.14. **Extra Services**: District-authorized services outside of the scope in **Exhibit "A"** or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect's Fee.
- 1.1.15. **Laboratory of Record**: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
- 1.1.16. **Project**: District's Kit Carson Buildings B, C, D & E HVAC Modernization Project at 5301 N Street, Sacramento, CA 95819.
- 1.1.17. **<u>Record Drawings</u>**: A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.

- 1.1.18. **Service(s)**: All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.
- 1.1.19. **Visually Verify**: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical observation and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

# Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect

- 2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in **Exhibit "A**," commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative. Architect's Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as **Exhibit "C**."
- 2.2. Architect and its Consultants shall provide Services for a Project: (i) using its professional skill and judgment; (ii) acting with due care and in accordance with respective applicable standards of care under California law for those providing similar services for projects of the size, scope and complexity of the Project for California school districts in or around the same geographic area of the District; (iii) the terms of this Agreement; and (iv) in accordance with said standards regarding application and interpretation of applicable law, code, rule or regulation at the time the Services are rendered ("Standard of Care"). All persons providing professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required under California law.
- 2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process. District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect's scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
- 2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are obligated to develop and implement the following storm water requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one (1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance (e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities.
  - 2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation:

- 24.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System ("MS4"). An MS4 is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm drains.
- 2.4.1.2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan ("SWPPP") that contains specific best management practices ("BMPs") and establishes numeric effluent limitations.
- 2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District's storm water requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District. In addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final development of the site. This drawing will also include a horizontal and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan. The Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of the Architect.
- 2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect's expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement. The names of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to commencement of Services, as indicated below. The District reserves the right to reject Architect's use of any particular Consultant. Nothing in the foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the Agreement. Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement.
- 2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related to the Project. This shall include, without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any. If the Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any.

- 2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects.
  - 2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or referenced in the following forms, bulletins ("BU"), interpretations of regulations ("IR"), policies ("PL"), or procedures ("PR"):
    - 2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal and Approval Process.
    - 2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School District, Contractor and Design Professional.
    - 2.7.1.3. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018.
    - 2.7.1.4. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-Counter ("OTC") Projects Using Bluebeam 2018.
    - 2.7.1.5. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process.
      - 2.7.1.5.1. Each of Architect's duties as provided in the DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be performed timely so as not to result in any delay to the Project.
    - 2.7.1.6. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process.
  - 2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission, for all projects submitted to DSA. Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating

to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control.

- 2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or federal agencies' approval for on-site and off-site work related to the Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.
- 2.9. Architect shall coordinate the work of the District's DSA project inspector(s) ("Project Inspector(s)") and the Laboratory of Record. Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory of Record.
- 2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its professional skill and attention. Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions ("Contract Documents") and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project Inspector(s). Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions in its own Contract Documents and that of its Subconsultants, but shall have no responsibility for District hired consultants.
- 2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information ("RFI"), providing RFI responses, and leading all coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and Contractors on the Project. The District reserves the right to retain the services of a Construction Manager at any time. The Construction Manager, if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District. The District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at any time. Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed by the Governing Board of the District. In addition, the District may have a constructability review of Architect's design documents. Architect shall conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any compensation as Extra Services for this activity.

- 2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may use on its website.
- 2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not responsible for:
  - 2.13.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.
  - 2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such information provided by District.
  - 2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no additional cost to the District.
  - 2.13.4. Historical significance report.
  - 2.13.5. Soils investigation.
  - 2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in **Exhibit "A."**
  - 2.13.7. Topographic surveys of existing conditions.
  - 2.13.8. State and local agency fees.
  - 2.13.9. Testing and inspection.

#### Article 3. Architect Staff

- 3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
- 3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect's firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:

Principal In Charge:Laura KnaussProject Director:Brian BellProject Architect(s):Vince NietoProject Architect(s):\_\_\_\_\_\_

Other:	Specifications: Lionakis
Major Consultants:	
Electrical:	Engineering Enterprise
Mechanical:	Capital Engineering
Structural:	<u>Lionakis</u>
Cost Estimatir	ng: <u>Sierra West</u>

- 3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect. In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve replacement personnel.
- 3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to the District. All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions stated in this paragraph.
- 3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect.
- 3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in "responsible charge" of persons who observe the construction.

### Article 4. Schedule of Services

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in **Exhibit "A**," so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule in **Exhibit "C**." Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement. It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect's or its Consultant(s)' reasonable control.

# Article 5. Construction Cost Budget

- 5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District's established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope. In accordance with **Exhibit "A**," the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project and at the completion of each design phase. The District and Construction Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget with the Architect.
- 5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in **Exhibit "A**," including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the District's written approval. Architect shall maintain cost controls throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost Budget.
- 5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur:
  - 5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the Construction Cost Budget.
  - 5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or rebid the Project within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids (exclusive of District and other agencies' review time) at no additional cost to the District.
  - 5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the District, without further obligation by either party.
  - 5.3.4. Within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as approved by the District) to bring the Project within the Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the District.
- 5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above:
  - 5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
  - 5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to uncontrollable events in the world economy.

# Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following ("Fee"):

An amount not to exceed Two Hundred Eighty-Nine Thousand Dollars (\$289,000) based on the rates set forth in **Exhibit "D"** and a construction budget of \$2,500,000.

- 6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of **Exhibit** "**D**."
- 6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect's error or omission.
- 6.5. The Architect's Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect's Fee, the Architect's Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
- 6.7. Neither the District's review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the District caused by Architect's failure to perform any of the Services furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in or around the same geographic area as the District.

# Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit** "**B**" only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed. If any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative, the District will not be obligated to pay for such service. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, Architect will be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit** "**B**" for Extra Services that the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative verbally requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the request from the Architect.

# Article 8. Ownership of Data

- 8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a nonexclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology ("CADD") (e.g., AutoCAD). Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format. As to any drawings that Architect provides in a CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all documents.
- 8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a "hard" copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information. The District agrees to release Architect from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) subsequent to it being given to the District.

- 8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter "Instruments of Service"), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way permitted by statute:
  - 8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
  - 8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
  - 8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
  - 8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
  - 8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.
- 8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect's knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction. In the event that the District uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect's full involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information that might identify Architect and its Consultants.

### Article 9. Termination of Contract

9.1. <u>District's Request for Assurances</u>: If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the District may advise Architect of in writing. Architect shall, within ten (10) days of District's request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the

requirements of the District's request for assurances. Architect's failure to provide such written assurances of performance and the required written plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause.

- 9.2. District's Termination of Architect for Cause: If Architect fails to perform Architect's duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect's material obligations under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect. In the event of a termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District for all Services performed until the notice of termination, but the District shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to the District's costs because of Architect's actions, errors, or omissions. District may, at its discretion, provide the Architect time to cure its default or breach.
- 9.3. <u>District's Termination of Architect for Convenience</u>: District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience. In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until the District's notice of termination for convenience.
- 9.4. <u>Architect's Termination of Agreement for Cause</u>: Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect. Such termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Architect to the District. Architect may invoice the District and the District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until Architect's notice of termination.
- 9.5. <u>Effect on Pre-Termination Services</u>: Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such termination.
- 9.6. <u>Ceasing Services upon Termination</u>: If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the

District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project. The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of termination.

9.7. <u>Project Suspension</u>: If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect's compensation shall be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the Architect's Services. Architect shall make every effort to maintain the same Project personnel after suspension. If the District suspends the Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice.

# Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability

To the fullest extent permitted by California law and in accordance with 10.1. California Civil Code section 2782.8, Architect shall indemnify, protect, and hold free and harmless the District, its agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees and members ("Indemnified Parties") from any and all actions, assessments, counts, citations, claims, costs, damages, demands, judgments, liabilities (legal, administrative or otherwise), losses, notices, expenses, fines, penalties, proceedings, responsibilities, violations, attorney's and consultants' fees and causes of action to property or persons, including personal injury and/or death ("Claim(s)"), to the extent that the Claim(s) arises out of, pertains to, or relates to, the negligence (active or passive, ordinary or gross), recklessness (ordinary or gross), or willful misconduct of Architect, its directors, officials, officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, subconsultants or agents arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performance of the Services, the Project, or this Agreement. Architect also has the duty to defend the Indemnified Parties from all Claims at Architect's own expense, including attorneys' fees and costs; however, in no event shall the cost to defend charged to the Architect exceed the Architect's proportionate percentage of fault. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, in the event one or more defendants is unable to pay its share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or dissolution of the business, the design professional shall meet and confer with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs. If a Claim arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's or the Architect's request, the District and the Architect agree to undertake good faith measures to allow the Architect to assist the District in resolving the dispute or litigation. The

Architect's assistance, described as "Mandatory Assistance" in Exhibit A, Section B.8, shall be provided at Architect's own expense and excluded from any reimbursement calculation. At the commencement of the Mandatory Assistance Phase, District and Architect shall also negotiate in good faith as to the scope and extent of further assistance, including consideration of a joint defense agreement if appropriate. During the Mandatory Assistance Phase, each Party shall be responsible for their own attorneys' fees and costs incurred; however, each Party reserves its rights pursuant to Civil Code section 2782.8.

- 10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim as defined in Article 10.1. These amounts may be paid by Architect to District or the District may in reasonable good faith withhold those costs from amounts owing to Architect, pending resolution of the dispute.
- 10.3. Architect's duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement until any such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute of limitations and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the District may have under the law or under this Agreement.

# Article 11. Fingerprinting and Other On-Site Requirements

- 11.1. The District has determined that Architect, its Consultants and their employees shall not interact with pupils, except under the immediate supervision and control of the pupil's parent or guardian or a school employee, so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation requirements of Education Code section 45125.2 shall not apply.
- 11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19. Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect's personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable terms in the CDPH's State Public Health Officer Orders.

# Article 12. Responsibilities of the District

- 12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect's Services.
- 12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors,

omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect's documents. Failure to provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, if any.

- 12.3. The District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall include: asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement documentation; and specifications related to said matters, which are to be incorporated into bid documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous materials consultant is furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of the Architect, the specifications shall include a note to the effect that the hazardous materials consultant's specifications are included in the Architect's bid documents for the District's convenience and have not been prepared or reviewed by the Architect. The note shall also direct questions about the hazardous materials consultant's specifications related to asbestos and lead paint survey and/or abatement documentation to the preparer of the hazardous materials consultant's specifications.
- 12.4. The District shall timely provide to the Architect all relevant information in its possession regarding the project that is necessary for performance of Architect's services.

# Article 13. Liability of District

- 13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District's financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services performed in connection with this Agreement.
- 13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

# Article 14. Nondiscrimination

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance by all of its subcontractor(s).

# Article 15. Insurance

- 15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in **Exhibit "E."**
- 15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in **Exhibit "E."**

# Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency.

### Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto. Architect shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no others.

### Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect's prior written

consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.

# Article 19. Law, Venue

- 19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
- 19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

# Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution

- 20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other party to the Agreement. The demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial written notice.
- 20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to the Architect's right to bring a civil action against the District. For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized by any applicable meet and confer process.
- 20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.

# Article 21. Tolling of Claims

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District's assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors' or

subcontractors' claims against District involving Architect's work, until the Contractors' or subcontractors' claims are finally resolved.

# Article 22. Attorneys' Fees

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, including consultants' fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as may be fixed by the court. The term "prevailing party" shall mean the party who received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.

# Article 23. Severability

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

### Article 24. Employment Status

- 24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such Services.
- 24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect's personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District employee.
- 24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of

collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability). The District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.

- 24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability).
- 24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of the District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a reduction in District's liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an employee.
- 24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

# Article 25. Certificate of Architect

- 25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
- 25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this Agreement.
- 25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain "public

works" and "maintenance" projects ("Prevailing Wage Laws"). Architect agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect and its Consultants' professional services to be provided under this Agreement.

#### Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars (\$5,000).

#### Article 27. Notice & Communications

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent to the following addresses:

#### **District**:

#### Architect:

Sacramento City Unified School District 5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824 ATTN: Contracts Office EMAIL: Jessica-sulli@scusd.edu Lionakis 1919 19<sup>th</sup> Street Sacramento, CA 95811 ATTN: Laura Knauss EMAIL: laura.knauss@lionakis.com

With a Copy to: Dannis Woliver Kelley 200 California Street #400 San Francisco, CA 94111 ATTN: Deidree Sakai, Esq.

Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt. Any notice sent by electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission. Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery. Any notice given by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail.

#### Article 28. [RESERVED]

# Article 29. District's Right to Audit

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect's and any Consultant's premises to review and audit the Architect's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement ("District's Right"). The District's Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to retain copies, outside of Architect's premises, of any and all Project-related records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such

retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable law.

- 29.2. The District's Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement.
- 29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District's Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, or anticipated to be incurred.
- 29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon District's request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all requested records to the District.
- 29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
- 29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District's written request to review and audit any or all of Architect's Project-related records and information.

# Article 30. Other Provisions

- 30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter of the Agreement.
- 30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.
- 30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All

counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the Parties hereto.

- 30.4. Architect shall issue a credit to the District as an offset to the Architect's Fee, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the actual tax benefit derived by the Architect or its shareholders, after deducting associated tax consulting fees based on the Project per Internal Revenue Code section 179D (the Energy Efficient Commercial Buildings deduction).
- **Article 31. Exhibits "A"** through **"E"** attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

# SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

#### LIONAKIS

By:

By:

Rose Ramos Chief Business Officer

Date: 1/31/2022

Principal-in-Charge

Laura Knauss

Date:

Agreement for Architectural Services Sacramento City Unified School District DWK DMS 3771283v1

# EXHIBIT "A"

# **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Α.	SCOPE OF PROJECT	
B.	BASIC SERVICES	1
С.	DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE	4
D.	CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE	8
E.	BIDDING PHASE	
F.	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE	
G.		
Н.	MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS	

# EXHIBIT "A"

# **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following:

# SCOPE OF PROJECT

Project Name: Kit Carson International Academy – Buildings B, C, D and E – HVAC Modernization

Construction Cost Budget: \$2,500,000 (budget)

- Demolish Existing Chiller and all piping and accessories in Equipment Yard adjacent to the Gymnasium.
- Abandon all Chilled Water Distribution Mains in Attic Spaces.
- Install new control components along with Co2 sensors to meet SCUSD standard Johnson Controls.
- Replace existing standard classroom side wall registers with new ducted air distribution system.
- Replace existing Kitchen Hood with new UL-300 code compliant hood and ansul system. (Note: this scope is not included in construction budget and fee proposal, District has Central Kitchen so program is uncertain, A/E team to verify with District requirements).
- Connect all new furnace units to existing site gas distribution piping
- Provide Attic Service Lighting.
- Construction Square Footage for these improvements has been estimated at 34,639 square feet. Modifications to the existing construction are not expected to affect the existing lateral framing system of trigger a seismic rehabilitation per California Administrative Code 4-309 (c). Should that occur, an additional service will be required and requirements will significantly impact both the project budget and schedule.

# **BASIC SERVICES**

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:

- 1. Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District. Architect shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.
- 2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance. Architect shall advise the District of

the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each stage of design. Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and disclosed information.

- 3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect's scope of work. This information shall include, if available,
  - a. As-builts;
  - b. Physical characteristics;
  - c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
  - d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
  - e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
  - f. Adjacent drainage;
  - g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
  - h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
  - i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
  - j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
  - k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the documents provided by the District.

If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires: a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this

additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that information. If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as Extra Services.

4. **Mandatory Assistance.** If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation ("Mandatory Assistance").

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

#### **B. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE**

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted deliverables from the Schematic Design Phase, the Design Development Phase documents consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect's scope of services:

### 1. Architectural

- a. Scaled, dimensioned floor plans with final room locations including all openings, as required
- b. 1/8" scale building sections showing dimensional relationships, materials and component relationships, as required.
- c. Exterior elevations of existing buildings to be renovated and all architectural elements of the Project.
- d. Identification of all fixed equipment to be installed in Project.
- e. Site plan completely drawn with beginning notes and dimensions as required
- f. Preliminary development of details and large scale blow-ups.
- g. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings.
- h. Floor plans identifying all fixed and major movable equipment and furniture.
- i. Further refinement of Outline Specifications for architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, systems and equipment.

# 2. Structural

a. Preliminary calculations for the structural systems including lateral force resistive systems, foundations, and all structural system components to confirm structural upgrade is not required

#### 3. Mechanical

- a. Heating and cooling load calculations as required and major duct or pipe runs sized to interface with structural.
- b. Major mechanical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity.
- c. Ductwork and piping should be substantially located and sized.
- d. Devices in ceiling should be located as required.
- e. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings.
- f. More developed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture.
- g. Control Systems identified.
- h. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to accommodate the increase.

#### 4. Electrical

- a. All lighting fixtures should be located and scheduled showing all types and quantities of fixtures to be used, including proposed lighting levels for attic service lighting only.
- b. All major electrical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity.
- c. Complete electrical distribution including a one-line diagram indicating final location of switchboards, communications, controls (high and low voltage), motor control centers, panels, transformers and emergency generators, if required.
- d. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings.
- e. More developed and detailed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture.

f. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to accommodate the increase.

#### 5. Bid Documents

Architect shall review and comment on District's construction bid contracts and contract documents (the "Division 0" documents and "Division 1" documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement.

#### 6. Construction Cost Budget

- a. Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the Agreement and the preceding Phases, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost Budget:
  - (i) Design Development Estimate: This further revised estimate shall be prepared by specification section, summarized by CSI category and divided by trade and work item. The estimate shall include individual item unit costs of materials, labor and equipment. Sales tax, Contractor's mark-ups, and general conditions shall be listed separately.
  - (ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.
  - (iii) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates.
- b. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, the Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget. Should the Design Development Phase estimate exceed the District budget due to unforeseen conditions or scope additions required by the District, budget shall be revised prior to continuing. At this time, the project fee shall be reconciled applying percentage of construction cost as defined in this Exhibit.

# 7. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Design Development drawing set from all professional disciplines necessary to deliver the Project;
- b. Specifications;
- c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; and
- d. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.

The Design Development deliverables shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District.

#### 8. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# C. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect's scope of work. All Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission.

# 1. Construction Documents ("CD") 100%

#### a. General

Endeavor to determinelead times and availability of all Project equipment, materials, and supplies and ensure that all of these will be available to the Contractor in a timely fashion so as not to delay the Project.

#### b. Architectural

- (i) Completed site plan.
- (ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections as required.
- (iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed.
- (iv)
- (v) Site utility plans completed.
- (vi) Fixed equipment details and identification completed.
- (vii) Reflected ceiling plans completed where required.

#### c. Structural

- (i) Structural framing plans and sections with detailing completed.
- (ii) Structural calculations completed.

#### d. Mechanical

(i) Large scale mechanical details complete.

- (ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed.
- (iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment.
- (iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report.

### e. **Electrical**

- (i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls. Fixture schedule and lighting details completed.
- (ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed.
- (iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed.
- (iv) Special system components plans completed.
- (v) Electrical load calculations completed.

#### f. Construction Cost Budget

- Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the Design Development phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget
- (ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.
- (iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.
- (iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates.

# g. Specifications

- (i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria required for the construction of the Project.
- (ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by specific brand or trade name unless:
  - (A) The specification is followed by the words "or equal" so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public Contract Code section 3400, or
  - (B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400.
- (iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with District's prior approval.
- (iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District.
- (v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other disciplines.
- (vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format.

#### h. Constructability Review

The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a constructability review of the Construction Documents. A report shall be given to the Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments for each item listed in the report. Conducting a constructability review does not excuse the Architect's obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law.

# i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- (i) Working drawings;
- (ii) Specifications;
- (iii) Engineering calculations;
- (iv) Construction Cost Budgets;
- (v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance with Construction Documents and applicable codes;
- (vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, back-check comments, checklists to date; and
- (vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved Construction Cost Budget. If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur between disciplines, identify for District review.

#### 2. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage:

- a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, specifications, and estimate. All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall be at no additional cost to the District.
- b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the Architect's work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following:
  - (i) Drawings: Original tracings of all drawings on Architect's tracing paper with each Architect/Consultant's State license stamp.
  - (ii) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible masters in CSI format.
- c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants' completed Contract Documents.
- d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA.

# 3. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

#### D. BIDDING PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for District as follows:

- 1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
- 2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
- 3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect. Nevertheless, Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.
- 4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect.
- 5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for decision by the District as to the proper procedure required. Corrective action will be in the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.
- 6. Attend bid opening.
- 7. Coordinate with Consultants.
- 8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
- 9. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and

# E. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract Administration Phase services for the District as follows:

1. Architect's responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District's terminating the Agreement, whichever is earlier.

#### 2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process

- a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project by submitting the applicable Inspector's Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 152 or more current version).
- b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards (forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been awarded. Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior to commencement of construction.
- c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record.
- d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more current version) for all construction contracts.
- e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved construction documents. Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.
- f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary.

- h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off that section of the project inspection card.
- i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more current version) to the DSA.
- j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur: (1) when construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) DSA requests a Verified Report.

# 3. Change Orders

- a. Architect shall review all of Contractor's change order requests to determine if those requests are valid and appropriate. Architect shall provide a recommendation to District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.
- b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change orders. The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as Extra Services by the District. The original drawings and contract wording for change orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and distribution.

#### 4. Submittals

- a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.
- b. Architect shall review Contractor's schedule of submittals and advise the District on whether that schedule is complete. Architect shall provide the District with proposed revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should approve this schedule.
- c. Architect's action upon Contractor's submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in

the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to permit adequate review. In no case shall the review period associated with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt by the Architect. Architect's response to each submittal shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.

- 5. **RFIs.** During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must respond to all Requests for Information ("RFI") as expeditiously as possible so as not to impact and delay the construction progress. In no case shall the review period associated with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect. Architect's response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This seven-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce the Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents. Architect must verify that RFIs are passed through the Project Inspector, if any.
- 6. **Notices of Deficient Work**. On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard the District against defects and deficiencies in the work. Architect shall timely notify the District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District's Contractors that Architect may observe. However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of the Contractor's performance.
- 7. **Record Drawings.** Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District. The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all, sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the construction Contractor's representations of actual construction. Architect shall deliver the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District's approval of Architect's final payment. Architect may insert the following notice on the Record Drawings:

These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others. Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

8. **O&M Manuals and Warranties.** Architect shall review equipment, operation and maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and

installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and specifications.

- 9. **Start-up.** Architect shall also provide, at the District's request, architectural/engineering advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the acceptance of the Contractor's work.
- 10. **Payment Statements.** Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect's representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best of Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in general conformance with the Contract Documents.

#### 11. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Observation reports; and
- c. Weekly meeting reports.

#### 12. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# F. CLOSE OUT PHASE

- 1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner:
  - a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion.
  - b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect's recommendation as to the adequacy of these items.
  - c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project.
  - d. Architect shall respond to the DSA "90-day" letter.
  - e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents and addenda to the Contractor's contract.
  - f. Architect shall prepare a set of As-Built Drawings for the Project, as required by the District.
  - g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation.
  - h. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to closeout the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.
- 2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project.

#### 3. Deliverables and Number of Copies

- a. Punch list; and
- b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including Record Drawings. These are the sole property of the District.

#### 4. Meetings

During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

# G. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS

 Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below. Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all coordination meetings with its Consultant(s) during the entire design phase. Architect shall invite the District and/or its representative to participate in these meetings. Architect shall keep a separate log to document design/coordination comments generated in these meetings.

# 2. General Meeting, Site Visit, and Workshop Requirements

- a. Architect shall always be prepared to answer questions and issues from District staff, site staff, potential bidders, and/or Contractors, as applicable.
- b. Architect shall maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or site observations held in conjunction with the design and construction of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions, questions or comments. These shall be furnished to the District and/or its representative for inclusion in the overall Project documentation.
- c. As required, Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.
- d. Each meeting may last up to four hours and shall be held at the District office or at the Project site, unless otherwise indicated.

# 3. Initial Site Visits (One (1) meeting(s))

a. Architect shall visit the Project site to complete a visual inventory and documentation of the existing conditions.

#### 4. Meetings During Design Development Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. At approximately mid-point of the Design Development phase, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting with District personnel and applicable engineering sub-consultants to confirm District standards and preferred systems.
- b. At the time designated for completion of the Design Development package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting[s], per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present the Design Development package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specification.

(ii) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget. At this time, proposed design alternates that may be required to ensure compliance with the District's Construction Budget will be determined.

# 5. Meetings During Construction Documents Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. At approximately the time designated for completion of the fifty percent (50%) submittal package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present progress on the Construction Documents submittal package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
- b. At the time designated for completion of the one hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package, concurrent with review by the Division of the State Architect, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present the hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.

# 6. Meetings During Bidding Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. Attend and take part in One (1) pre-bid meeting(s), per package or submittal, with all potential bidders, District staff, and Construction Manager.
- b. Conduct One (1) kick-off meeting(s) with the successful bidder, District staff, and Construction Manager to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each party and provide protocols and processes to follow during construction.
- 7. Meetings During Construction Administration Phase (weekly Project meetings until entire Project is complete, (3-month construction schedule assumed))

- a. Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepancies in the Contract Documents and to monitor the progress of the construction of the Project.
- b. Conduct weekly Project meetings with District staff to review with District staff the progress of the work. Architect agrees to attend weekly Project meetings, at no additional cost to the District, until the work of the Project is complete.
- c. Architect shall ensure that Consultant(s) visit the site in conformance with their agreement(s) and that Consultant agreements shall reference District requirements for Construction Phase services.

END OF EXHIBIT

#### EXHIBIT "B"

#### **CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES**

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:

- A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within **Exhibit "A."**
- B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A." Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A," so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct Architect to procure the deliverables at the District's expense or on the District's account at a specific vendor.
- C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
- D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
- E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
- F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement.
- G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
- H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.

Job Title	Hourly Rate
Principal In Charge:	\$250
Associate Principal:	\$240
Project Manager (Senior):	\$200
Designer:	\$130 - \$150
Assistant Project Manager:	\$190
Architect:	\$165 - \$190

Contract Administrator:	
Other	
Other	

- I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
  - 1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
    - a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
  - 2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.

#### J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect's invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed. For example, a six hour charge for "RFIs and CORs" is unacceptable and will not be payable. A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is required. This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order. For example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this Agreement, would be payable. The times indicated below are just placeholders:

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, district, construction manager, and project inspector.	0.8 hours
Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and language for same.	0.7 hours
Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR.	1.2 hours

END OF EXHIBIT

# EXHIBIT "C"

# SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

- A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect proposes to carry out Architect's Services ("Schedule of Services"). The Schedule of Services shall apply to the completion of all Services listed hereunder within the times established by this Agreement. The Schedule of Services shall be in the form of a progress chart clearly delineating all important increments and review dates.
- B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within <u>30</u> calendar days after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed.
- C. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within <u>45</u> calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically indicated below. Excluded from this duration is the time associated with DSA review the Construction Documents back-check stage.
  - 1. 100% Submittal Package

# 45 calendar days

D. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement. If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District's inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the deadlines set forth in this Exhibit. If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in writing by the District.

END OF EXHIBIT

#### EXHIBIT "D"

### PAYMENT SCHEDULE

#### A. Compensation

- The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem expenses, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in **Exhibit** "A," or any other direct or indirect expenses incident to providing the Services. Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and **Exhibit** "B," there shall be no payment for extra costs or expenses.
- 2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
- 3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FEE PER PHASE			
Phase	Phase Amount		
Design Development Phase	<u>25%</u>		
Construction Documents Phase-Submittal to DSA	<u>35%</u>		
Approval by DSA	<u>10%</u>		
Bidding Phase	<u>5%</u>		
Construction Contract Administration Phase	<u>20%</u>		
Close Out Phase	<u>5%</u>		
TOTAL BASE COMPENSATION	<u>100%</u>		

#### B. Method of Payment

- 1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District's authorized representative.
- 2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
- 3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect's monthly pay request format.
- 4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect's invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:

# a. For Design Development Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Design Development Phase by the District.

# b. For Construction Documents Phase:

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents Phase by the District.

# c. For Bidding Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon the District's award of the bid.

# d. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon the District's notice of completion.

#### e. For Close Out:

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase.

END OF EXHIBIT

### EXHIBIT "E"

#### **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

- A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and Consultant(s). Architect's liabilities, including but not limited to Architect's indemnity or defense obligations, under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this Agreement and Architect's failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when requested, may be treated by the District as a material breach of contract.
- B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability coverages that at least follow form over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for Commercial General Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability, Employers' Liability, and other liability coverage (except Professional Liability) designated under this Section B Insurance Requirements." Minimum Scope of Insurance.
  - 1. **Commercial General Liability.** Two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.
  - 2. **Commercial Automobile Liability**. One million dollars (\$1,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage.
  - 3. **Workers' Compensation Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation policy.
  - 4. **Employers' Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of Two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence.
  - 5. **Professional Liability**. This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$200,000)

per claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two (2) years thereafter.

- C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.
- D. **Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention**: Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$200,000). At the option of the District, either:
  - 1. The District can accept the higher deductible; or
  - 2. Architect's insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.
- E. **Other Insurance Provisions**: The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
  - The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers ("Additional Insureds") are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Architect; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Architect. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.
  - 2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
  - 3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
  - 4. Architect's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
  - 5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
  - 6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except

after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.

- 7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement.
- 8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant's scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District's request. Should Architect not require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is required of Architect, as provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement.
- F. **Acceptability of Insurers**: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best's rating less than A:VII. At the option of the District, the District may either:
  - 1. Accept the lower rating; or
  - 2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
- G. **Verification of Coverage**: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
  - 1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
  - 2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before Services commence.
- H. **Copy of Insurance Policy(ies)**: Upon the District's request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.

END OF EXHIBIT



# **Agreement for Architectural Services**

between

# **Sacramento City Unified School District**

and

Lionakis

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project

Dated: January 28, 2022

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1	Definitions	1
Article 2	Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect	3
Article 3	Architect Staff	7
Article 4	Schedule of Services	8
Article 5	Construction Cost Budget	9
Article 6	Fee and Method of Payment	
Article 7	Payment for Extra Services or Changes	11
Article 8	Ownership of Data	11
Article 9	Termination of Contract	12
Article 10	Indemnity / Architect Liability	14
Article 11	Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site	15
Article 12	Responsibilities of the District	15
Article 13	Liability of District	
Article 14	Nondiscrimination	
Article 15	Insurance	17
Article 16	Covenant against Contingent Fees	17
Article 17	Entire Agreement/Modification	17
Article 18	Non-Assignment of Agreement	17
Article 19	Law, Venue	
Article 20	Alternative Dispute Resolution	
Article 21	Tolling of Claims	19
Article 22	Attorneys' Fees	19
Article 23	Severability	19
Article 24	Employment Status	19
Article 25	Certificate of Architect	
Article 26	Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports	21
Article 27	Notice & Communications	21
Article 28	[RESERVED]	21
Article 29	District's Right to Audit	21
Article 30	Other Provisions	22
Article 31	Exhibits "A" through "E"	23

EXHIBIT "A" – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT	A-1
EXHIBIT "B" – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES	B-1
EXHIBIT "C" – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES	C-1
EXHIBIT "D" – PAYMENT SCHEDULE	D-1
EXHIBIT "E" – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	E-1

### AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of January 28, 2022, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district ("District"), and Lionakis ("Architect") (collectively "Parties"), for the following project ("Project"):

Modernization of gymnasium HVAC on the campus of Sutter Middle School, located at 3150 I Street, Sacramento, CA 95816

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

### Article 1. Definitions

- 1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
  - 1.1.1. <u>Agreement</u>: The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
  - 1.1.2. **Architect**: The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect. The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
  - 1.1.3. **As-Built Drawings ("As-Builts")**: Any document prepared and submitted by District's Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District's construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.
  - 1.1.4. **Bid Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect ("DSA") has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
  - 1.1.5. **Conforming Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase. The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA approval is required.

- 1.1.6. **Construction Budget**: The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
- 1.1.7. <u>Construction Change Documents ("CCD")</u>: The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- 1.1.8. **Construction Cost Budget**: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement. The Construction Cost Budget does not include the compensation of the Architect and the Architect's Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other costs which are the responsibility of the District, including construction management.
- 1.1.9. **Construction Manager**: The District's representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner's representative.
- 1.1.10. **Contractor**: One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
- 1.1.11. **Consultant(s)**: Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
- 1.1.12. **District**: The Sacramento City Unified School District.
- 1.1.13. **DSA**: The Division of the State Architect.
- 1.1.14. **Extra Services**: District-authorized services outside of the scope in **Exhibit "A"** or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect's Fee.
- 1.1.15. **Laboratory of Record**: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
- 1.1.16. **Project**: District's Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization located at 3150 I Street, Sacramento, CA 95816.
- 1.1.17. **<u>Record Drawings</u>**: A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.

- 1.1.18. **Service(s)**: All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.
- 1.1.19. **Visually Verify**: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical observation and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

## Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect

- 2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in **Exhibit "A**," commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative. Architect's Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as **Exhibit "C**."
- 2.2. Architect and its Consultants shall provide Services for a Project: (i) using its professional skill and judgment; (ii) acting with due care and in accordance with respective applicable standards of care under California law for those providing similar services for projects of the size, scope and complexity of the Project for California school districts in or around the same geographic area of the District; (iii) the terms of this Agreement; and (iv) in accordance with said standards regarding application and interpretation of applicable law, code, rule or regulation at the time the Services are rendered ("Standard of Care"). All persons providing professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required under California law.
- 2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process. District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect's scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
- 2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are obligated to develop and implement the following storm water requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one (1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance (e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities.
  - 2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation:

- 24.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System ("MS4"). An MS4 is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm drains.
- 2.4.1.2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan ("SWPPP") that contains specific best management practices ("BMPs") and establishes numeric effluent limitations.
- 2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District's storm water requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District. In addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final development of the site. This drawing will also include a horizontal and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan. The Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of the Architect.
- 2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect's expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement. The names of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to commencement of Services, as indicated below. The District reserves the right to reject Architect's use of any particular Consultant. Nothing in the foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the Agreement. Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement.
- 2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related to the Project. This shall include, without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any. If the Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any.

- 2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects.
  - 2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or referenced in the following forms, bulletins ("BU"), interpretations of regulations ("IR"), policies ("PL"), or procedures ("PR"):
    - 2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal and Approval Process.
    - 2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School District, Contractor and Design Professional.
    - 2.7.1.3. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018.
    - 2.7.1.4. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-Counter ("OTC") Projects Using Bluebeam 2018.
    - 2.7.1.5. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process.
      - 2.7.1.5.1. Each of Architect's duties as provided in the DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be performed timely so as not to result in any delay to the Project.
    - 2.7.1.6. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process.
  - 2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission, for all projects submitted to DSA. Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating

to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control.

- 2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or federal agencies' approval for on-site and off-site work related to the Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.
- 2.9. Architect shall coordinate the work of the District's DSA project inspector(s) ("Project Inspector(s)") and the Laboratory of Record. Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory of Record.
- 2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its professional skill and attention. Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions ("Contract Documents") and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project Inspector(s). Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions in its own Contract Documents and that of its Subconsultants, but shall have no responsibility for District hired consultants.
- 2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information ("RFI"), providing RFI responses, and leading all coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and Contractors on the Project. The District reserves the right to retain the services of a Construction Manager at any time. The Construction Manager, if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District. The District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at any time. Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed by the Governing Board of the District. In addition, the District may have a constructability review of Architect's design documents. Architect shall conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any compensation as Extra Services for this activity.

- 2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may use on its website.
- 2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not responsible for:
  - 2.13.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.
  - 2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such information provided by District.
  - 2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no additional cost to the District.
  - 2.13.4. Historical significance report.
  - 2.13.5. Soils investigation.
  - 2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in **Exhibit "A."**
  - 2.13.7. Topographic surveys of existing conditions.
  - 2.13.8. State and local agency fees.
  - 2.13.9. Testing and inspection.

### Article 3. Architect Staff

- 3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
- 3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect's firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:

Principal In Charge:Laura KnaussProject Director:Brian BellProject Architect(s):Vince NietoProject Architect(s):\_\_\_\_\_\_

Other:	Specifications: Lionakis			
Major Consultants:				
Electrical:	Engineering Enterprise			
Mechanical:	Capital Engineering			
Structural:	<u>Lionakis</u>			
Cost Estimatir	ng: <u>Sierra West</u>			
Other:				

- 3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect. In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve replacement personnel.
- 3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to the District. All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions stated in this paragraph.
- 3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect.
- 3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in "responsible charge" of persons who observe the construction.

### Article 4. Schedule of Services

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in **Exhibit "A**," so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule in **Exhibit "C**." Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement. It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect's or its Consultant(s)' reasonable control.

# Article 5. Construction Cost Budget

- 5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District's established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope. In accordance with **Exhibit "A**," the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project and at the completion of each design phase. The District and Construction Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget with the Architect.
- 5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in **Exhibit "A**," including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the District's written approval. Architect shall maintain cost controls throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost Budget.
- 5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur:
  - 5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the Construction Cost Budget.
  - 5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or rebid the Project within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids (exclusive of District and other agencies' review time) at no additional cost to the District.
  - 5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the District, without further obligation by either party.
  - 5.3.4. Within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as approved by the District) to bring the Project within the Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the District.
- 5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above:
  - 5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
  - 5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to uncontrollable events in the world economy.

## Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following ("Fee"):

An amount not to exceed One Hundred Forty-Four Thousand Dollars (\$144,000) based on the rates set forth in **Exhibit "D"** and based on 8% of an assumed construction budget of \$1,800,000. At the completion of the Design Development Phase an Opinion of Probable Cost will be completed at which time a validation of the project budget and a review and reconciliation of the design fee based on a percentage of (8%) for HVAC modernization will be completed.

- 6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of **Exhibit** "**D**."
- 6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect's error or omission.
- 6.5. The Architect's Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect's Fee, the Architect's Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
- 6.7. Neither the District's review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the District caused by Architect's failure to perform any of the Services furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California

law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in or around the same geographic area as the District.

# Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit** "**B**" only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed. If any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative, the District will not be obligated to pay for such service. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, Architect will be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit "B**" for Extra Services that the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative verbally requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the request from the Architect.

## Article 8. Ownership of Data

- 8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a nonexclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology ("CADD") (e.g., AutoCAD). Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format. As to any drawings that Architect provides in a CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all documents.
- 8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a "hard" copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information. The District agrees to release Architect from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes

made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) subsequent to it being given to the District.

- 8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter "Instruments of Service"), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way permitted by statute:
  - 8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
  - 8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
  - 8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
  - 8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
  - 8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.
- 8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect's knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction. In the event that the District uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect's full involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information that might identify Architect and its Consultants.

# Article 9. Termination of Contract

9.1. <u>District's Request for Assurances</u>: If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect

to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the District may advise Architect of in writing. Architect shall, within ten (10) days of District's request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the requirements of the District's request for assurances. Architect's failure to provide such written assurances of performance and the required written plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause.

- 9.2. District's Termination of Architect for Cause: If Architect fails to perform Architect's duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect's material obligations under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect. In the event of a termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District for all Services performed until the notice of termination, but the District shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to the District's costs because of Architect's actions, errors, or omissions. District may, at its discretion, provide the Architect time to cure its default or breach.
- 9.3. <u>District's Termination of Architect for Convenience</u>: District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience. In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until the District's notice of termination for convenience.
- 9.4. <u>Architect's Termination of Agreement for Cause</u>: Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect. Such termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Architect to the District. Architect may invoice the District and the District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until Architect's notice of termination.
- 9.5. <u>Effect on Pre-Termination Services</u>: Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such termination.

- 9.6. <u>Ceasing Services upon Termination</u>: If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project. The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of termination.
- 9.7. <u>Project Suspension</u>: If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect's compensation shall be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the Architect's Services. Architect shall make every effort to maintain the same Project personnel after suspension. If the District suspends the Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice.

## Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability

10.1. To the fullest extent permitted by California law and in accordance with California Civil Code section 2782.8, Architect shall indemnify, protect, and hold free and harmless the District, its agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees and members ("Indemnified Parties") from any and all actions, assessments, counts, citations, claims, costs, damages, demands, judgments, liabilities (legal, administrative or otherwise), losses, notices, expenses, fines, penalties, proceedings, responsibilities, violations, attorney's and consultants' fees and causes of action to property or persons, including personal injury and/or death ("Claim(s)"), to the extent that the Claim(s) arises out of, pertains to, or relates to, the negligence (active or passive, ordinary or gross), recklessness (ordinary or gross), or willful misconduct of Architect, its directors, officials, officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, subconsultants or agents arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performance of the Services, the Project, or this Agreement. Architect also has the duty to defend the Indemnified Parties from all Claims at Architect's own expense, including attorneys' fees and costs; however, in no event shall the cost to defend charged to the Architect exceed the Architect's proportionate percentage of fault. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, in the event one or more defendants is unable to pay its share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or dissolution of the business, the design professional shall meet and confer with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs. If a Claim arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this

Agreement, upon the District's or the Architect's request, the District and the Architect agree to undertake good faith measures to allow the Architect to assist the District in resolving the dispute or litigation. The Architect's assistance, described as "Mandatory Assistance" in Exhibit A, Section B.8, shall be provided at Architect's own expense and excluded from any reimbursement calculation. At the commencement of the Mandatory Assistance Phase, District and Architect shall also negotiate in good faith as to the scope and extent of further assistance, including consideration of a joint defense agreement if appropriate. During the Mandatory Assistance Phase, each Party shall be responsible for their own attorneys' fees and costs incurred; however, each Party reserves its rights pursuant to Civil Code section 2782.8.

- 10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim as defined in Article 10.1. These amounts may be paid by Architect to District or the District may in reasonable good faith withhold those costs from amounts owing to Architect, pending resolution of the dispute.
- 10.3. Architect's duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement until any such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute of limitations and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the District may have under the law or under this Agreement.

# Article 11. Fingerprinting and Other On-Site Requirements

- 11.1. The District has determined that Architect, its Consultants and their employees shall not interact with pupils, except under the immediate supervision and control of the pupil's parent or guardian or a school employee, so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation requirements of Education Code section 45125.2 shall not apply.
- 11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19. Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect's personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable terms in the CDPH's State Public Health Officer Orders.

# Article 12. Responsibilities of the District

12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect's Services.

- 12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect's documents. Failure to provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, if any.
- 12.3. The District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall include: asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement documentation; and specifications related to said matters, which are to be incorporated into bid documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous materials consultant is furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of the Architect, the specifications shall include a note to the effect that the hazardous materials consultant's specifications are included in the Architect's bid documents for the District's convenience and have not been prepared or reviewed by the Architect. The note shall also direct questions about the hazardous materials consultant's specifications related to asbestos and lead paint survey and/or abatement documentation to the preparer of the hazardous materials consultant's specifications.
- 12.4. The District shall timely provide to the Architect all relevant information in its possession regarding the project that is necessary for performance of Architect's services.

# Article 13. Liability of District

- 13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District's financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services performed in connection with this Agreement.
- 13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

# Article 14. Nondiscrimination

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance by all of its subcontractor(s).

# Article 15. Insurance

- 15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in **Exhibit "E."**
- 15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in **Exhibit "E."**

# Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency.

# Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto. Architect shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no others.

# Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or

sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.

## Article 19. Law, Venue

- 19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
- 19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

### Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution

- 20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other party to the Agreement. The demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial written notice.
- 20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to the Architect's right to bring a civil action against the District. For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized by any applicable meet and confer process.
- 20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.

# Article 21. Tolling of Claims

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District's assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors' or subcontractors' claims against District involving Architect's work, until the Contractors' or subcontractors' claims are finally resolved.

### Article 22. Attorneys' Fees

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, including consultants' fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as may be fixed by the court. The term "prevailing party" shall mean the party who received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.

## Article 23. Severability

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

### Article 24. Employment Status

- 24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such Services.
- 24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect's personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District employee.

- 24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability). The District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.
- 24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability).
- 24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of the District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a reduction in District's liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an employee.
- 24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

### Article 25. Certificate of Architect

- 25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
- 25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this Agreement.

25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain "public works" and "maintenance" projects ("Prevailing Wage Laws"). Architect agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect and its Consultants' professional services to be provided under this Agreement.

### Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars (\$5,000).

#### Article 27. Notice & Communications

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent to the following addresses:

#### **District**:

#### Architect:

Sacramento City Unified School District 5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824 ATTN: Contracts Office EMAIL: Jessica-sulli@scusd.edu Lionakis 1919 19<sup>th</sup> Street Sacramento, CA 95811 ATTN: Laura Knauss EMAIL: <u>laura.knauss@lionakis.com</u>

With a Copy to: Dannis Woliver Kelley 200 California Street #400 San Francisco, CA 94111 ATTN: Deidree Sakai, Esq.

Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt. Any notice sent by electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission. Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery. Any notice given by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail.

### Article 28. [RESERVED]

### Article 29. District's Right to Audit

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect's and any Consultant's premises to review and audit the Architect's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement ("District's

Right"). The District's Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to retain copies, outside of Architect's premises, of any and all Project-related records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable law.

- 29.2. The District's Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement.
- 29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District's Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, or anticipated to be incurred.
- 29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon District's request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all requested records to the District.
- 29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
- 29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District's written request to review and audit any or all of Architect's Project-related records and information.

### Article 30. Other Provisions

- 30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter of the Agreement.
- 30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.

- 30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the Parties hereto.
- 30.4. Architect shall issue a credit to the District as an offset to the Architect's Fee, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the actual tax benefit derived by the Architect or its shareholders, after deducting associated tax consulting fees based on the Project per Internal Revenue Code section 179D (the Energy Efficient Commercial Buildings deduction).
- Article 31. Exhibits "A" through "E" attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT		LIONAKIS	
By:		By:	( Onaux
•	Rose Ramos	-	Laura Knauss
	Chief Business Officer		Principal-in-Charge
Date:		Date:	1/31/2022

# EXHIBIT "A"

# **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Α.	SCOPE OF PROJECT	1
В.	BASIC SERVICES	2
C.	DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE	4
D.	CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE	8
E.	BIDDING PHASE	
F.	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE	
G.		
H.	MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS	

## EXHIBIT "A"

## **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following:

### SCOPE OF PROJECT

Project Name: Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization

Construction Cost Budget: \$1,800,000

- Removal of the existing heating-only mechanical systems and replacement with new high efficiency heating and air conditioning systems in the Gymnasium, Locker Rooms, Coach's Offices, Activity Rooms, Kitchen, and Multipurpose/Cafeteria.
- Outside air ventilation rates which meet current Code will be provided with the new HVAC systems. The existing heating-only systems do not meet current Code ventilation requirements.
- The existing 2-year-old boiler and existing heating hot water piping system will provide heating to the majority of the new HVAC equipment. If the boiler system cannot provide all heating requirements due to the increased outside air ventilation being provided, then some of the new HVAC equipment may be gas heat. This may require the gas meter to be upgraded for the additional gas load.
- New ductwork and air distribution will be provided for all the new HVAC systems
- Old heating equipment will be removed.
- New Johnson Controls EMS will be provided for all new HVAC systems in accordance with District standard. CO2 demand controlled ventilation will be provided to meet current Code.
- The new HVAC equipment will be roof mounted if adequate structural modifications can be made to support them. If roof mounted is not possible, then Architect will work out acceptable grade mounted locations with the District.
- Construction Square Footage for these improvements has been estimated at +/- 21,000 square feet.

### **BASIC SERVICES**

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:

- Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District. Architect shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.
- 2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance. Architect shall advise the District of the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each stage of design. Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and disclosed information.
- 3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect's scope of work. This information shall include, if available,
  - a. As-builts;
  - b. Physical characteristics;
  - c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
  - d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
  - e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
  - f. Adjacent drainage;
  - g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
  - h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
  - i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
  - j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and

k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the documents provided by the District.

If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires: a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that information. If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as Extra Services.

4. **Mandatory Assistance.** If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation ("Mandatory Assistance").

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

## **B. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE**

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted deliverables from the Schematic Design Phase, the Design Development Phase documents consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect's scope of services:

## 1. Architectural

- a. Scaled, dimensioned floor plans with final room locations including all openings, as required
- b. 1/8" scale building sections showing dimensional relationships, materials and component relationships, as required.
- c. Exterior elevations of existing buildings to be renovated and all architectural elements of the Project.
- d. Identification of all fixed equipment to be installed in Project.
- e. Site plan completely drawn with beginning notes and dimensions as required
- f. Preliminary development of details and large scale blow-ups.
- g. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings.
- h. Floor plans identifying all fixed and major movable equipment and furniture.
- i. Further refinement of Outline Specifications for architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, systems and equipment.

### 2. Structural

a. Preliminary calculations for the structural systems including lateral force resistive systems, foundations, and all structural system components to confirm structural upgrade is not required

### 3. Mechanical

- a. Heating and cooling load calculations as required and major duct or pipe runs sized to interface with structural.
- b. Major mechanical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity.

- c. Ductwork and piping should be substantially located and sized.
- d. Devices in ceiling should be located as required.
- e. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings.
- f. More developed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture.
- g. Control Systems identified.
- h. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to accommodate the increase.

### 4. Electrical

- a. All lighting fixtures should be located and scheduled showing all types and quantities of fixtures to be used, including proposed lighting levels for attic service lighting only.
- b. All major electrical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity.
- c. Complete electrical distribution including a one-line diagram indicating final location of switchboards, communications, controls (high and low voltage), motor control centers, panels, transformers and emergency generators, if required.
- d. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings.
- e. More developed and detailed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture.
- f. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to accommodate the increase.

### 5. Bid Documents

Architect shall review and comment on District's construction bid contracts and contract documents (the "Division 0" documents and "Division 1" documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement.

## 6. Construction Cost Budget

- a. Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the Agreement and the preceding Phases, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost Budget:
  - (i) Design Development Estimate: This further revised estimate shall be prepared by specification section, summarized by CSI category and divided by trade and work item. The estimate shall include individual item unit costs of materials, labor and equipment. Sales tax, Contractor's mark-ups, and general conditions shall be listed separately.
  - (ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.
  - (iii) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates.
- b. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, the Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget. Should the Design Development Phase estimate exceed the District budget due to unforeseen conditions or scope additions required by the District, budget shall be revised prior to continuing. At this time, the project fee shall be reconciled applying percentage of construction cost as defined in this Exhibit.

### 7. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Design Development drawing set from all professional disciplines necessary to deliver the Project;
- b. Specifications;
- c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; and
- d. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.

The Design Development deliverables shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District.

#### 8. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

## C. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect's scope of work. All Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission.

## 1. Construction Documents ("CD") 100%

#### a. General

Endeavor to determine lead times and availability of all Project equipment, materials, and supplies and ensure that all of these will be available to the Contractor in a timely fashion so as not to delay the Project.

#### b. Architectural

- (i) Completed site plan.
- (ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections as required.
- (iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed.
- (iv) Site utility plans completed.
- (v) Fixed equipment details and identification completed.
- (vi) Reflected ceiling plans completed where required.

#### c. Structural

- (i) Structural framing plans and sections with detailing completed.
- (ii) Structural calculations completed.

#### d. Mechanical

- (i) Large scale mechanical details complete.
- (ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed.

- (iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment.
- (iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report.

## e. **Electrical**

- (i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls. Fixture schedule and lighting details completed.
- (ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed.
- (iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed.
- (iv) Special system components plans completed.
- (v) Electrical load calculations completed.

# f. Construction Cost Budget

- (i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the Design Development phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget
- (ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.
- (iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.
- (iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates.

# g. Specifications

- (i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria required for the construction of the Project.
- (ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by specific brand or trade name unless:

- (A) The specification is followed by the words "or equal" so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public Contract Code section 3400, or
- (B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400.
- (iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with District's prior approval.
- (iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District.
- (v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other disciplines.
- (vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format.

### h. Constructability Review

The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a constructability review of the Construction Documents. A report shall be given to the Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments for each item listed in the report. Conducting a constructability review does not excuse the Architect's obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law.

### i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- (i) Working drawings;
- (ii) Specifications;
- (iii) Engineering calculations;
- (iv) Construction Cost Budgets;

- Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance with Construction Documents and applicable codes;
- (vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, back-check comments, checklists to date; and
- (vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved Construction Cost Budget. If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur between disciplines, identify for District review.

## 2. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage:

- a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, specifications, and estimate. All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall be at no additional cost to the District.
- b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the Architect's work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following:
  - (i) Drawings: Original tracings of all drawings on Architect's tracing paper with each Architect/Consultant's State license stamp.
  - (ii) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible masters in CSI format.
- c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants' completed Contract Documents.
- d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA.

#### 3. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

### D. BIDDING PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for District as follows:

- 1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
- 2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
- 3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect. Nevertheless, Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.
- 4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect.
- 5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for decision by the District as to the proper procedure required. Corrective action will be in the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.
- 6. Attend bid opening.
- 7. Coordinate with Consultants.
- 8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
- 9. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and

# E. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract Administration Phase services for the District as follows:

1. Architect's responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District's terminating the Agreement, whichever is earlier.

### 2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process

- a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project by submitting the applicable Inspector's Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 152 or more current version).
- b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards (forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been awarded. Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior to commencement of construction.
- c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record.
- d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more current version) for all construction contracts.
- e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved construction documents. Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.
- f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary.

- h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off that section of the project inspection card.
- i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more current version) to the DSA.
- j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur: (1) when construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) DSA requests a Verified Report.

# 3. Change Orders

- a. Architect shall review all of Contractor's change order requests to determine if those requests are valid and appropriate. Architect shall provide a recommendation to District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.
- b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change orders. The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as Extra Services by the District. The original drawings and contract wording for change orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and distribution.

### 4. Submittals

- a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.
- b. Architect shall review Contractor's schedule of submittals and advise the District on whether that schedule is complete. Architect shall provide the District with proposed revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should approve this schedule.
- c. Architect's action upon Contractor's submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in

the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to permit adequate review. In no case shall the review period associated with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt by the Architect. Architect's response to each submittal shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.

- 5. **RFIs.** During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must respond to all Requests for Information ("RFI") as expeditiously as possible so as not to impact and delay the construction progress. In no case shall the review period associated with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect. Architect's response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This seven-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce the Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents. Architect must verify that RFIs are passed through the Project Inspector, if any.
- 6. **Notices of Deficient Work**. On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard the District against defects and deficiencies in the work. Architect shall timely notify the District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District's Contractors that Architect may observe. However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of the Contractor's performance.
- 7. **Record Drawings.** Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District. The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all, sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the construction Contractor's representations of actual construction. Architect shall deliver the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District's approval of Architect's final payment. Architect may insert the following notice on the Record Drawings:

These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others. Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

8. **O&M Manuals and Warranties.** Architect shall review equipment, operation and maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and

installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and specifications.

- 9. **Start-up.** Architect shall also provide, at the District's request, architectural/engineering advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the acceptance of the Contractor's work.
- 10. **Payment Statements.** Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect's representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best of Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in general conformance with the Contract Documents.

### 11. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Observation reports; and
- c. Weekly meeting reports.

#### 12. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# F. CLOSE OUT PHASE

- 1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner:
  - a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion.
  - b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect's recommendation as to the adequacy of these items.
  - c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project.
  - d. Architect shall respond to the DSA "90-day" letter.
  - e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents and addenda to the Contractor's contract.
  - f. Architect shall prepare a set of As-Built Drawings for the Project, as required by the District.
  - g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation.
  - h. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to closeout the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.
- 2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project.

### 3. Deliverables and Number of Copies

- a. Punch list; and
- b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including Record Drawings. These are the sole property of the District.

### 4. Meetings

During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

# G. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS

 Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below. Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all coordination meetings with its Consultant(s) during the entire design phase. Architect shall invite the District and/or its representative to participate in these meetings. Architect shall keep a separate log to document design/coordination comments generated in these meetings.

# 2. General Meeting, Site Visit, and Workshop Requirements

- a. Architect shall always be prepared to answer questions and issues from District staff, site staff, potential bidders, and/or Contractors, as applicable.
- b. Architect shall maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or site observations held in conjunction with the design and construction of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions, questions or comments. These shall be furnished to the District and/or its representative for inclusion in the overall Project documentation.
- c. As required, Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.
- d. Each meeting may last up to four hours and shall be held at the District office or at the Project site, unless otherwise indicated.

# 3. Initial Site Visits (One (1) meeting(s))

a. Architect shall visit the Project site to complete a visual inventory and documentation of the existing conditions.

### 4. Meetings During Design Development Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. At approximately mid-point of the Design Development phase, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting with District personnel and applicable engineering sub-consultants to confirm District standards and preferred systems.
- b. At the time designated for completion of the Design Development package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting[s], per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present the Design Development package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specification.

(ii) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget. At this time, proposed design alternates that may be required to ensure compliance with the District's Construction Budget will be determined.

# 5. Meetings During Construction Documents Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. At approximately the time designated for completion of the fifty percent (50%) submittal package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present progress on the Construction Documents submittal package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
- b. At the time designated for completion of the one hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package, concurrent with review by the Division of the State Architect, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present the hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.

# 6. Meetings During Bidding Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))

- a. Attend and take part in One (1) pre-bid meeting(s), per package or submittal, with all potential bidders, District staff, and Construction Manager.
- b. Conduct One (1) kick-off meeting(s) with the successful bidder, District staff, and Construction Manager to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each party and provide protocols and processes to follow during construction.

# 7. Meetings During Construction Administration Phase (weekly Project meetings until entire Project is complete; 3-month construction schedule assumed)

a. Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in

accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepancies in the Contract Documents and to monitor the progress of the construction of the Project.

- b. Conduct weekly Project meetings with District staff to review with District staff the progress of the work. Architect agrees to attend weekly Project meetings, at no additional cost to the District, until the work of the Project is complete.
- c. Architect shall ensure that Consultant(s) visit the site in conformance with their agreement(s) and that Consultant agreements shall reference District requirements for Construction Phase services.

### END OF EXHIBIT

### EXHIBIT "B"

### **CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES**

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:

- A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within **Exhibit "A."**
- B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A." Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A," so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct Architect to procure the deliverables at the District's expense or on the District's account at a specific vendor.
- C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
- D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
- E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
- F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement.
- G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
- H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.

Job Title	Hourly Rate
Principal In Charge:	\$250
Associate Principal:	\$240
Project Manager (Senior):	\$200
Designer:	\$130 - \$150
Assistant Project Manager:	\$190
Architect:	\$165 - \$190

Contract Administrator:	
Other	
Other	

- I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
  - 1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
    - a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
  - 2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.

### J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect's invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed. For example, a six hour charge for "RFIs and CORs" is unacceptable and will not be payable. A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is required. This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order. For example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this Agreement, would be payable. The times indicated below are just placeholders:

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, district, construction manager, and project inspector.	0.8 hours
Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and language for same.	0.7 hours
Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR.	1.2 hours

END OF EXHIBIT

# EXHIBIT "C"

# SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

- A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect proposes to carry out Architect's Services ("Schedule of Services"). The Schedule of Services shall apply to the completion of all Services listed hereunder within the times established by this Agreement. The Schedule of Services shall be in the form of a progress chart clearly delineating all important increments and review dates.
- B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within <u>30</u> calendar days after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed.
- C. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within <u>45</u> calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically indicated below. Excluded from this duration is the time associated with DSA review the Construction Documents back-check stage.
  - 1. 100% Submittal Package

# 45 calendar days

D. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement. If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District's inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the deadlines set forth in this Exhibit. If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in writing by the District.

END OF EXHIBIT

#### EXHIBIT "D"

# PAYMENT SCHEDULE

#### A. Compensation

- The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem expenses, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in **Exhibit** "A," or any other direct or indirect expenses incident to providing the Services. Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and **Exhibit** "B," there shall be no payment for extra costs or expenses.
- 2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
- 3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FEE PER PHASE		
Phase	Phase Amount	
Design Development Phase	<u>25%</u>	
Construction Documents Phase-Submittal to DSA	<u>35%</u>	
Approval by DSA	<u>10%</u>	
Bidding Phase	<u>5%</u>	
Construction Contract Administration Phase	<u>20%</u>	
Close Out Phase	<u>5%</u>	
TOTAL BASE COMPENSATION	<u>100%</u>	

### B. Method of Payment

- 1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District's authorized representative.
- 2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
- 3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect's monthly pay request format.
- 4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect's invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:

### a. For Design Development Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Design Development Phase by the District.

# b. For Construction Documents Phase:

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents Phase by the District.

# c. For Bidding Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon the District's award of the bid.

# d. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninetyfive percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon the District's notice of completion.

# e. For Close Out:

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase.

# END OF EXHIBIT

# EXHIBIT "E"

# **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

- A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and Consultant(s). Architect's liabilities, including but not limited to Architect's indemnity or defense obligations, under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this Agreement and Architect's failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when requested, may be treated by the District as a material breach of contract.
- B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability coverages that at least follow form over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for Commercial General Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability, Employers' Liability, and other liability coverage (except Professional Liability) designated under this Section B Insurance Requirements." Minimum Scope of Insurance.
  - 1. **Commercial General Liability.** Two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.
  - 2. **Commercial Automobile Liability**. One million dollars (\$1,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage.
  - 3. **Workers' Compensation Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation policy.
  - 4. **Employers' Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of Two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence.
  - 5. **Professional Liability**. This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$200,000)

per claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two (2) years thereafter.

- C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.
- D. **Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention**: Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds Two Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$200,000). At the option of the District, either:
  - 1. The District can accept the higher deductible; or
  - 2. Architect's insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.
  - 3.
- E. **Other Insurance Provisions**: The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
  - The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers ("Additional Insureds") are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Architect; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Architect. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.
  - 2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
  - 3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
  - 4. Architect's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
  - 5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
  - 6.

- 7. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.
- 8. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement.
- 9. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant's scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District's request. Should Architect not require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is required of Architect, as provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement.
- F. **Acceptability of Insurers**: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best's rating less than A:VII. At the option of the District, the District may either:
  - 1. Accept the lower rating; or
  - 2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
- G. **Verification of Coverage**: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
  - 1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
  - 2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before Services commence.
- H. **Copy of Insurance Policy(ies)**: Upon the District's request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.

END OF EXHIBIT



# **Agreement for Architectural Services**

# between

# **Sacramento City Unified School District**

and

# **Rainforth Grau Architects**

# Shade Structures at 7 Sites (Group 1) Project

Dated: January 13, 2022

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1	Definitions	1
Article 2	Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect	3
Article 3	Architect Staff	8
Article 4	Schedule of Services	9
Article 5	Construction Cost Budget	9
Article 6	Fee and Method of Payment	. 10
Article 7	Payment for Extra Services or Changes	. 11
Article 8	Ownership of Data	. 11
Article 9	Termination of Contract	. 13
Article 10	Indemnity / Architect Liability	. 14
Article 11	Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site	. 15
Article 12	Responsibilities of the District	. 16
Article 13	Liability of District	. 16
Article 14	Nondiscrimination	. 17
Article 15	Insurance	. 17
Article 16	Covenant against Contingent Fees	. 17
Article 17	Entire Agreement/Modification	. 17
Article 18	Non-Assignment of Agreement	. 17
Article 19	Law, Venue	. 18
Article 20	Alternative Dispute Resolution	. 18
Article 21	Tolling of Claims	. 19
Article 22	Attorneys' Fees	. 19
Article 23	Severability	. 19
Article 24	Employment Status	. 19
Article 25	Certificate of Architect	. 20
Article 26	Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports	. 21
Article 27	Notice & Communications	. 21
Article 28	[RESERVED]	. 21
Article 29	District's Right to Audit	. 21
Article 30	Other Provisions	. 22
Article 31	Exhibits "A" through "E"	. 23

EXHIBIT "A" – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT	A-1
EXHIBIT "B" – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES	B-1
EXHIBIT "C" – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES	C-1
EXHIBIT "D" – PAYMENT SCHEDULE	D-1
EXHIBIT "E" – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	E-1

#### AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of January 13, 2022, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district ("District"), and Rainforth Grau Architect ("Architect") (collectively "Parties"), for the following project ("Project"):

Shade Structures at 7 Sites (Group 1): Installation for approximately 2,000 sqft shade structures at Alice Birney, John Bidwell, John Sloat, Joseph Bonnheim, Leataata Floyd, Sequoia and Tahoe Elementary Schools.

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

#### Article 1. Definitions

- 1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
  - 1.1.1. **Agreement**: The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
  - 1.1.2. **Architect**: The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect. The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
  - 1.1.3. **As-Built Drawings ("As-Builts")**: Any document prepared and submitted by District's Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District's construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.
  - 1.1.4. **Bid Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect ("DSA") has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
  - 1.1.5. **Conforming Set**: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase. The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA approval is required.

- 1.1.6. **Construction Budget**: The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
- 1.1.7. <u>Construction Change Documents ("CCD")</u>: The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- 1.1.8. **Construction Cost Budget**: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement. The Construction Cost Budget does not include the compensation of the Architect and the Architect's Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other costs which are the responsibility of the District, including construction management.
- 1.1.9. **Construction Manager**: The District's representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner's representative.
- 1.1.10. **Contractor**: One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
- 1.1.11. **Consultant(s)**: Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
- 1.1.12. **District**: The Sacramento City Unified School District.
- 1.1.13. **DSA**: The Division of the State Architect.
- 1.1.14. **Extra Services**: District-authorized services outside of the scope in **Exhibit "A"** or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect's Fee.
- 1.1.15. **Laboratory of Record**: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
- 1.1.16. **Project**: District's Shade Structures at 7 Sites (Group 1) Project at:

Alice Birney 6251 13<sup>th</sup> Street, Sacramento, CA 95831 John Bidwell 1730 65<sup>th</sup> Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95822

John Sloat 7525 Candlewood Way, Sacramento, CA 95822

Joseph Bonnheim 7300 Marin Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95820

Leataata Floyd 401 McClatchy Way, Sacramento, CA 95818

Sequoia 3333 Rosemont Drive, Sacramento, CA 95826

Tahoe 3110 60<sup>th</sup> Street, Sacramento, CA 95820

- 1.1.17. **<u>Record Drawings</u>**: A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.
- 1.1.18. **Service(s)**: All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.
- 1.1.19. **Visually Verify**: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

# Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect

- 2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in **Exhibit "A**," commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative. Architect's Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as **Exhibit "C**."
- 2.2. Architect shall provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law, including, but not limited to, the requirements of the California Business and Professions Code, the California Education Code, and the California Code of Regulations. All persons providing

professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required by California law.

- 2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process. District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect's scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
- 2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are obligated to develop and implement the following storm water requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one (1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance (e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities.
  - 2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation:
    - 2.4.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System ("MS4"). An MS4 is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm drains.
    - 24.12. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan ("SWPPP") that contains specific best management practices ("BMPs") and establishes numeric effluent limitations.
  - 2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District's storm water requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District. In addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final development of the site. This drawing will also include a horizontal and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan. The Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of the Architect.
- 2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect's expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement. The names

of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to commencement of Services, as indicated below. The District reserves the right to reject Architect's use of any particular Consultant. Nothing in the foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the Agreement. Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement.

- 2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related to the Project. This shall include, without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any. If the Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any.
- 2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects.
  - 2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or referenced in the following forms, bulletins ("BU"), interpretations of regulations ("IR"), policies ("PL"), or procedures ("PR"):
    - 2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal and Approval Process.
    - 2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School District, Contractor and Design Professional.
    - 2.7.1.3. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018.
    - 2.7.1.4. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-Counter ("OTC") Projects Using Bluebeam 2018.

- 2.7.1.5. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process.
  - 2.7.1.5.1. Each of Architect's duties as provided in the DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be performed timely so as not to result in any delay to the Project.
- 2.7.1.6. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process.
- 2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission, for all projects submitted to DSA. Architect, and its Consultants, if any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control.
- 2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or federal agencies' approval for on-site and off-site work related to the Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.
- 2.9. Architect shall direct and monitor the work of the District's DSA project inspector(s) ("Project Inspector(s)") and the Laboratory of Record. Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory of Record.
- 2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its best skill and attention. Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions ("Contract Documents") and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project Inspector(s). Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions.
- 2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain

coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information ("RFI"), providing RFI responses, and leading all coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and Contractors on the Project. The District reserves the right to retain the services of a Construction Manager at any time. The Construction Manager, if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District. The District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at any time. Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed by the Governing Board of the District. In addition, the District may have a constructability review of Architect's design documents. Architect shall conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any compensation as Extra Services for this activity.

- 2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may use on its website.
- 2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not responsible for:
  - 2.13.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.
  - 2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such information provided by District.
  - 2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no additional cost to the District.
  - 2.13.4. Historical significance report.
  - 2.13.5. Soils investigation.
  - 2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in **Exhibit "A."**

### Article 3. Architect Staff

- 3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
- 3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect's firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:

Principal In Charge:	Jeffrey Grau
Project Director:	Vipul Safi
Project Architect(s):	Affifa Kadhim (PM)
Project Architect(s):	
Other:	
Major Consultants:	
Electrical:	Edge Electrical
Civil:	Warren Green Engineering

- 3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect. In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve replacement personnel.
- 3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to the District. All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions stated in this paragraph.
- 3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect.
- 3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in "responsible charge" of persons who observe the construction.

#### Article 4. Schedule of Services

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in **Exhibit "A**," so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule in **Exhibit "C**." Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement. It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect's or its Consultant(s)' reasonable control.

### Article 5. Construction Cost Budget

- 5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District's established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope. In accordance with **Exhibit "A**," the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project and at the completion of each design phase. The District and Construction Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget with the Architect.
- 5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in **Exhibit "A**," including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the District's written approval. Architect shall maintain cost controls throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost Budget.
- 5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur:
  - 5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the Construction Cost Budget.
  - 5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or rebid the Project within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids (exclusive of District and other agencies' review time) at no additional cost to the District.
  - 5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the District, without further obligation by either party.
  - 5.3.4. Within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as approved by the District) to bring the Project within the

Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the District.

- 5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above:
  - 5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
  - 5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or
  - 5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to uncontrollable events in the world economy.

### Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following ("Fee"):

An amount not to exceed One Hundred Eighty-Two Thousand Dollars (\$182,000) based on the rates set forth in **Exhibit "D**."

- 6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of **Exhibit** "**D**."
- 6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect's error or omission.
- 6.5. The Architect's Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in **Exhibit "D**."
- 6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect's Fee, the Architect's Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.

6.7. Neither the District's review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the District caused by Architect's failure to perform any of the Services furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in or around the same geographic area as the District.

# Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit** "**B**" only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed. If any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative, the District will not be obligated to pay for such service. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, Architect will be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit "B**" for Extra Services that the Construction Manager or the District's authorized representative verbally requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the request from the Architect.

### Article 8. Ownership of Data

- 8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a nonexclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.
- 8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology ("CADD") (e.g., AutoCAD). Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format. As to any drawings that Architect provides in a CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all documents.

- 8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a "hard" copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information. The District agrees to release Architect from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) subsequent to it being given to the District.
- 8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter "Instruments of Service"), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way permitted by statute:
  - 8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
  - 8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
  - 8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
  - 8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
  - 8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.
- 8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect's knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction. In the event that the District uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect's full involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information that might identify Architect and its Consultants.

# Article 9. Termination of Contract

- 9.1. <u>District's Request for Assurances</u>: If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the District may advise Architect of in writing. Architect shall, within ten (10) days of District's request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the requirements of the District's request for assurances. Architect's failure to provide such written assurances of performance and the required written plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause.
- 9.2. <u>District's Termination of Architect for Cause</u>: If Architect fails to perform Architect's duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect's material obligations under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect. In the event of a termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to the District's costs because of Architect's actions, errors, or omissions.
- 9.3. <u>District's Termination of Architect for Convenience</u>: District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience. In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until the District's notice of termination for convenience.
- 9.4. <u>Architect's Termination of Agreement for Cause</u>: Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect. Such termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Architect to the District. Architect may invoice the District and the District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until Architect's notice of termination.

- 9.5. <u>Effect on Pre-Termination Services</u>: Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such termination.
- 9.6. <u>Ceasing Services upon Termination</u>: If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project. The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of termination.
- 9.7. <u>Project Suspension</u>: If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect's compensation shall be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the Architect's Services. Architect shall make every effort to maintain the same Project personnel after suspension. If the District suspends the Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice.

# Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability

10.1. To the fullest extent permitted by California law and in accordance with California Civil Code section 2782.8, Architect shall indemnify, and hold free and harmless the District, its agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees and members ("Indemnified Parties") from any and all actions, assessments, counts, citations, claims, costs, damages, demands, judgments, liabilities (legal, administrative or otherwise), losses, notices, expenses, fines, penalties, proceedings, responsibilities, violations, attorney's and consultants' fees and causes of action to property or persons, including personal injury and/or death ("Claim(s)"), to the extent that the Claim(s) arises out of, pertains to, or relates to, the negligence (active or passive, ordinary or gross), recklessness (ordinary or gross), or willful misconduct of Architect, its directors, officials, officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, subconsultants or agents arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performance of the Services, the Project, or this Agreement. Architect also has the duty to defend the Indemnified Parties from all Claims at Architect's own expense, including attorneys' fees and costs; however, in no event shall the cost to defend charged to the Architect exceed the Architect's proportionate percentage of fault. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, in the event one or more defendants is unable to pay its share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or

dissolution of the business, the design professional shall meet and confer with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs. If a Claim arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's or the Architect's request, the District and the Architect agree to undertake good faith measures to allow the Architect to assist the District in resolving the dispute or litigation. The Architect's assistance, described as "Mandatory Assistance" in Exhibit A, Section B.8, shall be provided at Architect's own expense and excluded from any reimbursement calculation. At the commencement of the Mandatory Assistance Phase, District and Architect shall also in good faith as to the scope and extent of further assistance, including a joint defense agreement. During the Mandatory Assistance Phase, each Party shall be responsible for their own attorneys' fees and costs incurred; however, each Party reserves its rights pursuant to Civil Code section 2782.8.

- 10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim as defined in Article 10.1. These amounts may be paid by Architect to District or the District may in reasonable good faith withhold those costs from amounts owing to Architect, pending resolution of the dispute.
- 10.3. Architect's duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement until any such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute of limitations and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the District may have under the law or under this Agreement.

# Article 11. Fingerprinting

- 11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. Architect shall promptly notify the District in writing of any facts or circumstances which might reasonably lead the District to determine that contact will be more than limited as defined by Education Code section 45125.1(d).
- 11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19. Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect's personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable terms in the CDPH's State Public Health Officer Orders.

# Article 12. Responsibilities of the District

- 12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect's Services.
- 12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect's documents. Failure to provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, if any.
- 12.3. Unless the District and Architect agree that a hazardous materials consultant shall be a Consultant of the Architect, the District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall include: asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement documentation; and specifications related to said matters, which are to be incorporated into bid documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous materials consultant is furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of the Architect, the specifications shall include a note to the effect that the hazardous materials consultant's specifications are included in the Architect's bid documents for the District's convenience and have not been prepared or reviewed by the Architect. The note shall also direct questions about the hazardous materials consultant's specifications related to asbestos and lead paint survey and/or abatement documentation to the preparer of the hazardous materials consultant's specifications.

# Article 13. Liability of District

- 13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District's financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services performed in connection with this Agreement.
- 13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

### Article 14. Nondiscrimination

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance by all of its subcontractor(s).

#### Article 15. Insurance

- 15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in **Exhibit "E."**
- 15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in **Exhibit "E."**

### Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency.

### Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto. Architect shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no others.

#### Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.

## Article 19. Law, Venue

- 19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
- 19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

# Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution

- 20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other party to the Agreement. The demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial written notice.
- 20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to the Architect's right to bring a civil action against the District. For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized by any applicable meet and confer process.
- 20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.

## Article 21. Tolling of Claims

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District's assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors' or subcontractors' claims against District involving Architect's work, until the Contractors' or subcontractors' claims are finally resolved.

## Article 22. Attorneys' Fees

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, including consultants' fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as may be fixed by the court. The term "prevailing party" shall mean the party who received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.

# Article 23. Severability

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

## Article 24. Employment Status

- 24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such Services.
- 24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect's personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District employee.

- 24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability). The District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.
- 24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability).
- 24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of the District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a reduction in District's liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an employee.
- 24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

## Article 25. Certificate of Architect

- 25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
- 25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this Agreement.

25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain "public works" and "maintenance" projects ("Prevailing Wage Laws"). Architect agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect and its Consultants' professional services to be provided under this Agreement.

#### Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars (\$5,000).

#### Article 27. Notice & Communications

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent to the following addresses:

#### **District:**

#### Architect:

Sacramento City Unified School District 5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824 ATTN: Jessica Sulli, Contract Specialist EMAIL: <u>Jessica-sulli@scuscd.edu</u> Rainforth Grau Architects 2101 Capitol Ave Ste 100 Sacramento, CA 95816 ATTN: Jeffrey Grau, Principal EMAIL: jgrau@rainforthgrau.com

With a Copy to: Dannis Woliver Kelley 200 California Street #400 San Francisco, CA 94111 ATTN: Deidree Sakai, Esq.

Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt. Any notice sent by electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission. Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery. Any notice given by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail.

## Article 28. [RESERVED]

## Article 29. District's Right to Audit

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect's and any Consultant's premises to review and audit the Architect's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement ("District's

Right"). The District's Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to retain copies, outside of Architect's premises, of any and all Project-related records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable law.

- 29.2. The District's Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement.
- 29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District's Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, or anticipated to be incurred.
- 29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon District's request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all requested records to the District.
- 29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
- 29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District's written request to review and audit any or all of Architect's Project-related records and information.

# Article 30. Other Provisions

- 30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter of the Agreement.
- 30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.

- 30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the Parties hereto.
- 30.4. Architect shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount of any tax deduction and/or credit Architect receives for District Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179D ("Section 179D"). Architect shall provide District with all necessary documentation to enable District to verify the amounts of the Section 179D tax deduction. Architect shall notify District in writing of the Section 179D tax deduction within 30 days of when Architect receives IRS notice of the Section 179D tax deduction or receives the Section 179D tax refund, whichever occurs first.
- Article 31. Exhibits "A" through "E" attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.

# [SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

# SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

#### **RAINFORTH GRAU ARCHITECTS**

Ву:	Rose Ramos	
	Chief Business Officer	
Date:	02/07/2022	

Ву:	leffrey Glau Principal	_
Date:	01-28-2022	

# EXHIBIT "A"

# **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Α.	SCOPE OF PROJECT	1
В.	BASIC SERVICES	2
С.	PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES	5
D.	SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE	8
Е.	CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE	
F.	BIDDING PHASE	
G.	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE	
Н.		
I.	MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS	

# EXHIBIT "A"

# **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT**

Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following:

## SCOPE OF PROJECT

Project Name: Shade Structures at 7 Sites (Group 1) Project Description:

- Shade structures at seven school sites for outside dining
- Structures to be approximately 2,000 sf
- Structures to have hip roofs
- Structures will be DSA approved PC structures engineered for lowest minimum soil bearing capacity (1500 psi); PC drawings to be provided by Mfr at time of bid
- Structure specifications will allow for multiple vendors
- Concrete pad to be provided at each structure
- Lighting and minimal power to be provided at each structure
- ADA improvements assumed to be limited to 20% to 30% of estimated construction value; improvements significantly beyond this threshold may be added services which should be allocated for in fee contingency based on final DSA requirements

Specific Scope Exclusions:

- No signal systems to structures
- No fire sprinklers at structures
- Fire water distribution extensions and/or new hydrants for fire protection

## SCOPE OF SERVICES

- Site investigation for each site
  - On-site visits to confirm existing conditions and constraints including parking, paving and power capacity for structure lighting and convenience outlet
  - Smart level assessment of POT grades to establish conditions
  - Topographic survey limited to POT for basic compliance when needed for engineering
- DSA Preliminary Meeting to review scope and ADA requirements
- Location confirmation
  - Work with District to finalize structure locations considering site desires, existing

conditions, and code issues

- Shade structure investigation
  - Review options of PC shade structures with District
  - Develop recommendations on structures to specify
  - Confirm structure costs and requirements (i.e., need for geotechnical reports)
- Finalize site plans with location of structure, POT, and other improvements necessary
- Identification of ADA upgrades beyond POT if needed
- Final plans, specifications, project manual for bidding
- QA/QC check of documents
- District/Architect page-turn-review of final bid documents
- Agency approvals (DSA only; no local fire authority unless requested by District)
- Bidding assistance
- General construction contract administration services
- Close-out and certification

Exclusions from Services:

- 1. ADA improvements beyond those described above
- 2. Topographic survey beyond POT as noted above
- 3. Structural engineering of shade structures (by manufacturer)
- 4. Geotechnical Investigation / Geohazards Investigation
- 5. Storm Water Prevention Pollution Plan
- 6. Exhaustive evaluation of utility services and distribution/collection systems
- 7. Assessment, testing or removal of hazardous materials (assume none)
- 8. Services or activities not specifically noted above
- 9. Detailed cost estimates
- 10. Printing of documents for District, Agency, Bidding and GC use
- 11. Closeout services for uncertified buildings on site

# **BASIC SERVICES**

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:

 Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District. Architect shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.

- 2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance. Architect shall advise the District of the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each stage of design. Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and disclosed information.
- 3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect's scope of work. This information shall include, if available,
  - a. As-builts;
  - b. Physical characteristics;
  - c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
  - d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
  - e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
  - f. Adjacent drainage;
  - g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
  - h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
  - i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
  - j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
  - k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the documents provided by the District.

If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires: a topographical survey; a

geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that information. If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as Extra Services.

4. **Mandatory Assistance.** If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation ("Mandatory Assistance").

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# C. PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES

## 1. Project Initiation

Upon final execution of the Agreement with the District, Architect shall:

- a. Within the first week following execution of the Agreement, review the proposed Schedule of Services set forth in **Exhibit "C"** to the Agreement and prepare a detailed scope of work list and work plan for documentation to the District's satisfaction. This scope of work list and work plan will identify specific tasks including, but not limited to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, planning, architectural programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and estimating that are part of the work of the Project. Architect shall also identify milestone activities or dates, specific task responsibilities, required completion times necessary for review and approval by the District and by all regulatory agencies and additional definition of deliverables.
- b. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications.

#### 2. Development of Architectural Program

Architect shall prepare for the District's review of an architectural program as follows:

- a. Perform pre-design investigations to establish appropriate guidelines around which and within which the Project is to be designed. Identify design issues relating to functional needs, directives and constraints imposed by regulatory codes. Review all data pertinent to the Project including survey, site maps, geotechnical reports and recommendations, soil testing results reports, and pertinent historical data, and other relevant information provided by District.
- b. Review DSA codes pertaining to the proposed Project design.
- c. Identify design issues relating to functional needs, directives and constraints imposed by applicable regulatory codes.
- d. Based on survey and topography data provided by the District, input into computer and develop existing conditions base for the Schematic Design Phase.
- e. Administer Project as required to coordinate work with the District and among Consultants.

f. Develop District standards for facilities and construction, including but not limited to designation of any material, product, thing or service by specific brand or trade name pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400, subdivision (c).

## 3. Construction Cost Budget

- a. Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget within the parameters of the Construction Budget established by the District for the Project. The estimates forming the basis of the Construction Cost Budget are to be based on the developed functional architectural program as approved by the District. The following conditions apply to the Construction Cost Budget prepared by the Architect:
  - (i) All costs are to be based on current bid prices, with escalation rate and duration clearly identified as a separate line item; rate of cost escalation and projected bid and construction dates are to be approved by the District and its representatives.
  - (ii) Format shall be in a building systems format (e.g., foundations, substructure, structural system, exterior wall enclosure, window systems, etc.) for new buildings, and summarized by the Construction Specification Institute ("CSI") categories for buildings being modernized.
  - (iii) Contingencies for design, bidding, and construction are to be included as individual line items, with the percentage and base of calculation clearly identified.
  - (iv) Architect shall include all information and estimates from the District and/or the Construction Manager that are intended to be part of the Construction Cost Budget.
  - (v) One week prior to submittal of documents, Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.
  - (vi) Mechanical, electrical, civil, landscape and estimating consultant(s) shall participate in the progress meeting as appropriate and shall provide input and feedback into the development of the Construction Cost Budget.
- b. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget for the Project. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.

#### 4. **Presentation**

*If requested,* Architect, along with any involved consultant(s), shall present and review with the District and, if directed, with the District's Governing Board, the summary and detail of work involved in this Phase, including two-dimensional renderings of any proposed facility suitable for public presentation.

#### 5. **Deliverables and Numbers of Copies**

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District an electronic copy of the following items produced in this Phase:

- a. Architectural Program (include comparison between developed program and "model" program, include narrative explaining any substantial deviations);
- b. Site Plan;
- c. Revised Construction Cost Budget;
- d. Final Schedule of Services;
- e. Meeting Reports/Minutes from the Kick-off and other meetings; and
- f. Renderings, if requested by District.

#### 6. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

## [REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# D. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare for the District's review a Schematic Design Study, containing the following items as applicable to the Project scope, as follows:

- Prepare and review with District staff a scope of work list and work plan identifying specific tasks including, but not limited to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, planning, architectural programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and estimating that are part of the work of the Project. Also identified will be milestone activities or dates, specific task responsibilities of the Architect, required completion times necessary for the review and approval by the District and by pertinent regulatory agencies and additional definition of deliverables.
- 2. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications.

## 3. Architectural

- a. Scaled plans showing overall dimensions, identifying the various major areas and their relationship.
- b. Preliminary exterior elevations and sections in sufficient detail to demonstrate design concept indicating location and size of fenestration.
- c. Identify minimum finish requirements
- d. Identify code requirements, include occupancy classification(s) and type of construction.

#### 4. Civil

Develop on Path of Travel plan

a. Coordinate finish floor elevations with architectural site plan.

## 5. Specifications

Prepare outline specifications of proposed architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical materials, systems and equipment and their criteria and quality standards. Architect is to use District's standardized equipment/material list for new construction and modernization in development of the Project design and specifications. Architect shall review and comment on District's construction bid contracts and contract documents (the "Division 0" and "Division 1" documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement.

## 6. **Construction Cost Budget**

Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the preceding Phase, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost Budget:

- Schematic Estimates: This estimate consists of unit cost applied to the major items and quantities of work. The unit cost shall reflect the complete direct current cost of work. Complete cost includes labor, material, waste allowance, sales tax and subcontractor's mark-up.
- b. The estimate shall separate the Project's building cost from site and utilities cost. Architect shall submit to the District the cost estimating format for prior review and approval.
- c. Escalation: all estimates shall be priced out at current market conditions. The estimates shall incorporate all adjustments as appropriate, relating to mid-point construction, contingency, and cost index (i.e. Lee Saylor Index).
- d. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.
- e. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District and Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.
- f. At the end of this Phase, the Construction Cost Budget may include design contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates.

## 7. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Breakdown of Construction Cost Budget as prepared for this Phase;
- b. Meeting reports/minutes;
- c. Schematic Design Package with alternatives;

- d. Statement indicating changes made to the Architectural Program and Schedule; and
- e. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.

#### 8. Presentation

- a. Architect shall present and review with the District the detailed Schematic Design.
- b. The Schematic Design shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District.

#### 9. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# E. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect's scope of work. All Projects subject to DSA's jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic plan review process ("EPR process"), rather than paper submission.

# 1. Construction Documents ("CD")

## a. General

Verify lead times and availability of all Project equipment, materials, and supplies and ensure that all of these will be available to the Contractor in a timely fashion so as not to delay the Project.

## b. Architectural

- (i) Completed site plan.
- (ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections.
- (iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed.
- (iv) Site utility plans completed.
- (v) Fixed equipment details and identification completed.

## c. **Electrical**

(i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls. Fixture schedule and lighting details completed.

## d. Civil

All site plans, completed.

## e. Construction Cost Budget

(i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project. Along with the conditions identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the fifty percent (50%) Construction Documents Phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget.

- (ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District's Construction Budget. The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of the Architect.
- (iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for review and approval. At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.
- (iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates.

# f. Specifications

- (i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria required for the construction of the Project.
- (ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by specific brand or trade name unless:
  - (A) The specification is followed by the words "or equal" so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public Contract Code section 3400, or
  - (B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400.
- (iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with District's prior approval.
- (iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District.
- (v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other disciplines.
- (vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format.

## g. Constructability Review

The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a constructability review of the Construction Documents. A report shall be given to the

Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments for each item listed in the report. Conducting a constructability review does not excuse the Architect's obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law.

## h. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- (i) Working drawings;
- (ii) Specifications;
- (iii) Engineering calculations;
- (iv) Construction Cost Budgets;
- (v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance with Construction Documents and applicable codes;
- (vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, backcheck comments, checklists to date; and
- (vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved Construction Cost Budget. If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur between disciplines, identify for District review.

## 2. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage:

- a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, specifications, and estimate. All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall be at no additional cost to the District.
- b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the Architect's work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following:
  - (i) Drawings: Original tracings of all drawings on Architect's tracing paper with each Architect/Consultant's State license stamp.

- (ii) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible masters in CSI format.
- c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants' completed Contract Documents.
- d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA.

#### 3. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

## [REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# F. BIDDING PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for District as follows:

- 1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
- 2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
- 3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect. Nevertheless, Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.
- 4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect.
- 5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for decision by the District as to the proper procedure required. Corrective action will be in the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.
- 6. Attend bid opening.
- 7. Coordinate with Consultants.
- 8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
- 9. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and
- c. Upon completion of the Bidding Phase, Architect shall produce a Conforming Set of plans and specifications incorporating all addenda issued thus far. Architect shall supply District with two (2) complete, reproducible sets of plans and specifications marked as a Conforming Set.

# G. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE

Upon District's acceptance of Architect's work in the previous Phase and assuming District has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract Administration Phase services for the District as follows:

1. Architect's responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District's terminating the Agreement, whichever is earlier.

## 2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process

- a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project by submitting the applicable Inspector's Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 152 or more current version).
- b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards (forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been awarded. Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior to commencement of construction.
- c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record.
- d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more current version) for all construction contracts.
- e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved construction documents. Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.
- f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved construction documents.
- g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary.

- h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off that section of the project inspection card.
- i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more current version) to the DSA.
- j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur: (1) when construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) DSA requests a Verified Report.

# 3. Change Orders

- a. Architect shall review all of Contractor's change order requests to determine if those requests are valid and appropriate. Architect shall provide a recommendation to District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.
- b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change orders. The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as Extra Services by the District. The original tracing(s) and/or drawings and contract wording for change orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and distribution.

## 4. Submittals

- a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.
- b. Architect shall review Contractor's schedule of submittals and advise the District on whether that schedule is complete. Architect shall provide the District with proposed revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should approve this schedule.

- c. Architect's action upon Contractor's submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to permit adequate review. In no case shall the review period associated with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt by the Architect. Architect's response to each submittal shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.
- 5. **RFIs.** During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must respond to all Requests for Information ("RFI") as expeditiously as possible so as not to impact and delay the construction progress. In no case shall the review period associated with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect. Architect's response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable response. This seven-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District's control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA. In no way does this provision reduce the Architect's liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents. Architect must verify that RFIs are passed through the Project Inspector, if any.
- 6. **Notices of Deficient Work**. On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard the District against defects and deficiencies in the work. Architect shall timely notify the District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District's Contractors that Architect may observe. However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of the Contractor's performance.
- 7. **As-Built Drawings.** Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)' documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts. As-Builts are documents that show the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District's construction Contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.
- 8. **Record Drawings.** Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District. The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the construction Contractor's representations of actual construction. Architect shall deliver the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District's approval

of Architect's final payment. Architect may insert the following notice on the Record Drawings:

These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others. Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

- O&M Manuals and Warranties. Architect shall review equipment, operation and maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and specifications.
- 10. **Start-up.** Architect shall also provide, at the District's request, architectural/engineering advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the acceptance of the Contractor's work.
- 11. **Payment Statements.** Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect's representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best of Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in general conformance with the Contract Documents.

## 12. Deliverables and Number of Copies

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

- a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;
- b. Observation reports; and
- c. Weekly meeting reports.

#### 13. Meetings

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# H. CLOSE OUT PHASE

- 1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner:
  - a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion.
  - b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect's recommendation as to the adequacy of these items.
  - c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project.
  - d. Architect shall respond to the DSA "90-day" letter.
  - e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents and addenda to the Contractor's contract.
  - f. Architect shall prepare a set of As-Built Drawings for the Project, as required by the District.
  - g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation.
  - h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder.
  - i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to closeout the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.
- 2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project.

#### 3. **Deliverables and Number of Copies**

- a. Punch list; and
- b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and Record Drawings. These are the sole property of the District.

#### 4. Meetings

During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

# I. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS

 Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below. Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all coordination meetings with its Consultant(s) during the entire design phase. Architect shall invite the District and/or its representative to participate in these meetings. Architect shall keep a separate log to document design/coordination comments generated in these meetings.

## 2. General Meeting, Site Visit, and Workshop Requirements

- a. Architect shall always be prepared to answer questions and issues from District staff, site staff, potential bidders, and/or Contractors, as applicable.
- b. Architect shall maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or site observations held in conjunction with the design and construction of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions, questions or comments. These shall be furnished to the District and/or its representative for inclusion in the overall Project documentation.
- c. As required, Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.
- d. Each meeting may last up to a full day (eight (8) hours) and shall be held at the District office or at the Project site, unless otherwise indicated.

## 3. Meetings During Project Initiation Phase (One (1)) meeting(s))

- a. Within the first week following execution of the Agreement, Architect shall participate in one (1) Project kick-off meeting to determine the Project intent, scope, budget and timetable, which shall encompass the following:
  - (i) Architect, its appropriate consultant(s), and District staff, shall attend the meeting.
  - (ii) The Project kick-off meeting will introduce key team members from the District and the Architect to each other, defining roles and responsibilities relative to the Project.
  - (iii) During this meeting, Architect shall:
    - (A) Identify and review pertinent information and/or documentation necessary from the District for the completion of the Project.

- (B) Review and explain the overall Project goals, general approach, tasks, work plan and procedures and deliverable products of the Project.
- (C) Review and explain the scope of work and Project work plan for all parties present; determine any adjustments or fine tuning that needs to be made to the work plan.
- (D) Review documentation of the Project kick-off meeting prepared by the District's representative and comment prior to distribution.
- b. Architect shall participate in One (1) meeting(s) as requested by District.
   (A)

# 4. Initial Site Visits (One (1)) meeting(s))

a. Architect shall visit the Project site to complete a visual inventory and documentation of the existing conditions.

# 5. Meetings During Architectural Program (Two (2)) meeting(s))

- a. Architect shall conduct One (1) site visit/meeting(s) with the District's facilities team to gather information from District facilities team and site personnel and to make a visual presentation regarding the Project.
- b. Electrical, civil, mechanical, structural, landscaping, and estimating consultant(s) shall participate in these meetings as appropriate and shall provide input and feedback into the development of the Construction Cost Budget.
- c. Architect shall conduct a minimum of One (1) additional meetings as requested by District.

## 6. Meetings During Schematic Design Phase (One (1)) meeting(s))

- a. Within the first two weeks following the start of the Schematic Design Phase, Architect shall conduct One (1) design workshop with the District's facilities team and site personnel to complete a basic design framework with computer-aided design equipment ("CADD"). The District may, at its discretion, allow Architect to proceed with this meeting without using CADD. This workshop shall be ongoing and may include several meetings and shall not be concluded until each attendee has indicated his or her acceptance with the Architect's preliminary design. This workshop shall include the following:
  - (i) Architect shall designate its team member duties and responsibilities.

- (ii) Architect and District shall review District goals and expectations.
- (iii) District shall provide input and requirements.
- (iv) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
- (v) Prepare and/or revise the scope of work list and general work plan from the Pre-Design Phase, for documentation in a computer-generated Project schedule.
- (vi) Establish methods to facilitate the communication and coordination efforts for the Project.

#### b. Value Engineering Workshop (One (1)) meeting(s))

 Architect shall conduct value engineering workshop(s), as requested by the District, which shall include all of Architect's Consultant(s), the District, and the Construction Manager during the Design Development Phase. This workshop shall be ongoing and may include several meetings.

#### 7. Meetings During Construction Documents Phase (One (1)) meeting(s))

- a. At the time designated for completion of the one hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
  - (i) Present the hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - (ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.

## 8. Meetings During Bidding Phase (Two (2)) meeting(s))

- a. Attend and take part in One (1) meeting, per package or submittal, with all potential bidders, District staff, and Construction Manager.
- b. Conduct One (1) kick-off meeting(s) with the successful bidder, District staff, and Construction Manager to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each party and provide protocols and processes to follow during construction.

# 9. Meetings During Construction Administration Phase (weekly Project meetings until entire Project is complete)

- a. Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepancies in the Contract Documents and to monitor the progress of the construction of the Project.
- b. Conduct weekly Project meetings with District staff to review with District staff the progress of the work. Architect agrees to attend weekly Project meetings, at no additional cost to the District, until the work of the Project is complete.
- c. Architect shall ensure that Consultant(s) visit the site in conformance with their agreement(s) and that Consultant agreements shall reference District requirements for Construction Phase services.

#### EXHIBIT "B"

## **CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES**

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:

- A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within **Exhibit "A."**
- B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A." Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit "A," so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct Architect to procure the deliverables at the District's expense or on the District's account at a specific vendor.
- C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
- D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
- E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
- F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement.
- G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
- H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.

Job Title	Hourly Rate
Principal Architect	\$215
Associate Principal	\$200
Associate	\$190
Senior Architect/Project Manager	\$180
Architect II	\$165

Project Manager	\$155
Architect I	\$145
Job Captain II	\$135
Job Captain I	\$120
Designer:	\$100
Graphic Designer	\$135
Interior Designer II	\$135
Interior Designer I	\$100
Project Management Assistant	\$100
Clerical	\$95

- I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
  - 1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
    - a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
  - 2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.

#### J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect's invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed. For example, a six hour charge for "RFIs and CORs" is unacceptable and will not be payable. A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is required. This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order. For example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this Agreement, would be payable. The times indicated below are just placeholders:

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, district, construction manager, and project inspector.	0.8 hours
Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and language for same.	0.7 hours
Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR.	1.2 hours

## EXHIBIT "C"

# SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

Proposal Approval / Authorization	Jan2022
Planning & Design	Jan-Feb 2022
Construction Documents	Feb – Mar 2022
Shade Structure Procurement	Feb – Mar (purchase method TBD)
DSA Review & Approval (OTC)	Mar (subsequent increment approval of PC drawings)
Bidding - Site	April
Award	May
Construction	May – TBD based on material availability

All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement. If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District's inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the deadlines set forth in this Exhibit. If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in writing by the District.

## EXHIBIT "D"

## PAYMENT SCHEDULE

#### A. Compensation

1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect's Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem expenses, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in **Exhibit "A**," or any other direct or indirect expenses incident to providing the Services. Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and **Exhibit "B**," there shall be no payment for extra costs or expenses.

2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.

3. District shall pay Architect according to its hourly rate schedule set forth in Exhibit "B" for all Services contracted for under this Agreement.

#### B. Method of Payment

- 1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District's authorized representative.
- 2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
- 3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect's monthly pay request format.
- 4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect's invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice.

## EXHIBIT "E"

## **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

- A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and Consultant(s). Architect's liabilities, including but not limited to Architect's indemnity or defense obligations, under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this Agreement and Architect's failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when requested, may be treated by the District as a material breach of contract.
- B. **Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance**: Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits:
  - 1. **Commercial General Liability.** One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.
  - 2. **Commercial Automobile Liability, Any Auto**. One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
  - 3. **Workers' Compensation Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation policy.
  - 4. **Employers' Liability**. For all of the Architect's employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence.
  - 5. **Professional Liability**. This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000) per claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two (2) years thereafter.
- C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.

- D. **Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention**: Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000). At the option of the District, either:
  - 1. The District can accept the higher deductible;
  - 2. Architect's insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or
  - 3. Architect shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.
- E. **Other Insurance Provisions**: The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
  - The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers ("Additional Insureds") are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Architect; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Architect. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.
  - 2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
  - 3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
  - 4. Architect's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
  - 5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
  - 6. No policy may exclude insurance coverage for contractual indemnity and/or defense obligations, and all policies shall contain an endorsement specifying coverage for contractual indemnity and/or defense.
  - 7. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested,

has been given to the District.

- 8. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement.
- 9. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant's scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District's request. Should Architect not require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is required of Architect, as provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement.
- 10. If Architect normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the minimum amounts required herein, that greater amount shall become the minimum required amount of insurance for purposes of the Agreement. Therefore, Architect hereby acknowledges and agrees that all insurance carried by it shall be deemed liability coverage for all actions it performs in connection with the Agreement.
- F. **Acceptability of Insurers**: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best's rating less than A:VII. At the option of the District, the District may either:
  - 1. Accept the lower rating; or
  - 2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
- G. **Verification of Coverage**: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
  - 1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
  - 2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before Services commence.
- H. **Copy of Insurance Policy(ies)**: Upon the District's request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.

## END OF EXHIBIT



## **Agreement for Construction Management Services**

## between

# **Sacramento City Unified School District**

## and

## Kitchell/CEM, Inc.

# **Central Kitchen Phase 2 Project**

Dated: February 1, 2022

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1.	Definitions	1
ARTICLE 2.	Term	3
ARTICLE 3.	Scope, Responsibilities and Services of CM	3
ARTICLE 4.	CM Staff	5
ARTICLE 5.	Schedule of Work	6
ARTICLE 6.	Construction Cost Budget	6
ARTICLE 7.	Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services	7
ARTICLE 8.	Payment for Extra Services	7
ARTICLE 9.	Ownership of Data	8
ARTICLE 10.	Termination of Contract	8
ARTICLE 11.	Indemnity	10
ARTICLE 12.	Conduct on Project Site and Fingerprinting	10
ARTICLE 13.	Responsibilities of the District	11
ARTICLE 14.	Liability of District	11
ARTICLE 15.	Insurance	12
ARTICLE 16.	Nondiscrimination	15
ARTICLE 17.	Covenant Against Contingent Fees	16
ARTICLE 18.	Entire Agreement/Modification	16
ARTICLE 19.	Non-Assignment of Agreement	16
ARTICLE 20.	Law, Venue	16
ARTICLE 21.	Alternative Dispute Resolution	16
ARTICLE 22.	[RESERVED]	17
ARTICLE 23.	Severability	17
ARTICLE 24.	Employment Status	17
ARTICLE 25.	Warranty of CM	18
ARTICLE 26.	Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports	18

	Communications / Notice	ARTICLE 27.
Error! Bookmark not defined.	[RESERVED]	ARTICLE 28.
	District's Right to Audit	ARTICLE 29.
	Other Provisions	ARTICLE 30.
	Exhibits	ARTICLE 31.

## EXHIBITS "A" – "F"

#### AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES

This Agreement for Construction Management Services ("Agreement") is made as of February 1, 2022, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district ("District"), and Kitchell/CEM, Inc. ("CM") (both collectively "Parties"), for the following project ("Project"):

The construction administration of the Central Kitchen Phase 2 Project.

See **Exhibit "A"** for detailed Project scope.

The Project may include multiple components. Any one of the components or combination thereof may be changed, including terminated, as indicated herein, without changing in any way the remaining component(s) or this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall apply to each component without regard to the status of the remaining component(s). CM shall invoice for each component separately and District shall compensate CM for each component separately on a proportionate basis based on the level and scope of work completed for each component.

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE 1. Definitions

- 1.1 In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions for words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
  - 1.1.1 **Agreement:** The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
  - 1.1.2 **<u>Architect</u>**: The architect(s) that the District designates as being the architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including all consultants to the Architect(s).
  - 1.1.3 **As-Built Drawings ("As-Builts"):** Any document prepared and submitted by District Contractor that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District's construction Contractor on a Conforming Set.
  - 1.1.4 **Board:** The District's Governing Board.
  - 1.1.5 **<u>Conforming Set</u>:** The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase.
  - 1.1.6 **Construction Budget:** The total amount indicated by the District for the Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, financing, and all other costs.
  - 1.1.7 **Construction Change Documents ("CCD"):** The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.

- 1.1.8 **Construction Cost Budget:** The total cost to District of all elements of a Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted during and at the end of the design phase in accordance with this Agreement and the Agreement for Architectural Services. The Construction Cost Budget does not include the compensation of the Project Design Team, the Program Manager, the CM and any subconsultants, the cost of the land, rights-of-way, or financing which are the responsibility of the District.
- 1.1.9 **Construction Manager:** The entity listed in the first paragraph of this Agreement.
- 1.1.10 **<u>Consultant(s)</u>**: Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the CM.
- 1.1.11 **<u>Contractor</u>**: One or more licensed and registered contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
- 1.1.12 **Design Team:** The Architect(s) that the District designates as being the architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including all consultants to the Architect(s), plus all engineer(s) or other designer(s), who have a responsibility to the District to design all or a portion of the Project either directly or as a subconsultant or subcontractor. The term Design Team includes the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
- 1.1.13 **<u>DIR</u>:** California Department of Industrial Relations.
- 1.1.14 **District:** The Sacramento City Unified School District.
- 1.1.15 **District's Representative:** The individual identified herein that is authorized to act on the District's behalf with respect to the Project. The initial District's Representative shall be Chris Ralston, Director of Facilities. District may change the District's Representative by notice as set forth herein.
- 1.1.16 **DSA:** Division of the State Architect in the California Department of General Services.
- 1.1.17 **Extra Services:** District-authorized Services outside of the scope in **Exhibit "A"** or District-authorized reimbursables not included in CM's fee.
- 1.1.18 **Fee:** The CM's Fee is defined in Article 7 and payable as set forth in **Exhibit "D."**
- 1.1.19 **<u>Program Manager</u>**: Any program manager hired to perform program management services for the District, including all Consultant(s) to the Program Manager.

- 1.1.20 **Project Inspector, Inspector of Record, IOR:** The agent of the DSA at the project site whose primary responsibility will be to insure that the project is constructed in compliance with current codes; DSA-approved plans and specifications relating to fire life safety, structure, and accessibility; and quality controls required of a public works facility. The IOR will report to both the DSA and the Architect.
- 1.1.21 **<u>Record Drawings</u>**: A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect incorporating all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.
- 1.1.22 **Service(s):** All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the CM is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.

#### ARTICLE 2. Term

2.1 **Term:** This Agreement shall become effective upon final execution, and, except as otherwise provided herein, will continue in effect until August 31, 2022.

#### ARTICLE 3. Scope, Responsibilities and Services of CM

- 3.1 **Scope:** CM shall provide the Services described herein and under **Exhibit "A"** for the Project.
- 3.2 **Standard of Care:** CM, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, Consultants and any persons or entities for whom CM is responsible, shall provide all Services pursuant to this Agreement in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and in a manner consistent with the standard of care under California law applicable to those who specialize in providing the same services for projects of the type, scope, and complexity of the Project. The District's review, approval of, or payment for any of the Services required under this Agreement shall not be construed as assent that CM has complied, nor in any way relieve the CM of compliance, with (i) the applicable standard of care, or (ii) applicable statutes, regulations, rules, guidelines and requirements.
- 3.3 **Coordination:** In the performance of CM's services under this Agreement, CM agrees that it will maintain coordination with District-designated representatives as may be requested and desirable. This shall include, without limitation, coordination with all members of the District's Design Team, the Project Inspector, and the Program Manager.
- 3.4 **Other Consultants:** If the CM employs sub-consultant(s), the CM shall ensure that its contract(s) with its sub-consultant(s) include language incorporating the terms of this Agreement.
- 3.5 **CM's as District Representative:** CM will act as the District's agent to render the Services and furnish the work as described in **Exhibit "A,"** commencing

with the receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District Representative. CM's services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as **Exhibit "C."** During the Project's Construction Phase, the District may require that the Contractors submit all notices and communication relating to the Project directly to the CM.

- 3.6 **Review of General Obligation Bond Program Report and District's Facilities Master Plan:** CM will review the District's Facilities Master Plan for the District and other written materials the District makes available by the District to CM to understand fully the nature, extent and intent of the Facilities Plan and the Project.
- 3.7 **<u>Review of Measure H</u>:** CM will review Measure H and other written materials made available by the District to CM that relate to Measure H to fully understand the extent of funding available to implement the District's Master Facilities Plan for the District, the anticipated schedule for issuance of Bonds under Measure H relative to the anticipated design, bidding and construction of projects.
- 3.8 **Expansion of Work based on Additional Funds:** Should the Board decide to expand the scope of the Project and/or supplement the Construction Budget based upon availability of additional funds, Construction Manager agrees to perform the additional scope of work under the fee and cost terms of this Agreement.

#### 3.9 **Conflicts of Interest Prohibited:**

- 3.9.1 CM understands that District officials and employees are prohibited from involvement in decisions in which they may have a financial interest pursuant to Government Code sections 1090 and 87100 et seq., and certifies that it does not know of any facts indicating that any District official or employee has an ownership or other financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. Further, CM hereby certifies that no current District official or employee of the District, and no one who has been a District official or employee of the District within the past two years has participated in bidding, selling or promoting this Agreement. CM understands that in addition to the remedies available at law, that any failure to provide an accurate certification or any violation of this provision shall make the Agreement voidable by District.
- 3.9.2 CM shall not be permitted to submit proposals or otherwise seek contracts for the following services to be procured by the District in connection with any project covered by this Agreement: Design Professional, IORs or Test/Inspection. If CM identifies potential Design Professionals, Project Inspectors or Test/Inspection services in connection with a project, CM shall affirmatively and unequivocally represent and warrant to the District that neither CM nor any person who holds equity interest in CM's organization

is a former or current holder of any equity interest in the firm identified or has any financial interest in the firm identified. District reserves the sole discretion to waive this subsection's requirements on a case-by-case basis.

#### ARTICLE 4. CM Staff

- 4.1 The District selected CM to perform the Services because of the CM's skills and expertise of key personnel.
- 4.2 CM agrees that the following key personnel in CM's firm shall be associated with the Project and perform the Services in the following capacities:

Principal In Charge:	Bill Johal
Project Director:	Jeff Dees/Dan Porter
Construction Manager:	TBD
Project Manager:	TBD
Sr. Project Manager:	TBD
Estimator:	Jay/Matt/James
Scheduler:	Rick Stassi
EAS Ops Manager:	Sergio Rodriguez/Sean Greenwald
A/E Project Manager:	Ahmad Elkot

- 4.3 CM shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without the District's prior written approval, unless said personnel cease to be employed by CM. Regardless of the reason for the change in key personnel, District shall be allowed to interview and retains the right to approve replacement personnel.
- 4.4 If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon the District's written notice, the CM will have seven (7) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and shall provide a replacement person acceptable to the District.
  - 4.4.1 All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions stated in this Agreement.
- 4.5 CM represents that the Construction Manager has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement. CM agrees further that no person having any such interest shall be employed by CM.

### ARTICLE 5. Schedule of Work

CM shall commence work under this Agreement upon receipt of a Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the work diligently as described in **Exhibit "A"** so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule attached as **Exhibit "C."** Time is of the essence and failure of CM to perform work on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement.

### ARTICLE 6. Construction Cost Budget

- 6.1 CM shall have responsibility, along with the Architect, to develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget per Project with the Architect and the District throughout the design process and construction.
- 6.2 The Construction Cost Budget shall be the total cost to District of all Project elements the Design Team designs or specifies.
- 6.3 CM shall work cooperatively with the Project Design Team throughout the Project, including but not limited to, the Schematic Design Phase, Design Development Phase, and Construction Documents Phase, as described in **Exhibit "A,"** so that the Project's construction cost as designed by the Project Design Team will not exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as may be adjusted subsequently with the District's written approval. CM shall notify the District if it believes the Project's construction Cost Budget, and/or if it believes the construction cost as designed will exceed the Construction Cost Budget, and/or if it believes the construction cost as designed will exceed the Construction Cost Budget. CM, however, shall not perform or be responsible for any design or architectural services.
- 6.4 Evaluations of the District's Construction Budget, and CM's preliminary and detailed cost estimates, represent the CM's best judgment as a professional familiar with the construction industry.
- 6.5 If the Bidding Phase has not commenced within ninety (90) days after DSA approval of the plans and specifications, the Construction Cost Budget may be adjusted at District's request to reflect changes in the general level of prices in the construction industry between the date of submission of the Construction Documents to the District and the date on which proposals are sought.
- 6.6 The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the following if any of the events in Article 6.7 occur:
  - 6.6.1 Give CM written approval of an agreed adjustment to the Construction Cost Budget.
  - 6.6.2 Authorize CM to re-negotiate and/or re-bid the Project, when appropriate, within three (3) months' time of receipt of bids, at no additional cost to the District (exclusive of District and other agencies' review time).

- 6.6.3 Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the District without further obligation by either party.
- 6.6.4 Within three (3) months of receipt of bids, instruct Design Team to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as approved by the District) to bring the Project within the Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding. CM will perform cost estimation, value engineering, constructability reviews, and/or bidding support at no additional cost to the District.
- 6.7 If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 6.6 above:
  - 6.7.1 The lowest responsive base bid received is five percent (5%) or more in excess of the Construction Cost Budget or
  - 6.7.2 The combined total of base bid and all additive alternates equal or exceed ten percent (10%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
  - 6.7.3 The Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the Sacramento Area, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to uncontrollable events in the world economy.

#### ARTICLE 7. Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services

- 7.1 District shall pay CM an amount not to exceed One Hundred Sixty-Nine Thousand Sixty Dollars (\$169,060) for all services contracted for under this Agreement and based on the Fee Schedule set forth in **Exhibit "D."**
- 7.2 District shall pay CM the Fee pursuant to the provisions herein and the method of payment set forth in **Exhibit "D."**
- 7.3 CM shall bill its work under this Agreement on a percent of completion basis in accordance with **Exhibit "D."**
- 7.4 No increase in fee will be due from change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by CM's error(s) or omission(s).
- 7.5 The CM's fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of CM's Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in **Exhibit "D**," including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred (200) miles of the Project location, offices, per diem expenses, printing, providing or shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in **Exhibit "A."**

#### ARTICLE 8. Payment for Extra Services

8.1 Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit "B"** at the rates set forth in **Exhibit "D"** only upon certification of the

District's prior written authorization of the claimed Extra Services and the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.

- 8.2 CM shall submit to District a written proposal describing the proposed scope of services and listing the personnel, labor duration, rates, and cost. CM shall proceed with Extra Services only upon receiving the District's prior written authorization. CM will not be entitled to any compensation for Extra Services performed prior to receiving District's written authorization.
- 8.3 If CM performs any Extra Services without the District's authorized representative's prior written authorization, the District will not be obligated to pay for such Extra Services. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, CM will be paid by the District as described in **Exhibit "B"** for Extra Services the District's authorized representative verbally requests, provided CM confirms such request in writing pursuant to the notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives CM's written confirmation of the request.

#### ARTICLE 9. Ownership of Data

- 9.1 All of CM's work product prepared or generated in connection with this Agreement is the District's property.
- 9.2 Upon the District's request, the CM shall make available to the District all work product completed or in progress at the time of such a request.
- 9.3 After Project completion or, if the District exercises the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to the Agreement terms, CM shall assemble and deliver to District within five (5) calendar days of the District's written request, all of CM's work product of the generated, prepared, reviewed or compiled in connection with this Agreement and the Services and authorized Extra Services hereunder. This includes, without limitation, all CM generated documents, copies of all documents CM exchanged with or copied to or from all other Project participants, and all closeout documents. CM shall be index and organize appropriately said Project records for easy use by District personnel.
- 9.4 All Project records are District property, whether or not those records are in the CM's possession. District retains all rights to all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that CM or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, CM and its Consultants shall be entitled to reuse work product generated under this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 10. Termination of Contract

10.1 <u>District's Request for Assurances</u>: If District at any time reasonably believes CM is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify CM of this fact and request written assurances from CM of performance of Services and a written plan from CM to remedy any potential default under

the terms this Agreement that the District may advise CM of in writing. CM shall, within ten (10) calendar days of District's request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the District's requirements in its request for assurances. CM's failure to provide such written assurances of performance and the required written plan, within ten (10) calendar days of request, will constitute a material breach of this Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause.

- 10.2 <u>District's Termination of CM for Cause</u>: If CM fails to perform CM's duties to the District's satisfaction, or if CM fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner CM's material obligations under this Agreement, or if CM violates any of the material terms or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon the District giving CM written notice thereof. In the event of a termination pursuant to this subdivision, CM may invoice District for all work performed until the notice of termination, but District shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to the District's costs because of CM's actions, errors, or omissions.
- 10.3 <u>District's Termination of CM for Convenience</u>: District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience. In the event of a termination for convenience, CM may invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for work performed until the notice of termination. This shall be the only amount(s) potentially owing to CM if there is a termination for convenience.
- 10.4 <u>CM's Termination of Agreement for Cause</u>: CM has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a reasonable time following written notice and demand from CM. Such termination shall be effective after receipt of written notice from CM to the District.
- 10.5 <u>Effect on Pre-Termination Services</u>: Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such termination.
- 10.6 <u>Ceasing Services upon Termination</u>: If, at any time in the progress of performing Services under this Agreement, the District determines that CM's Services should be terminated, the CM, upon the District's written notice of such termination, shall immediately cease providing Services, except to transfer files as directed by the District. The District shall pay CM only the fee associated with the Services provided and approved by District since the last paid invoice and up to the notice of termination.
- 10.7 <u>Project Suspension</u>: If the Project is suspended by the District for more than one hundred and eighty (180) consecutive days, the CM shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of such suspension. When the Project is

resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and the CM's compensation shall be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the CM's Services. CM shall make every effort to maintain the same Project personnel after suspension.

### ARTICLE 11. Indemnity

- 11.1 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, CM shall indemnify and hold free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers ("the Indemnified Parties") from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity ("Claim") to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CM, its officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants, or agents, including without limitation, the payment of all consequential damages. CM shall also, to the furthest extent permitted by California law, defend the Indemnified Parties at CM's own expense, including attorneys' fees and costs, from any and all Claim(s) and allegations relating thereto with counsel approved by District where such approval is not to be unreasonably withheld.
- 11.2 CM shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim. CM's obligation pursuant to Article 11.1 includes reimbursing the District for the cost of any settlement paid by the Indemnified Parties and for any and all fees and costs, including but not limited to, legal fees and costs, expert witness fees, and consultant fees, incurred by the Indemnified Parties in the defense of any Claim(s), or to enforce the indemnity herein. CM's obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds.
- 11.3 District may withhold from amounts owing to CM any and all costs that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CM.

#### ARTICLE 12. Conduct on Project Site and Fingerprinting

- 12.1 Unacceptable and/or loud language will not be tolerated. "Cat calls" or other derogatory language toward students or public will not be allowed.
- 12.2 Drugs, alcohol, and smoking on District property are strictly prohibited. No drugs, alcohol and/or smoking are allowed at any time in any building and/or grounds on District's property. No students, staff, visitors or contractors are to use drugs on District's property.
- 12.3 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on the basis of the scope of Services in this Agreement that CM and its subcontractors and employees will have only limited contact with pupils. CM will promptly notify the District in writing of any facts or circumstances which might reasonably lead the District to determine that contact will be more than limited. Should there be more than limited contact, CM shall comply with the provisions of Education Code section 45125.1 regarding the submission of

employee fingerprints to the California Department of Justice and the completion of criminal background investigations of its employees. CM shall not permit any employee to have any contact with District pupils until such time as the CM has verified in writing to the governing board of the District that the employee has not been convicted of a felony, as defined in Education Code section 45122.1. CM's responsibility shall extend to all employees, agents, and employees or agents of its Consultants regardless of whether those individuals are paid or unpaid, concurrently employed by the District, or acting as CM's independent contractors. CM shall provide to District verification of compliance with this section by submitting an executed Criminal Background Investigation Certification (**Exhibit "E**").

12.4 For all workers on District property, CM shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19, including but not limited to the CDPH's State Public Health Officer Orders. CM shall provide to District verification of compliance with this section by submitting an executed COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing Certification (**Exhibit "F"**).

#### ARTICLE 13. Responsibilities of the District

- 13.1 The District shall examine the documents submitted by the CM and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the CM's Services.
- 13.2 The District shall provide to the CM as complete information as is available to District regarding the District's Project requirements.
- 13.3 The District shall retain design professional(s) whose services, duties and responsibilities will be described in written agreement(s) between the District and design professional(s).
- 13.4 Unless the contract documents require that Contractor provide any of the following, the District shall, in a timely manner, and with CM's assistance, secure, submit and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments, permits and charges required for the construction, use, or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent changes in existing facilities, subject to CM's and/or the Design Team's duties to recommend or provide same.
- 13.5 The District, its representatives, and consultants shall communicate with the Contractor either directly or through the CM.
- 13.6 The District shall designate an officer, employee and/or other authorized representatives to act on the District's behalf with respect to the Project. The District's Project representative shall be available during working hours and as often as may be required to render decisions and to furnish information in a timely manner.

#### ARTICLE 14. Liability of District

14.1 Other than as provided in this Agreement, District's obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation as provided

in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement for the services performed in connection with this Agreement.

- 14.2 CM shall pay to District any and all costs incurred by District, or for which District may become liable, to the extent caused by negligent delays, acts, or omissions of CM in its performance of its Services.
- 14.3 District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by CM, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to CM by District.
- 14.4 CM hereby waives any and all claim(s) for recovery from the District under this Agreement, which loss or damage is covered by valid and collectible insurance policies. CM agrees to have its required insurance policies endorsed to prevent the invalidation of insurance coverages by reason of this waiver. This waiver shall extend to claims paid, or expenses incurred, by CM's insurance company on the District's behalf.

#### ARTICLE 15. Insurance

- 15.1 CM shall procure, prior to commencement of Services, and will maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the CM, their agents, representatives, employees and sub-consultant(s). CM's liabilities, including but not limited to, CM's indemnity or defense obligations under this Agreement, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this Agreement and CM's failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when requested, may be treated by the District, subject to its sole discretion, as a material breach of contract.
- 15.2 **Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance**: Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits:
  - 15.2.1 **Commercial General Liability.** Two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, death, advertising injury, and medical payments arising from the performance of any portion of the Services. If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

- 15.2.2 **Commercial Automobile Liability, Any Auto**. One million dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence.
- 15.2.3 **Workers' Compensation**. Statutory limits required by the State of California. For all of the CM's employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, CM shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation policy. CM shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
- 15.2.4 **Employer's Liability.** One million dollars (\$1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or disease. For all of the CM's employees who are subject to this Agreement, CM shall keep in full force and effect, an Employers' Liability policy. That policy shall provide employers' liability coverage with minimum liability coverage of Two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence. CM shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
- 15.2.5 **Professional Liability**. This insurance shall cover the CM and its sub-consultant(s), if any, for one million dollars (\$1,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two years thereafter. The policy must contain terms or endorsements extending coverage that requires the insurer to defend and indemnify for acts which happen before the effective date of the policy provided the claim is first made during the policy period.
- 15.3 The District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or charges to be negotiated for such changes.
- 15.4 **Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention**: Any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeding Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000) must be declared to and approved by the District. At the option of the District, either:
  - 15.4.1 The District can accept the higher deductible;
  - 15.4.2 CM's insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or selfinsured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or
  - 15.4.3 CM shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.
- 15.5 **Other Insurance Provisions**: The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

- 15.5.1 All policies except for the worker's compensation, employer's liability and professional liability insurance policy shall be written on an occurrence form.
- 15.5.2 The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers ("Additional Insureds") are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the CM; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the CM; premises owned, occupied or used by the CM; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the CM. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds. All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation against any of the Additional Insureds.
- 15.5.3 Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
- 15.5.4 CM shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If CM fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount of premium from any sums due CM under the Agreement.
- 15.5.5 The CM's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
- 15.5.6 Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled, not renewed, or material change in coverage except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.
- 15.5.7 CM's insurance coverage shall be primary and non-contributory insurance as respects the Additional Insureds with respect to any claims related to, arising out of, or connected with the Project. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of the CM's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- 15.5.8 Construction Manager shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
- 15.5.9 CM shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance CM deems appropriate with respect to the consultant's scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement.

CM shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District's request. Should CM not require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is required of CM, as provided in this Agreement, CM is not relieved of its indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement.

- 15.5.10 If CM normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the minimum amounts required herein, that greater amount shall become the minimum required amount of insurance for purposes of the Agreement. Therefore, CM hereby acknowledges and agrees that all insurance carried by it shall be deemed liability coverage for all actions it performs in connection with the Agreement.
- 15.6 **Acceptability of Insurers**: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. CM shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best's rating less than A:VII. At the option of the District, the District may either:
  - 15.6.1 Accept the lower rating; or
  - 15.6.2 Require CM to procure insurance from another insurer.
- 15.7 **Verification of Coverage**: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, but no later than three (3) calendar after the Notice of Award, CM shall furnish the District with:
  - 15.7.1 Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverage;
  - 15.7.2 Original endorsements affecting coverage. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before work commences.
- 15.8 **Copy of Insurance Policy(ies):** Upon the District's request, CM will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 16. Nondiscrimination

CM agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Consultant and all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance by all of its subcontractor(s).

#### ARTICLE 17. Covenant Against Contingent Fees

CM warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CM, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CM, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency.

#### ARTICLE 18. Entire Agreement/Modification

This Agreement, including the Exhibits hereto, supersedes all previous contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto. CM shall be entitled to no benefit other than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. CM specifically acknowledges that in entering into this Agreement, CM relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no others.

#### ARTICLE 19. Non-Assignment of Agreement

This Agreement is intended to secure the CM's specialized services. CM may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the District's prior written consent. Any assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District's prior written consent shall be considered null and void.

#### ARTICLE 20. Law, Venue

- 20.1 This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
- 20.2 To the fullest extent permitted by California law, Sacramento County shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 21. Alternative Dispute Resolution

- 21.1 All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other party to the Agreement. The demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial written notice.
- 21.2 If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Consultant shall comply with

all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to the Consultant's right to bring a civil action against the District. For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Consultant submits its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized by any applicable meet and confer process.

21.3 Notwithstanding any disputes, claims or other disagreements between the CM and the District, CM shall continue to provide and perform Services hereunder pending a subsequent resolution of such disputes.

#### ARTICLE 22. [RESERVED]

#### ARTICLE 23. Severability

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

#### ARTICLE 24. Employment Status

- 24.1 CM shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be construed to be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow District to exercise discretion or control over the professional manner in which CM performs the Services which are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the Services to be provided by CM shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such Services.
- 24.2 CM understands and agrees that CM's personnel are not and will not be eligible for: membership in, or to receive any benefits from, any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance; membership in any District retirement program; paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or without pay; or any other benefits which accrue to a District employee.
- 24.3 Should District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that CM or any employee of CM is an employee of District for purposes of collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts already paid by CM which can be applied against this liability). District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.
- 24.4 Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by CM for District, upon notification of such fact by District, CM

shall promptly remit the amount due or arrange with District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to CM under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by CM which can be applied as a credit against that liability).

- 24.5 A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, CM shall not be considered an employee of District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine CM is an employee for any other purpose, then CM agrees to a reduction in District's liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determined CM was not an employee.
- 24.6 Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 25. Warranty of CM

- 25.1 CM warrants that CM is properly licensed and/or certified under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the Services that it has herein agreed to perform. CM further warrants that all of the work CM performs under this Agreement shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and codes of the United States and the State of California. CM also warrants that it shall comply with all applicable ordinances, regulations, and resolutions of Sacramento County.
- 25.2 CM certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code of the State of California, requiring every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and it certifies that, if applicable, it will comply with those provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement.
- 25.3 To the extent that the work performed under this contract is subject to labor compliance and enforcement by the DIR, CM specifically acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Services while complying with all applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 of the Labor Code and Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations, including all applicable prevailing wage requirements.

#### ARTICLE 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports

CM shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, if the total cost of the Agreement is over five thousand dollars (\$5,000).

#### ARTICLE 27. Communications / Notice

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent to the following addresses by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, return receipt requested, by overnight delivery service, or by personal delivery:

#### **District**:

#### CM:

Sacramento City Unified School District	Kitchell/CEM, Inc.
5735 47th Avenue	2450 Venture Oaks Way Ste 500
Sacramento, CA 95824	Sacramento, CA 95833
ATTN: Contracts Office	ATTN: Jeff Dees

If notice is given by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, return receipt requested, it shall be considered delivered on the day the notice is signed for. If notice if given by overnight delivery service, it shall be considered delivered on the date stated in the proof of delivery.

CM and District, by notice given hereunder, may designate different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications will be sent.

#### ARTICLE 28. [RESERVED]

#### ARTICLE 29. District's Right to Audit

- 29.1 District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to CM's and any Consultant's premises to review and audit the CM's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement ("District's Right"). The District's Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to retain copies, outside of CM's premises, of any and all Project-related records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable law.
- 29.2 The District's Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether CM is in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement.
- 29.3 If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District's Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, or anticipated to be incurred.
- 29.4 CM shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. CM shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and

documents and any other financial data. Upon District's request, CM shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all requested records to the District.

- 29.5 CM shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
- 29.6 CM shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District's written request to review and audit any or all of CM's Project-related records and information.

#### ARTICLE 30. Other Provisions

- 30.1 CM shall be responsible for the cost of construction change orders caused directly by CM's willful misconduct or negligent acts, errors or omissions. Without limiting CM's liability for indirect or consequential cost impacts, the direct costs for which CM shall be liable shall equal its proportionate share of the difference between the cost of the change order and the reasonable cost of the work had such work been a part of the originally prepared Construction Documents. These amounts shall be paid by CM to District or the District may withhold those costs from amounts due or to become due to CM.
- 30.2 Neither the District's review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and CM shall remain liable to the District in accordance with this Agreement for all damages to the District caused by CM's failure to perform any of the Services furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care of the CM for its Services, which shall be, at a minimum, the standard of care of construction managers performing similar work for California public school districts at or around the same time and in or around the same geographic area of the District.
- 30.3 CM shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount of any tax deduction and/or credit CM receives for District Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179D ("Section 179D"). CM shall provide District with all necessary documentation to enable District to verify the amounts of the Section 179D tax deduction. CM shall notify District in writing of the Section 179D tax deduction within 30 days of when CM receives IRS notice of the Section 179D tax deduction or receives the Section 179D tax refund, whichever occurs first.
- 30.4 Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter of the Agreement.
- 30.5 The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of CM warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.

30.6 This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the Parties hereto.

#### ARTICLE 31. Exhibits.

Exhibits "A" through "F" attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

#### SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

KITCHELL/CEM, INC.

By:		By:		
-	Rose Ramos Chief Business Officer	5	Wendy Cohen President	
Date:		Date:		

## EXHIBIT "A"

### **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF CONSTRUCTION MANGER**

#### <u>Page</u>

1.	BASIC SERVICES	1
2.	GENERAL PROJECT SERVICES	4
3.	PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE	5
4.	PRE-BID PHASE	7
5.	BIDDING PHASE	7
6.	CONSTRUCTION PHASE	8
7.	PROJECT COMPLETION	11
8.	FINAL DOCUMENTS	12

#### EXHIBIT "A"

#### **RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF CONSTRUCTION MANGER**

Construction Manager ("CM") shall provide professional services necessary for completing the following:

#### 1. BASIC SERVICES

- 1.1. Provide work which shall comply with professional standards and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law.
- 1.2. Monitor and advise the District as to all material developments in the Project. Maintain reporting systems for scope, sequencing, scheduling, budgets and communication for the Project using existing District software.
- 1.3. Be the focal point of all communication to and from construction Contractor(s).
- 1.4. Implement methods to budget and track all expenditures on the Project. CM shall generate monthly reports to the District reflecting this information.
- 1.5. Prepare methods to track and report on schedule status for the Project. CM shall develop master schedules and milestone schedules for the Project, and shall report on same each month to the District.
- 1.6. CM shall work cooperatively with District to anticipate and maintain a schedule of upcoming Board information and action items and shall prepare reports, background materials, and preliminary materials in District-specified format.
- 1.7. CM shall work cooperatively with the Design Team and the District to:
  - 1.7.1. Define and schedule the Project.
  - 1.7.2. Provide Services that will result in the development of an overall Project strategy with regard to phases, construction schedules, timing, budget, prequalification, contactor and consultant procurement, construction materials, building systems, and equipment.
- 1.8. Organize an initial planning workshop to create baseline parameters for the Project(s), to define overall building requirements, Project(s) strategy, conceptual budget and schedule. Pursuant to understandings reached at these meetings, CM will develop an implementation plan that identifies the various phases of the Project(s), coordination among phases, and budget and time constraints for each phase of the Project. The plan will include a detailed strategy, Project Budget and Project schedule as well as identification of critical events and milestone activities.
- 1.9. Perform constructability reviews, determine construction feasibility, availability of materials and labor, time requirements for installation and construction, and factors related to cost, including costs of alternative designs, of materials, preliminary budgets, and possible economies.

- 1.10. Interface with the Contractor and all subcontractors during construction to ensure that the District is provided with an acceptable Project and the best value for taxpayer dollars.
- 1.11. Advise the District as to the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over any portion or all of the Project, and as to coordination with and implementation of the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including without limitation DSA.
- 1.12. Contract for or employ, at CM's expense, sub-consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for CM's services. Nothing in the foregoing shall create any contractual relationship between the District and any sub-consultant(s) employed by the CM under terms of this Agreement.
- 1.13. Cooperate with the District, Board, and other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related to the Project, including District staff and consultants, project manager(s), citizens' oversight committee, other District committees, and the community to facilitate the timely completion of the Project within Board-approved budgets and to District design standards.
- 1.14. Chair, conduct and take minutes of periodic meetings between District and its design professional(s), the Site Committee meetings, and construction meetings during the course of the Project. CM shall invite the District and/or its representative and the Project Inspector to participate in these meetings. CM shall keep meeting minutes to document comments generated in these meetings.
- 1.15. Develop for District approval a Project time schedule at the start of Project development that does the following:
  - 1.15.1. Provides sufficient time for prequalification, and if necessary the resolution of any appeals, bidding, and, if necessary, rebidding, or negotiating if applicable, the Project;
  - 1.15.2. Coordinates and integrates the design professional(s)' design efforts with bidding schedules;
  - 1.15.3. Includes realistic activity sequences and durations, allocation of labor and materials and delivery of products requiring long lead-time procurement; and
  - 1.15.4. Takes into account the District's occupancy requirements (showing portions of the Project having occupancy priority and ongoing operational occupancy requirements).
- 1.16. Be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all cost estimates, constructability reviews, studies, reports, projections, opinions of the probable cost of construction, and other services furnished by CM under this Agreement as well as coordination with all Master Plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District to CM. CM shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in materials it generates.
- 1.17. Maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or discussions held in conjunction with the work of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions,

questions or comments. These shall be furnished to the District and/or its representative for inclusion in the overall Project documentation.

- 1.18. Coordinate transmittal of documents to regulatory agencies for review and advise the District of potential problems in completion of such reviews.
- 1.19. Prepare a bidders list for each bid package for approval by the District.
- 1.20. Assistance with administration of the prequalification process;
- 1.21. Assistance in development of documents necessary or appropriate for bidding the Construction Contract for the Project;
- 1.22. Development of bidders' interest in a Project, including but not limited to telephonic and correspondence campaigns and preparing and placing notices and advertisements to solicit bids for the Project(s);
- 1.23. Assistance in conducting job walks and bidders' conferences and the maintenance and preparation of minutes of job walks or bidder's conferences;
- 1.24. Assistance in responding to bidders' inquiries and the development of bid addenda as necessary or appropriate;
- 1.25. Review of bid proposals for responsiveness to bid requirements, evaluation of bidder responsibility, and analysis of completed questionnaires;
- 1.26. Interviewing possible bidders, references, bonding agents and financial institutions;
- 1.27. Preparing recommendations for the District for pre-qualification of prospective bidders;
- 1.28. Tabulations and evaluation of bid results along with a recommendation for award of the Construction Contract for a Project;
- 1.29. Assisting with resolution of any appeals;
- 1.30. For Lease Leaseback projects, coordinate Request for Qualifications/Proposals ("RFP") process and assist in negotiation of agreements, including, Site Lease and Facilities Lease with guaranteed maximum price; and
- 1.31. Preparation of agenda items for Board approval.
- 1.32. Provide documentation, pictures, and other information and assistance to the District for the District's use on a website for public access to show Project status.
- 1.33. Provide direction and planning to ensure Project adherence to applicable environmental requirements, such as those emanating from the Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"), Cal/EPA, the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), and State of California laws, regulations and rules. CM shall comply with, and ensure that all Consultants, all Contractors and their subcontractors and design professionals and their subconsultants comply with, any storm water pollution prevention plans, other storm water management program and other environmental impact mitigation requirements that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District.

- 1.34. Cooperate and implement District's reporting to and interface with the Labor Commissioner's Office, including but not limited to:
  - 1.34.1. Registering public works project with the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) within thirty (30) days of the award, but in no event later than the first day in which a contractor has workers employed upon the public work;
  - 1.34.2. Requiring proof of public works contractor registration before accepting a bid or awarding a contract; and
  - 1.34.3. Reporting any suspected public works violations to the Labor Commissioner.
- 1.35. CM shall maintain accurate Project cost accounting records maintained with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") on authorized work performed under unit costs, actual costs for labor and material, or other basis for maintaining required accounting records. CM shall provide accounting records to the District on a monthly basis, or as reasonably requested by District. CM shall afford the District access to these records and preserve these records for a period of three (3) years after final payment, at no cost to the District.
- 1.36. Assist Architect with the preparation of an estimate of costs for all addenda and coordinate with Architect to submit the estimate to the District for approval. Assist and coordinate with Architect as required to adjust the Construction Cost Budget and other Project costs as indicated in this Agreement and as required in the Agreement for Architectural Services.
- 1.37. Provide and maintain a management presence on the Project site.
- 1.38. CM is **NOT** responsible for:
  - 1.38.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.
  - 1.38.2. Any asbestos testing, design or abatement; however, it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such information provided by District.
  - 1.38.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), except that CM agrees to coordinate its work with that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, and the work of Contractor and the Design Team to provide current information for use in CEQA compliance documents and to identify and carry out mitigation measures.
  - 1.38.4. Historical significance report.
  - 1.38.5. Soils investigation.
  - 1.38.6. Geotechnical hazard report.
  - 1.38.7. Topographic survey, including utility locating services.

#### 2. GENERAL PROJECT SERVICES

2.1 **General**: Monitor and advise the District and Program Manager as to all material developments on the Project. CM shall implement with District approval reporting methods developed by Program Manager for schedules, cost and budget status. The CM shall be

the focal point of all communication to and from construction Contractor and shall be copied on all communications between the District and its Design Team.

- 2.2 **Scheduling**: Track and report on schedule status for Project. The CM shall develop Project master schedules and milestone schedules, and review and approve Contractor project schedules and milestone schedules for the project per specifications, and shall report on same each month to the District and Program Manager.
- 2.3 **Cost Controls**: Implement methods to track construction expenditures on the Project using methods developed by Program Manager. The CM shall generate monthly reports to the District reflecting this information.

#### 3. **PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE**

- 3.1 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with providing overall coordination of the Project; serve as the focal point of communication, transmitting information to the District and Design Team on general aspects of the Project, including planning, scheduling, cost management, progress reporting, design review, dispute resolution, and documentation. Communications from the construction Contractor to the District and Design Team shall be through the CM. The CM shall receive simultaneous copies of all written communications from the District or the Design Team to the construction Contractor.
- 3.2 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with the detailed definition of project scope, budget, and schedule, as needed. Review and reconcile cost estimates from the assigned architect and coordinate peer review estimates when requested by the District. Advise the District regarding owner-supplied equipment and other potential cost-saving measures.
- 3.3 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist the District in the solicitation and retention of design and engineering consultants, and coordinate design consultants' activities and delivery schedules, as needed. Provide value engineering and life cycle cost analysis.
- 3.4 Provide design-phase services in conjunction with the architecture firms awarded the Project by the District. Work with the Architect to conform and refine designs to correlate designs to budget and Facilities Master Plan, if applicable. Review design documents for constructability, scheduling, consistency, and coordination during schematic and design development phases of work. Perform constructability reviews at appropriate stages of design. Assist with verification of site conditions. Expedite design reviews, including modifications. Keep accurate documentation of all discussions with users regarding scope and resolution.
- 3.5 Prepare and maintain a Construction Management schedule for the Project. Prepare a procurement plan and move in occupancy planning, where required.
- 3.6 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with monitoring and reporting to the District on status of design and state approval in relation to the schedule for the Project. Attend meetings to coordinate design efforts for the Project. Assist in identifying and obtaining all necessary approvals.

- 3.7 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with soliciting proposals, evaluate, and recommend other professional consultants needed to complete the Project.
- 3.8 Implement District-approved implementation procedures, forms and reporting requirements for the Project that involve all members of the Project team, including the District, Design Team, and construction Contractor.
- 3.9 Work with the Design Team and District to develop the final sizes, choice of materials, services and utilities and other detailed design and performance criteria of the Project.
- 3.10 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, provide value engineering at the Schematic Design and/or 100% Design Development Phase. This evaluation will consist of a review of the proposed materials, equipment, systems and other items depicted in the design documents and shall be coordinated with the District's design guidelines and design professional(s). The CM will prepare a value engineering report documenting the results of the evaluation and make recommendations to the District with respect to alternatives, deletions, or amendments of such proposed items that pertain to the anticipated construction costs, useful life, maintenance and operational costs and efficiencies. The CM shall provide to the District value engineering recommendations and cost/benefit analysis of those recommendations.
- 3.11 Perform or subcontract for constructability reviews of the Project at the Design Development Phase and at 90% of the Construction Documents Phase. The CM shall review the design documents for clarity, consistency, constructability and coordination. The results of the review shall be provided in writing and as notations on the documents to the District. The CM shall also make recommendations to the District with respect to constructability, construction cost, sequence of construction, and construction duration.
- 3.12 Develop master bid/award schedule(s) including construction milestones for the Project through the completion of construction, as directed by the District, in coordination with design professional(s) and advise and consult with the District. CM shall review and approve construction Contractor's schedules, but shall not dictate any construction Contractor's means and/or methods of performance.
- 3.13 Establish schedules for any Consultant, and for any hazardous materials or other testing, and review costs, estimates, and invoices of each.
- 3.14 Implement a management control system to support such functions as planning, organizing, scheduling, budgeting, reporting progress, and identifying and documenting problems and solutions for the Project. Prepare monthly progress reports for the District regarding the schedule for the Project.
- 3.15 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, organize an initial planning workshop to create baseline parameters for the Project, to define overall building requirements, Project strategy, conceptual budget and schedule. Pursuant to understandings reached at these meetings, Construction Manager will develop an implementation plan that identifies the various phases of the Project, coordination among phases, and budget and time constraints for each phase of the Project. The plan will include a detailed strategy, master budget and master schedule as well as identification of critical events and milestone activities.

- 3.16 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, provide updated cost estimates for the Project at the Schematic Design, Design Development, and Construction Documents Phases as directed by District; coordinate with design professional(s) and reconcile cost estimates with design professional(s)' estimates.
- 3.17 Advise District regarding "green building" technology and lifecycle costing, when applicable.
- 3.18 Fully coordinate all changes requested by any utility company needed to complete the Project.
- 3.19 Review and tailor the District's front end documents for the Project. Recommend the number of days required for the construction phase (and any sub-phases, such as hazardous material abatement) and recommend the amount of the liquidated damages.

#### 4. PRE-BID PHASE

- 4.1 Develop master schedules and construction schedules for the Project. Develop budget(s) for the Project based on construction cost estimates.
- 4.2 In consultation with the District and according to District-approved policies, procedures, and standards, implement procedures, forms, and reporting requirements for the Project. Establish, accordingly, a communications procedure for the Project that allows for decision making at appropriate levels of responsibility and accountability.
- 4.3 Work with the Program Manager and Design Team to modify or add to standard, special, or general conditions for contract documents that might be needed for unique Project or contract conditions, for the District's approval, and/or assist in the development of documents necessary for the bidding phase.
- 4.4 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, make recommendations for development and implementation of procedures to comply with applicable bidding or RFP requirements for the Project as applicable and for expediting completion of the bidding process for the Project. The scope of the foregoing includes without limitation, recommendations of CM with respect to: (a) pre-qualification of potential contractors; (b) combination of two or more of the Projects for design, bidding and/or construction purposes; and (c) alternative construction delivery approaches for the Project, including consideration of a single general contractor and/or Lease Leaseback approach to construction for each Project.

#### 5. **BIDDING PHASE**

- 5.1 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with pre-qualification process for the selection of prime and/or sub-contractors based on the detailed definition of Project scope, budget, schedule, and programming support. Develop a list of pre-qualified prime and sub-contractors, as required.
- 5.2 Develop bidders' interest in the Project. Coordinate all bid phase activities with District departments. Conduct pre-bid conferences to familiarize bidders with the bidding

documents, and any special systems, materials or methods and with Project procedures. Conduct job walks and bidders' conferences, maintain and prepare minutes of job walks or bidder's conferences. Field questions from bidders, referring questions to Design Team and District as required. Coordinate with Design Team to respond to bidder questions by addenda.

- 5.3 Prepare public solicitation notices for District approval. Review, coordinate, and estimate cost of bid phase addenda.
- 5.4 Review bid proposals for responsiveness to bid requirements, evaluate bidder responsibility, and conduct reference checks. Prepare bid analyses and advise the District on compliance of bidders with District requirements and bid requirements. Report and recommend to the District after review and evaluation. Make recommendations to the District for prequalification of bidders and award of contracts or rejection of bids.
- 5.5 Conduct post-bid conferences as required. Assist and advise regarding bid protests.
- 5.6 If appropriate, coordinate contracting with Contractor awarded the contract, including evaluating bonds and insurance, and negotiate final terms of construction contractor's contract(s), if applicable.
- 5.7 Conduct pre-award conferences with successful bidders.
- 5.8 Schedule and conduct preconstruction meetings. Maintain, prepare, and distribute minutes.
- 5.9 Assist with the preparation of agenda items for Board approval. Coordinate submittals required by governing agencies.

#### 6. CONSTRUCTION PHASE

- 6.1 Administer the construction Contract.
- 6.2 Develop detailed construction schedules or review Contractor's submitted schedules, as needed. Administer and coordinate the work of Contractor on a daily basis. Enforce performance, scheduling, and notice requirements. Review Contractor's schedule submittals and make recommendations to the District.
- 6.3 Monitor schedule and cost information for Contractor. Document the progress and costs of the Project. Report and advise proactively on potential schedule and budget variances and impacts. Recommend potential solutions to schedule and cost problems. Work cooperatively with the District, Architect, and Contractor to ensure that Project is delivered on time and within budget. Review construction progress and prepare reports.
- 6.4 Verify permits, approvals, bonds, insurances, and schedules of values. Coordinate with DSA Project Inspector, and ensure compliance with all DSA reporting and closeout requirements. Submit necessary reports to state and local authorities.
- 6.5 Monitor the construction Contractor to verify that tools, equipment, and labor are furnished and work performed and completed within the time required or indicated by the plans and specifications, under the direction and to the satisfaction of the District. The CM expressly

agrees to verify that the specifications are met, observed, performed, and followed in accordance with the professional standards of care for construction management.

- 6.6 Coordinate work of the construction Contractor and effectively manage the Project to achieve the District's objectives in relation to cost, time and quality.
- 6.7 Provide continuous on-site construction management personnel, as needed. Conduct construction meetings for the Project to discuss and resolve such matters as progress, quality and scheduling. Said meetings shall be weekly unless Project conditions do not require that frequency. Prepare and promptly distribute minutes. When required by field or other conditions, construction progress, or the quality of workmanship, conduct special construction meetings; record, prepare, and distribute minutes of these meetings to the District, the affected construction Contractor, and Design Team.
- 6.8 Establish and implement team communication procedures.
- 6.9 Ensure that construction Contractor provides construction schedules as required by the construction Contracts, including activity sequences and durations, submittal schedule, or procurement schedule for products that require long lead time. The CM shall review construction Contractor's construction schedules for conformity with the requirements of the construction Contract and conformity with the overall schedule for the Project. Where construction Contractor's construction schedules do not so conform, the CM will take appropriate measures to secure compliance, subject to District approval.
- 6.10 Ensure construction Contractor's compliance with the requirements of the respective construction Contract for updating, revising, and other obligations relative to their respective construction schedules.
- 6.11 Cost Control. CM shall develop and monitor an effective system of construction cost control for the Project. CM shall identify variances between actual and budgeted or estimated costs and advise District and design professional(s) whenever a Project cost exceeds budgets or estimates. CM shall manage the construction bids and contracts in accordance with the Construction Budget.
- 6.12 Continually monitor whether construction contract requirements are being fulfilled and recommend courses of action to the District when Contractor fails to fulfill contractual requirements.
- 6.13 The CM may authorize minor variations in the work from the requirements of the contract documents that do not involve an adjustment in the contract price or the contract time or design and which are consistent with the overall intent of the contract documents. The CM shall provide to the design professional(s) and the District copies of these authorizations.
- 6.14 Evaluate and process payment applications and verify progress.
- 6.15 Verify that safety programs are developed and submitted by the construction Contractor as required by the Contract. Neither CM, Project Manager nor District shall be responsible for or have any liability for Contractor's failure to provide, comply with, or enforce said safety programs.

- 6.16 Implement quality control program, including As-Built Drawings accuracy. Coordinate and evaluate Contractor's recovery schedules.
- 6.17 Record the progress of the Project by a log.
- 6.18 Monitor ongoing Project costs to verify that projected costs do not exceed approved budget and provide the District timely notice of any potential increase in costs in excess of approved budgets provided to CM.
- 6.19 Negotiate Contractor's proposals and review change orders prepared by Design Team, with Design Team's input as needed, for approval by the District.
- 6.20 Evaluate and process change order requests. Make recommendations to the District. Determine cost and schedule effects of change orders. Prepare change order reports and maintain a change order log for the Project and implement procedures to expedite processing of change orders.
- 6.21 Assist the District in coordinating the services of special consultants and testing laboratories on the Project.
- 6.22 In conjunction with the Design Team, monitor work of the construction Contractor to determine that the work is being performed in accordance with the requirements of the respective construction documents for the Project, including but not limited to the plans, specifications, addenda, and all other contract documents, as well as all applicable laws, regulations and directives of agencies with jurisdiction over any of the Project. As appropriate, with assistance of Design Team, make recommendations to the District and Program Manager regarding special inspection or testing of work that is not in accordance with the provisions of the contract documents.
- 6.23 To guard District against defects in the work of the construction Contractor, the CM shall implement a quality control program to monitor the quality and workmanship of construction for conformity with:
  - 6.23.1 Accepted industry standards;
  - 6.23.2 Applicable laws, rules, or ordinances; and
  - 6.23.3 The design documents and contract documents.
- 6.24 Where the work of a construction Contractor does not conform as set forth above, the CM shall, with the input of Design Team:
  - 6.24.1 Notify the District of any non-conforming work observed by the CM;
  - 6.24.2 Reject the non-conforming work; and
  - 6.24.3 Take any and all action(s) necessary to compel the construction Contractor to correct the work.
- 6.25 Evaluate, track, and maintain logs of requests for information ("RFI") from construction Contractor and responses, shop drawings, samples, and other submittals, based, in part, on

information obtained from the design professional(s). Advise District and Program Manager as to status and criticality of RFIs.

- 6.26 Implement procedures, in collaboration with the District, Program Manager and Design Team, for expediting the processing and approval of shop drawings, product data, samples, and other submittals for each contract. Receive and transmit all submittals from the construction Contractor to the Design Team for review and approval. Maintain submittal and shop drawing logs.
- 6.27 Record the progress of work at the Project. When present, prepare daily reports for the Project containing a record of weather, construction Contractor(s) present and their number of workers, work accomplished, problems encountered, and other relevant data.
- 6.28 Prepare and distribute monthly project status reports for the Project including updates on project activities, progress of work, outstanding issues, potential problems, schedule, and status of RFIs, change orders, and submittals.
- 6.29 Coordinate, assist, and support Architect during construction administration phase as required.
- 6.30 CM shall maintain records of principal building layout lines, elevations of the bottom of footings, floor levels, and key site elevations as provided by the construction Contractor. At the completion of the Project, deliver all such records to District. Construction Contractor and design professional(s) share responsibility to prepare Record Drawings and As-Built Drawings.
- 6.31 Coordinate the move into the Projects.
- 6.32 Work with District team to develop lists of incomplete or unsatisfactory work ("punch lists").
- 6.33 Fully document and prepare deductive change orders for extra services of consultants that are the responsibility of a Contractor or another consultant. Present such a change order for signature by the Contractor or consultant.
- 6.34 Determine final completion and payment. Determine completion dates, final payments, and release of retention. Coordinate procurement and installation of Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment ("FF&E").

#### 7. **PROJECT COMPLETION**

- 7.1 The CM shall observe the construction Contractor's check-outs of utilities, operational systems and equipment, and start-up and testing. The CM shall maintain records of start-up and testing as provided by the construction Contractor and shall ensure the District of compliance with applicable provisions of the Contract, that all work has been performed and accepted, and that all systems are complete and operative.
- 7.2 At the punch list phase of the Project or designated portions thereof, CM, in consultation with the Architect, shall ensure the preparation of a list of incomplete or unsatisfactory work or work which does not conform to the requirements of the contract documents ("punch list work") and a schedule for the completion of the punch list work. CM shall provide this list to the construction Contractor. CM shall coordinate construction

Contractor's performance and completion of punch list work. CM shall review, with the Architect and District, the completed punch list work. CM shall ensure that, with input of the Architect, the completed punch list work complies with applicable provisions of the construction Contract.

- 7.3 CM shall determine, with the Architect and District, when the Project or designated portions thereof are complete.
- 7.4 CM shall conduct, with the Architect and District, final inspections of the Project or designated portions thereof. CM shall notify the District of final completion.
- 7.5 CM shall consult with the Architect and District and shall determine when the Project and the construction Contractor's work are finally completed. CM shall assist with the issuance of a Certificate of Final Completion, and shall provide to the District a written recommendation regarding payment to the Contractor.
- 7.6 CM shall coordinate close-out procedures, including personnel training. Advise District staff on systems operations, training and close-out of Project.
- 7.7 CM shall coordinate and expedite Contractor close-out requirements, including guarantees/warranties, certificates, keys, manuals, As-Built Drawings, Record Drawings, specifications, daily logs, and verified reports. Ensure that all other project participants submit necessary close-out documentation.
- 7.8 CM shall coordinate operational safety reviews with District post occupancy and manage corrective work as necessary.
- 7.9 CM shall ensure that all building commissioning requirements have been fulfilled in a timely manner through District commissioning agents.
- 7.10 CM shall obtain occupancy permits (where required), coordinate final testing, documentation, and regulatory inspections. Prepare occupancy plan report.
- 7.11 CM shall prepare final accounting reports.

### 8. <u>FINAL DOCUMENTS</u>

The Construction Manager shall review and monitor all As-Built Drawings, maintenance and operations manuals, and other closeout documents to be sure that all required documents meeting contract requirements are provided, and shall secure and transmit to the District and Program Manager those documents and all required guarantees, keys, manuals, record drawings, and daily logs. The Construction Manager shall also forward all documents and plans to the District upon completion of the project and ensure all such plans and documents are well organized for any appropriate audit or review of the Project.

#### 9. <u>WARRANTY</u>

The Construction Manager shall assist Program Manager as necessary to implement a Warranty Inspection and Warranty Work procedure for the Project that Contractor must follow. The procedure shall include a twelve (12) month call back period and a final warranty inspection eleven (11) months after Project completion to inspect the Project and identify any outstanding warranty work.

### 10. PROJECT CLOSEOUT

To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, the Construction Manager shall assist District, Architect, and Program Manager as necessary to ensure all information and documentation necessary for Project closeout with the DSA is complete and the Project is timely closed out with DSA. This includes but is not limited to reports from independent consultants, inspectors, testing laboratories, and corresponding or required DSA forms.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

#### EXHIBIT "B"

#### **CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES**

The following Extra Services to this Agreement shall be performed by CM if needed and requested by District:

- 1. Providing services required because of significant documented changes in the Project initiated by the District, including but not limited to size, quality, complexity, or the District's schedule.
- 2. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of such work.
- 3. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor, or by major defects or deficiencies in the work of the Contractor, or by failure of performance of the District's consultants.
- 4. Seeking variances or changes to agency guidelines on behalf of the District when so directed by the District.
- 5. Preparing to serve or serving as a witness in connection with any public hearing, dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, other than that necessitated by the negligent acts, errors or omissions of CM or where the CM is a party thereto, except for a Contractor's hearing necessitated by a bid protest or by a Contractor's request to substitute a subcontractor, or by handling of any stop payment notices.
- 6. Performing technical inspection and testing.
- 7. Providing other services not otherwise included in this Agreement and not customarily furnished in accordance with the generally accepted scope of construction management practice.

#### Format and Content of Invoices

CM acknowledges that the District requires CM's invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed. For example, a six hour charge for the entire day is unacceptable and will not be payable. A more detailed explanation describing specific tasks is required.

#### Hourly Rates for Extra Services

1. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement. CM shall bill in quarter-hour increments for all Extra Services.

Job Title	Hourly Rate
Principal in Charge	\$225
Project Director	\$215
Sr. Project Manager	\$195
Project Manager II / Construction Manager	\$180

Constructability Reviewer Manager	\$205
EAS Ops Manager	\$205
A/E Project Manager	\$165
Project Admin-Office	\$90
Sr. Estimator	\$195
Constructability Reviewer	\$165

2. The mark-up on any approved item of Extra Services performed by sub-consultant(s) or subcontractor(s) shall not exceed five percent (5%).

### EXHIBIT "C"

### SCHEDULE OF WORK

See attached.

# Sacramento City Unified School District -Central Kitchen

							202	2								
		J	F	М	А	М	J	J	Α	S	0	Ν	D			
Schedule / Phase		200	160	160	160	200	160	200	160	160	200	160	160	Hours	Hourly Rates	Total \$
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12			
Review documents & Logs			Review Documents													
Facilities Site Assesment			Facilities Site /	Assesment												
Complete issues log					Complete issues											
Coordinate Fixes & Pricing							Coordinate F	ixes & Pricing								
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT S	ERVICES															
Position / Classification	<u>Name</u>															
Regional Executive	Bill Johal													-	\$ 225.00	\$ -
Project Director / Program Director	Jeff Dees		16	16	16	8	8	8	8					80	\$ 215.00	\$ 17,200
Project Director / Program Director	Dan Porter		4	4	4	16	16	16	8					68	\$ 215.00	\$ 14,620
Sr. Project Manager	TBD													-	\$ 195.00	\$ -
Project Manager II / Construction Manager	TBD		40	40	40	80	80	40	40					360	\$ 180.00	\$ 64,800
Field Office Manager/Clerical	TBD		32	24	8	8	8	8	8					96	\$ 90.00	\$ 8,640
Senior Estimator	Jay, Matt, James		20	20										40	\$ 195.00	\$ 7,800
VE/ Constructability Reviewer Manager	Heather Brown		8	16										24	\$ 205.00	\$ 4,920
EAS Ops Manager	Sergio Rodriguez		16	16										32	\$ 205.00	\$ 6,560
EAS Ops Manager	Sean Greenwald		24											24	\$ 205.00	\$ 4,920
A/E Project Manager	Ahmad Elkot		40	40										80	\$ 165.00	\$ 13,200
VE/ Constructability Reviewer	EAS Team		80	80										160	\$ 165.00	\$ 26,400
Scheduler	Rick Stassi													-	\$ 160.00	\$ -
Total (FTEs / Month)		0	280	256	68	112	112	72	64	0	0	0	0	964		\$ 169,060

Note: Timeline is based on preliminary schedules . If the contrators schedule pushes out past this timeline the hours will need to be adjusted.

#### EXHIBIT "D"

#### FEE SCHEDULE

#### Compensation

- 1. The CM's fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of CM's Services incurred in its performance, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred (200) miles of the Project location (travel reimbursements must be approved by District prior to travel), offices, per diem expenses, office supplies, printing, providing, or shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in **Exhibit "A."**
- 2. The amount of compensation shall be the amount set forth in the Agreement, including all billed expenses. No compensation will be paid or due, without advance written approval of the District.

#### Method of Payment of Basic Services

- 1. CM shall submit monthly invoices for the portion of the overall fee reflecting the services performed and costs incurred for each respective month. In no event shall the total payments exceed the CM's fee set forth in Article 7 this Agreement except as authorized under **Exhibit "B."**
- 2. CM shall submit these invoices in duplicate to the District via the District's authorized representative.
- 3. CM shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to his/her sub-consultants.
- 4. Upon receipt and approval of CM's invoices, the District agrees to make payments on all undisputed amounts no later than thirty (30) days from receipt of the invoice.
- 5. The District may withhold or deduct from amounts otherwise due CM hereunder if CM fails to timely and completely perform material obligations to be performed on its part under this Agreement, with the amounts withheld or deducted being released after CM has fully cured such failure of performance, less costs, damages or losses sustained by the District resulting therefrom.

#### EXHIBIT "E"

#### CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION/FINGERPRINTING CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: 0810-428 between the Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and Kitchell/CEM, Inc. ("CM") for construction management services for the Central Kitchen Phase 2 Project ("Contract" or "Project").

The undersigned does hereby certify to the governing board of the District as follows:

That I am a representative of the CM currently under contract with the District; that I am familiar with the facts herein certified; and that I am authorized and qualified to execute this certificate on behalf of CM.

CM certifies that it has taken at least one of the following actions with respect to the Project that are the subject of the Contract (check all that apply):

- Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, CM has installed or will install, prior to commencement of Work, a physical barrier at the Work Site, that will limit contact between CM's employees and District pupils at all times; and/or
- □ Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, CM certifies that all employees will be under the continual supervision of, and monitored by, an employee of the CM who the California Department of Justice ("DOJ") has ascertained, or as described below, will ascertain, has not been convicted of a violent or serious felony. The name and title of the employee who will be supervising CM's and its subcontractors' employees is:

Name:			
Title:			

**NOTE**: If the CM is a sole proprietor, and elects the above option, CM must have the above-named employee's fingerprints prepared and submitted by the District, in accordance with Education Code section 45125.1(h). No work shall commence until such determination by the DOJ has been made.

As an authorized District official, I am familiar with the facts herein certified, and am authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of the District and undertake to prepare and submit CM's fingerprints as if he or she was an employee of the District.

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

District Representative's Name and Title: \_\_\_\_\_

District Representative's Signature:	

☑ The Work on the Contract is either (i) at an unoccupied school site and no employee and/or subcontractor or supplier of any tier of the Contract shall come in contact with the District pupils or (ii) CM's employees or any subcontractor or supplier of any tier of the Contract will have only limited contact, if any, with District pupils and the District will take appropriate steps to protect the safety of any pupils that may come in contact with Consultant's employees, subcontractors or suppliers so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 shall not apply to CM under the Contract.

As an authorized District official, I am familiar with the facts herein certified, and am authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of the District.

By:

Rose Ramos Chief Business Officer

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

- □ The CM, who is not a sole proprietor, has complied with the fingerprinting requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 with respect to all CM's employees and all of its subcontractors' employees who may have contact with District pupils in the course of providing services pursuant to the Contract, and the DOJ has determined that none of those employees has been convicted of a felony, as that term is defined in Education Code section 45122.1. A complete and accurate list of CM's employees and of all of its subcontractors' employees who may come in contact with District pupils during the course and scope of the Contract is attached hereto; and/or
- □ The CM is a sole proprietor and intends to comply with the fingerprinting requirements of Education Code section 45125.1(h) with respect to all CM's employees who may have contact with District pupils in the course of providing services pursuant to the Contract, and hereby agrees to the District's preparation and submission of fingerprints such that the DOJ may determine that none of those employees has been convicted of a felony, as that term is defined in Education Code section 45122.1. No work shall commence until such determination by the DOJ has been made.

As an authorized District official, I am familiar with the facts herein certified, and am authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of the District and undertake to prepare and submit CM's fingerprints as if he or she was an employee of the District.

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

District Representative's Name and Title:

District Representative's Signature: \_\_\_\_\_

CM's responsibility for background clearance extends to all of its employees, subcontractors or suppliers, and employees of subcontractors or suppliers coming into contact with District pupils regardless of whether they are designated as employees or acting as independent contractors of the CM.

### KITCHELL/CEM, INC.

By:

Wendy Cohen President

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

#### EXHIBIT "F" COVID-19 VACCINATION/TESTING CERTIFICATION

#### Construction Manager ("CM"): Kitchell/CEM, Inc.

The California Department of Public Health ("CDPH") requires, pursuant to its August 11, 2021, Order ("Order"), that all public and private schools serving students in transitional kindergarten through grade twelve, unless exempt, are required to verify the vaccine status of all K-12 school workers, effective October 15, 2021. Further, pursuant to the Order, all such schools are required to verify that all workers are either fully vaccinated or undergo weekly diagnostic testing.

On October 12, 2021, the Board of Education of the Sacramento City Unified School District ("SCUSD") approved Resolution No. 3233: Mandatory COVID-19 Vaccination for Eligible, Non-Exempt Students and Staff, providing that as of January 31, 2022, "all non-exempt SCUSD staff (including SCUSD partners, contractors, and other individuals who work directly with students and SCUSD staff on SCUSD facilities" must be fully vaccinated prior to performing services at District facilities.

In light of these requirements, CM certifies that personnel providing services at District's Project site(s):

Have all been fully vaccinated in accordance with the District's Policy.

Have not all been fully vaccinated, but those who are unvaccinated or not fully vaccinated have filed a valid exemption from vaccination with CM and will undergo weekly diagnostic testing in accordance with the District's Policy.

CM understands that the District's Project site will need to comply with the District's COVID-19 requirements for fully vaccinated personnel or unvaccinated personnel. CM will comply with District policy, and all applicable state and local laws for vaccinated and unvaccinated personnel.

#### **CERTIFICATION**

I, <u>Wendy Cohen</u>, certify that I am CM's <u>President</u> and that I have made a diligent effort to ascertain the facts with regard to the representations made herein.

#### KITCHELL/CEM, INC.

By:

Wendy Cohen President

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

END OF DOCUMENT



## Contract Schedule C Enhanced Consulting Support Services

This agreement is made between **CompuClaim**, Inc. and the Sacramento City Unified School District, hereinafter called the **SCUSD**, this January 01, 2022 as an addendum to our existing contract dated July 1, 2021.

Enhanced Consulting Support Services will provide Sacramento City Unified School District additional support and oversight to ensure the district has a support staff person working directly with the Medicaid Coordinator/Director of Special Education to oversee their Medicaid program.

Sacramento City Unified School District has the potential increase their reimbursement revenue annually. To reach this potential the district requires a well-developed plan to document all eligible services and optimize all opportunities with complete oversight and management of their program.

Based on limited Administrative district staff to effectively oversee the CA Local Educational Agency-Billing Option Program (hereinafter called LEA BOP), CompuClaim will assign an Account Manager to provide additional consulting support services as outlined below.

### Schedule C: Consulting Support Services

CompuClaim will provide Consulting Support Services to the Sacramento City Unified School District during the 2021-2022 school year that includes the following additional support services:

- Identify and review all eligible services as outlined in the CA Medi-Cal SPA are being provided and logged for all students.
- Performance report review will be conducted on a monthly basis and submitted to the Director of Special Education by the assigned Account Manager. Details of providers and caseloads will be reviewed to ensure all staff are logging services in a timely fashion to facilitate Medicaid reimbursement. As part of the performance review process, the Account Manager will:
  - Communicate directly with in-district providers who are behind in logging activities, and
  - Ensure all allowable providers are established in the service portal by reviewing the districts TSP list
- Work with the Director to update all providers using the service portal and update users.
- Provide assistance with entering parental consents and ensuring district receives monthly status reports on outstanding consent.
  - Parental consent is required for all IEP/IFSP services.

Enhanced Consulting Support Services Between Sacramento City Unified School District and CompuClaim Page 1 of 2



- CompuClaim will provide assistance with entering provider NPI for prescription into the service portal, ensuring district receives monthly status reports, and provide education and guidance as necessary to district administration around the procurement physician ORP NPI;
- CompuClaim will conduct biweekly meetings with the Director of Special Education. In these updates we will discuss any outstanding services that are not being captured according to held services and where SCUSD is with reimbursement for the year. CompuClaim will provide:
  - Detailed forecast of services that is/is not currently being captured to improve reimbursement for the district

### **Consulting Support Services Compensation**

CompuClaim will provide Sacramento City Unified School District with consulting support services during the 2021-2022 SY to provide more intensive oversight and management of their existing School Based Medicaid program.

The *SCUSD agrees* to pay *CompuClaim*, Inc. of consulting support services as outlined in this **Schedule C**, a monthly fee of \$5,000.00 beginning January 1, 2022 thru June 30, 2022. This amount will be invoiced monthly upon signed agreement for consulting support services. The designated CompuClaim staff member will conduct one district meeting at the initial implementation of this contract and then conduct monthly telephone meetings with the Director to keep the district apprised of the progress and action items requiring attention

Enhanced consulting support services will be invoiced on a monthly basis starting with January 2022 invoices. If the district does not wish to extend the consulting services agreement past June 30, 2022, then the district must notify CompuClaim in writing at least 30 days before the addendum end date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their signatures below.

District		CompuClaim, Inc.		
By:	PocuSigned by: KOSL RAMOS CC6FE7C204D7402	By:Malule A.C.		
5	(Signature)	(Signature)		
Name:	Rose Ramos	Name:Michelle Pope		
Title:	СВО	Title: President, COO		
Date:	01/28/2022	Date: 12/17/21		

Enhanced Consulting Support Services Between Sacramento City Unified School District and CompuClaim Page 2 of 2



## Service Agreement for School-Based LEA Medi-Cal Billing Option Program

This Service Agreement is made by and between CompuClaim, Inc. ("CompuClaim"), a Rhode Island corporation with an address of 221 Third Street, Newport, Rhode Island 02840, Sacramento City Unified School District, with an address of 5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824 ("District").

**WHEREAS**, the District provides medically necessary health care related services to eligible students under the LEA Medi-Cal Billing Option Program (hereinafter LEA BOP).

**WHEREAS**, the District is desirous of maximizing its potential to receive Medi-Cal reimbursements to which it may be entitled for providing said health care services;

**WHEREAS**, CompuClaim possesses the expertise and resources to appropriately prepare the claims necessary for LEA BOP;

**NOW, THEREFORE**, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows.

### 1. DIRECT CLAIMING SERVICES

CompuClaim will provide Direct Claiming Services as described on Schedule A (hereinafter "DCS") in order to process the District's claims for LEA BOP reimbursement for direct medical services provided to Medi-Cal-eligible students, based upon data provided to CompuClaim by the District.

### 2. COMPENSATION

- a. The District agrees to pay CompuClaim, Inc. for the DCS at the rate set forth in Schedule C attached hereto.
- b. CompuClaim will invoice the District each July 1st of the fiscal school year. Payment shall be due 30 days from the date of the invoice. Late payments shall be subject to late charge for every calendar month or fraction thereof equal to the lesser of (i) a 1.5 percent or (ii) the highest rate allowed by state law. In addition, the District shall be liable for any legal fees or other costs of collection. To enable electronic billing, District should complete Schedule E attached hereto.



### 3. RESPONSIBILITY FOR DISALLOWANCES - CHANGE

a. District shall defend and indemnify CompuClaim from and against any fines or penalties imposed upon CompuClaim as a result of an award of damages and costs against CompuClaim due to a suit or claim by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services ("CMS"), the Department of Healthcare Services (DHCS), the US Department of Health and Human Services, a final court judgment, or a settlement of any of the foregoing based on a disallowance of claims filed by CompuClaim on District's behalf (a "Claim") if CompuClaim: (a) notifies District in writing of a Claim within ten (10) days after CompuClaim receives notice; (b) gives District sole authority to defend or settle the Claim; (c) gives District all information in CompuClaim's control concerning the Claim; and (d) reasonably cooperates and assists District with defense of the Claim. CompuClaim may participate in the defense of a Claim at its own expense. District shall not settle any Claim in a manner that imputes wrongdoing to or incurs liability for CompuClaim.

b. If District is required to return funds to CMS or to the DHCS due to inaccurate information provided by the District to CompuClaim, any portion of those amounts that were paid to CompuClaim as compensation pursuant to Section 2(a) above will be non-refundable.

c. If the District is required to return funds to CMS and/or the DHCS due to an error directly attributable to CompuClaim, District's sole remedy shall be limited to a return of fees paid to CompuClaim for the claim that contained such error. During the course of this contract, CompuClaim will maintain an active Errors and Omissions Insurance Policy.

### 4. PRIVACY REQUIREMENTS AND CONFIDENTIALITY

a. "Protected Health Information" or "PHI" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health information' in 45 CFR §160.103.

b. Both District and CompuClaim shall collect and/or store student data and PHI and so in order to comply with legal obligations to protect such information agree (i) to enter into a Business Associate Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule D.

c. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, CompuClaim or District may, to the extent permitted by law, use for any purpose PHI that has been aggregated in manner that would make it impossible to identify any individual subject.

d. Each Party agrees that with respect to any Confidential Information (as defined below) that is disclosed by one Party (the "Disclosing Party") to the other Party (the "Receiving Party") in connection with this Agreement, the Receiving Party shall not disclose such Confidential Information to any third party, or use it for any purpose, except to perform its



obligations or enforce its rights hereunder. The Receiving Party shall take all such actions as are reasonably necessary and appropriate to preserve and protect the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information by exercising the same level of care, but no less than a reasonable degree of care that a Party uses to protect its own Confidential Information of a like nature. Each Party shall only permit access to Confidential Information of the other Party to those of its employees or authorized representatives having a need to know and who have signed confidentiality agreements or are otherwise bound by confidentiality obligations at least as restrictive as those contained herein. Each Receiving Party shall be responsible for the compliance of its employees, agents and third-party service providers with the confidentiality obligations set forth herein, and shall be liable for any breach thereof.

e. "Confidential Information" means all information concerning a Party or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates that is not generally known to the public, which information is marked confidential or proprietary, or which under the circumstances ought reasonably to be treated as confidential or proprietary. Confidential Information shall include, but not be limited to, the terms of this Agreement (but not the fact of the Agreement's existence), technology, business plans, techniques, methodologies, pricing, marketing and sales strategies, client information, and other non-public materials and information regarding the other Party's business operations and the technology and know-how related to the Service. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) is, as of the time of disclosure by a Party, or thereafter becomes, part of the public domain through a source other than the Receiving Party receiving such information; (ii) was lawfully in the possession of the Receiving Party as of the time of disclosure, as evidenced by its written records; (iii) is independently developed by the Receiving Party without reference to the Confidential Information, as evidenced by its written records; or (iv) is subsequently obtained from a third party not subject to an obligation of confidentiality with respect to the information disclosed. In the event the Receiving Party is required by law or legal process to disclose any Confidential Information, the Receiving Party shall, to the extent permitted by law, provide prompt notice of such to the Disclosing Party so that legal protection for the Confidential Information may be sought. In the event that a protective order or other remedy is not obtained, each party will furnish only that portion of the Confidential Information that is legally required. Upon termination of this Agreement, each Party will promptly either return or destroy all tangible Confidential Information as requested by the other Party, retaining only such information as is necessary for recordkeeping in the ordinary course of business.

### 5. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNITY

a. CompuClaim shall, at its expense, defend any suit or claim brought against District and shall indemnify District against an award of damages and costs against District by a final court judgment or in settlement of such suit or claim based on (i) non-compliance with any applicable law or regulation by CompuClaim, its employees, officers, agents or



representatives, or (ii) the allegation that District's use of DCS infringes a US patent or copyright (a "District Claim"), if District: (a) notifies CompuClaim in writing of the District Claim within ten (10) days after District receives notice; (b) gives CompuClaim sole authority to defend or settle the Claim; (c) gives CompuClaim all information in District's control concerning the District Claim; and (d) reasonably cooperates and assists CompuClaim with defense of the District Claim. District may participate in the defense of a District Claim at its own expense. CompuClaim shall not settle any Claim in a manner that imputes wrongdoing to or incurs liability for District.

b. If DCS becomes or in CompuClaim' opinion is likely to become the subject of a suit or claim of infringement of a Patent or Copyright, CompuClaim shall at its option and expense (a) obtain the right for District to use the Service; (b) replace or modify DCS so that it becomes non-infringing; or (c) terminate the License for the Service. If CompuClaim terminates the License for the under this Section 5(b), (i) District shall cease to use the Service; and (ii) as District's sole and exclusive remedy against CompuClaim (other than the indemnification by CompuClaim under Section 5(a) CompuClaim shall refund any prepaid fees paid for the infringing DCS.

c. SECTION 5 STATES COMPUCLAIM'S ENTIRE LIABILITY AND DISTRICT'S SOLE REMEDY REGARDING INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT.

### 6. TERM AND TERMINATION

a. The term of this Agreement shall begin upon the July 1, 2021 and end June 30, 2022. Additionally, this Agreement may be extended in (1) month increments, to ensure continued operations during a period of transition with a signed and approved contract addendum.

b. CompuClaim may terminate this Agreement if CompuClaim is in compliance with this Agreement and either (a) District fails to pay CompuClaim any amounts when due or, (b) District is in material default of any other provision of this Agreement and such default has not been cured within thirty (30) days after CompuClaim gives District written notice describing the default. Upon termination in accordance with this Section 6, CompuClaim may:

i. Declare all amounts owed to CompuClaim by District for the entire then-current term to be immediately due and payable;

ii. Terminate access to DCS through CompuClaim Service Portal and Claims Management

iii. Cease performance of all of CompuClaim' obligations under this Agreement without liability to District.



c. District may terminate this Agreement if District is in compliance with this Agreement and CompuClaim is in material default of any provision of this Agreement and such default has not been cured within thirty (30) days after District gives CompuClaim written notice describing the default. Upon such termination:

i. District shall pay CompuClaim' outstanding invoices that do not pertain to CompuClaim's default, but District shall have no further payment obligations to CompuClaim under this Agreement; and

ii. CompuClaim shall return all data or other property given by District to CompuClaim for it to perform DCS.

d. Either party may terminate this Agreement by written notice if the other party becomes insolvent or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or files a petition in bankruptcy or if a receiver or similar officer is appointed to take charge of all or a material part of such other party's assets.

e. Upon termination of this Agreement by CompuClaim or District, Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 11, and 15 of this Agreement shall survive.

### 7. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

a. CompuClaim shall not be liable for any expense or damage arising out of any erasure, damage or destruction of files, data or programs. District shall be responsible for making backup copies of data.

b. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, INDIRECT, THIRD PARTY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOST PROFITS. NEITHER PARTY SHALL SEEK, OR OTHERWISE APPLY FOR, ANY PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES.

c. Except only for (a) CompuClaim's indemnification obligations hereunder or (b) bodily injury or damage to tangible property (not data), CompuClaim's maximum aggregate liability for damages to District or those claiming through District shall be limited to actual direct damages in an amount not to exceed the fees paid by District to CompuClaim over the 12 (twelve) months prior to the incident causes such damages.

d. DISTRICT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY IN THIS SECTION 7 ARE REASONABLE. THE REMEDIES PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE EXCLUSIVE. EXCEPT ONLY FOR ACTIONS BY COMPUCLAIM



# TO PROTECT INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS, NEITHER PARTY SHALL SEEK, OR OTHERWISE APPLY FOR, ANY EQUITABLE REMEDIES.

### 8. ASSIGNMENT

District may not assign this Agreement or any of its respective rights or obligations under this Agreement unless approved by CompuClaim, in writing, prior to such assignment, such approval to not be unreasonably withheld.

### 9. WAIVER

No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived and no breach shall be deemed excused, unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the Party claimed to have waived.

### 10. EXCUSABLE DELAY

Neither CompuClaim nor District shall be deemed to be in default of any provision of this Agreement or for any failure in performance, resulting from acts or events beyond the reasonable control of CompuClaim or District, as the case may be. For purposes of this Agreement, such acts shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God, civil or military authority, civil disturbance, war, strikes, fires, other catastrophes, or other such major events beyond CompuClaim' or District's reasonable control. This Section 10 shall not delay or excuse District's payment obligations.

### 11. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

This Agreement is governed by and construed in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of California (without regard to conflicts of laws principles). Except only for disputes for which injunctive relief is sought to prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure of DCS, any disputes between District and CompuClaim (which are not otherwise resolved by the parties) shall be instituted only in a federal or state courts serving Sacramento County, California and the parties shall submit to personal jurisdiction of these courts in any such legal action. CompuClaim and District each waive their right to a trial by jury for any disputes between the parties.

### 12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

CompuClaim is an independent contractor, and its personnel shall not be considered employees or agents of District.



### **13. SEVERANCE AND INTERPRETATION**

If any provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed to be deleted or narrowly construed to such extent as is necessary to make it enforceable and this Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect. If an ambiguity or question of intent arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring either Party by virtue of authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

### 14. TIME LIMITATION

Except for actions for non-payment or for breach of CompuClaim' or its third parties' intellectual property rights, no action arising out of or relating to this Agreement may be brought later than one (1) year after the cause of action became known to the injured party.

### 15. NOTICES

All notices given by either party to the other party under this Agreement shall be in writing and personally delivered or sent by guaranteed overnight courier or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party's President at its address set forth above or such other person or address as a party may indicate in writing from time to time.

### **16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT**

This Agreement, including all Schedules attached hereto, constitute the entire agreement between CompuClaim and District with respect to DCS and other subject matter of this Agreement, and may only be modified by a written amendment or addendum signed by both CompuClaim and District. No employee, agent, or other representative of either CompuClaim or District has authority to bind the other with regard to any statement, representation, warranty, or other expression unless it is specifically included within the express terms of this Agreement or a written addendum signed by both CompuClaim and District. All future purchase orders, prior agreements, representations, statements, proposals, negotiations, understandings, and undertakings with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement are superseded by this Agreement.



#### **DURATION** 17.

This contract is in effect July 1, 2021 thru June 30, 2022.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their signatures below.

Sacramento City Unified School District

DocuSigned by: DAN SAMHER -4C99B7D65C74472. By:

(Signature)

CompuClaim, Inc.

By: <u>Mulle A.C.</u> (Signature)

Name: Michelle Pope

Title: President, COO

Date: 8/5/21

Name: Dan Sanchez

Title: <u>Purchasing Manager</u>

06/28/2021 Date:



### SCHEDULE A

### **DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES**

These are the processing steps CompuClaim will perform for the DCS package:

- a. DCS.1 CompuClaim will provide the District with a state specific claims information management system for the use of the District in providing data necessary for CompuClaim to formulate the District's claims.
- b. DCS.2 CompuClaim will return to the District any and all logs and/or claims that it deems have insufficient information to formulate a claim and/or are otherwise noncompliant with applicable law regarding appropriate LEA BOP. CompuClaim will provide the District with direction on how to bring such logs and/or claims into compliance.
- c. DCS.3 CompuClaim will provide timely electronic claims processing for the District's claims. All payments on said claims will be remitted directly to the District by the Medi-Cal agency, the Department of Healthcare Services (DHCS).
- d. DCS.4 CompuClaim will provide quarterly Management Reports to the District.
- e. DCS.5 CompuClaim will provide training for all District- employed and contracted providers of Medi-Cal-eligible services at the time of onboarding and as needed during the contract term regarding federal and state law pertaining to appropriate LEA BOP. Training will be for no more than 50 people at once
- f. DCS.6 CompuClaim will provide Administrative training at the time of initial contract with the district. Subsequent Administrative Trainings may result in additional fees.
- g. DCS.7 CompuClaim will work with the District to provide education and assistance in processes associated with the Random Moment Time Study (RMTS).
- h. DCS.8 CompuClaim will work with the District to provide education and general assistance in the processes associated with the annual LEA BOP Cost Reporting process.



### SCHEDULE B

### DESCRIPTION OF SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT DCS SERVICES

- i. DCS.9 District will maintain current provider enrollment with the Department of Healthcare Services;
- j. DCS.10 District will ensure the NPI (National Provider Identification Number) is updated to reflect current managing partner information for the district;
- k. DCS.11 District will ensure they are using licensed providers as required under the program and that information pertaining to licensure is available when necessary;
- 1. DCS.12 District will have a minimum of 1 person designated as the LEA BOP Coordinator for the district, and they will follow CompuClaim administrative guidelines;
- m. DCS.13 District will identify a primary Medi-Cal contact for CompuClaim for high level communication;
- n. DCS.14 District will communicate changes in district Administration to CompuClaim in a timely manner;
- o. DCS.15 District will ensure they are complying with all areas of participation in the LEA BOP, including active participation in:
  - i. Collection of outstanding Parental Consent;
  - ii. Obtaining appropriate prescription, referrals, and orders for reimbursable services.
  - iii. Compliance with State and Federal Regulations, statutes, and documentation retention
  - iv. Requirements applicable to the LEA BOP;
  - v. Active participation and compliance in the School Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (SMAA) program through Local Education Consortium (LEC) or Local Governmental Agency (LGA)
  - vi. Active participation and compliance in the Random Moment Time Study (RMTS) process;
  - vii. Timely submission of LEA BOP claim information (both electronic and paper) within 30 days from date of service provision;
  - viii. Maintain HIPAA compliance when communicating with CompuClaim staff (email, Basecamp, etc.);



ix. Complete required program reporting in a timely manner by the schedules/deadlines provided by CompuClaim.



### SCHEDULE C California Pricing Rate

The District agrees to pay CompuClaim, Inc. for services described in Schedule A at a rate of \$72,500.00 annually on July 1st.



### **SCHEDULE D**

### **BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT**

CompuClaim, Inc. (Hereinafter referred to as "CompuClaim") 221 Third Street Newport, RI 02840

Sacramento City Unified School District (Hereinafter referred to as "District") 5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824

This Business Associate Agreement is hereby entered into by and between CompuClaim and Customer, as of the date executed by Customer and recorded on the signature page below ("Effective Date").

This Business Associate Agreement ("BAA") supplements and amends the Service Agreement for School-Based Medi-Cal Billing, entered into by and between CompuClaim and Customer, dated July 1, 2021, (hereinafter "Services Agreement") under which CompuClaim is providing certain Medi-Cal billing services ("Services") for Customer. This BAA shall be incorporated into the Services Agreement, as if it set forth in its entirety therein, and except to the extent modified in this BAA, all terms and conditions set forth in the Services Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and govern the Services provided by CompuClaim to Customer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a conflict between the terms of this BAA and the Services Agreement, solely as it relates to the parties' obligations hereunder, the terms and conditions of this BAA shall prevail.

CompuClaim and Customer are entering into this BAA in order for both parties to meet their respective obligations as they become effective and binding upon the parties under the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification Rules along with any implementing regulations including those implemented as part of the Omnibus Rule (collectively referred to as the "HIPAA Rules"), under which Customer is a "Covered Entity" or "Business Associate" and CompuClaim is a "Business Associate" of Customer. For purposes of this Agreement, any references, hereinafter, to Business Associate shall be deemed references to CompuClaim.



Definitions:

# 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this BAA shall have the same meaning as ascribed to those terms in HIPAA Rules.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as set forth in 45 CFR §164.402.

b. "Business Associate" shall mean the Business Associate entity identified above to the extent it receives, maintains, or transmits Protected Health Information in delivering Services to Customer.

c. "HIPAA" shall mean the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.

d. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at 45 CFR §160 and §164, Subparts A and E.

e. "Protected Health Information" or "PHI" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health information' in 45 CFR §160.103 and shall be limited to the PHI created by Business Associate on behalf of Customer or received from or on behalf of Customer pursuant to the Services Agreement.

f. "Security Incident" shall have the same meaning as set forth in 45 CFR §164.304.

g. "Security Rule" shall mean the Standards for Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information at 45 CFR § 164, Subparts A and C.

h. "HITECH Act" shall mean the applicable provisions of the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, as incorporated in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, and including any implementing regulations.

### 2. Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate agrees to not Use or further Disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by this BAA or as required by law.

b. Business Associate agrees to use appropriate safeguards designed to prevent Uses or Disclosures of the PHI other than as provided for by this BAA or the Services Agreement.

c. Business Associate agrees to implement and maintain procedures that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of electronic PHI, and consistent with and as required of business associates by the HIPAA Rules. However, it



shall be the responsibility of Customer and not Business Associate to comply with requirements under 45 CFR §164.312 to implement encryption or decryption mechanisms for electronic PHI maintained on physical media (e.g. tapes) stored by Business Associate.

d. Business Associate agrees to promptly report to Customer any Security Incident, Breach, or other Use or Disclosure of PHI of which it becomes aware that is not permitted or required by this BAA or the Services Agreement. In the event of a Breach, such notification shall be made in accordance with and as required of a business associate by the HIPAA Rules, including without limitation pursuant to 45 CFR 164.410. Business Associate will provide reasonable assistance and cooperation in the investigation of any such Breach and shall document the specific PHI which have been compromised, the identity of any unauthorized third party who may have accessed or received the PHI, if known, and any actions that have been taken by Business Associate to mitigate the effects of such Breach.

e. Business Associate agrees to require any agent or subcontractor, to whom it delivers PHI for the purposes of assisting in providing services pursuant to the Services Agreement, to enter into a written agreement requiring such agent or subcontractor to provide privacy and security protections to such PHI at least as stringent as those required of Business Associate through this BAA.

f. If Business Associate has custody of PHI in a Designated Record Set with respect to Individuals, and if Customer so requests, Business Associate agrees to provide access to such PHI to Customer by retrieving such PHI in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Services Agreement, so the Customer may respond to an Individual in order to meet the requirements of 45 CFR §164.524.

g. Business Associate agrees that if an amendment to PHI in a Designated Record Set is required, if Business Associate has custody of PHI in a Designated Record Set with respect to Individuals, and if Customer instructs Business Associate to retrieve such PHI in accordance with the Services Agreement, Business Associate shall perform such service so that Customer may make any amendment to such PHI as may be required by either Customer or an Individual pursuant to 45 CFR §164.526.

h. Business Associate agrees to document and make available to Customer the information required to provide an accounting of Disclosures of PHI, provided that Customer has provided Business Associate with information sufficient to enable Business Associate to know which records or data received from or on behalf of Customer by Business Associate contain PHI. The documentation of Disclosures shall contain such information as would be required for Customer to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of Disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR §164.528 or other provisions of the HIPAA Rules.



i. Unless otherwise expressly agreed in the Services Agreement, Business Associate shall promptly notify Customer of any requests by Individuals for access to or knowledge or correction of PHI, without responding to such requests, and Customer shall be responsible for receiving and responding to any such Individual requests.

j. To the extent the Business Associate is to carry out one or more of Customer's obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 CFR §164, Business Associate shall comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to Customer in the performance of such obligation(s).

k. Business Associate agrees to make its internal practices, books, and records available to the Secretary of Health and Human Services ("Secretary") for purposes of determining compliance with the HIPAA Rules.

### 3. Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate.

a. Business Associate may only Use or Disclose PHI as necessary to perform Services for, or on behalf of Customer pursuant to the Services Agreement.

b. Business Associate may Use or Disclose PHI as required by law.

c. Business Associate agrees to make reasonable efforts to limit PHI to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the Use, Disclosure, or request.

d. Business Associate may not Use or Disclose PHI in a manner that would violate Subpart E of 45 CFR §164 if done by Customer.

e. Business Associate may Disclose PHI for the proper management and administration of Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate, provided the Disclosures are required by law, or Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is disclosed that the information will remain confidential and used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purposes for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person notifies Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.

### 4. **Obligations of Customer.**

a. Customer shall not request Business Associate to Use or Disclose PHI in any manner that would not be permissible under the HIPAA Rules if done by Customer or Business Associate. Customer shall not direct Business Associate to act in a manner that would not be compliant with the HIPAA Rules.



b. Customer shall notify Business Associate of any limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices of Customer in accordance with 45 CFR §164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of PHI.

c. Customer shall notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by Individual to Use or Disclose PHI, to the extent that such changes may affect Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of PHI.

d. Customer shall notify Business Associate in writing of any restriction to the Use or Disclosure of PHI that Customer has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR §164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of PHI.

e. Customer agrees that it will respond to a Covered Entity's or Individual's request for an accounting of disclosures of electronic health records under 45 CFR 164.528 in accordance with Section 13405(c)(3)(A) of the HITECH Act.

### 5. Term and Termination.

a. Term. The term of this BAA shall commence as of the Effective Date and shall terminate automatically upon the later to occur of (i) the expiration of the Service Agreement, or (ii) when all PHI provided by Customer to Business Associate is destroyed or returned to Customer.

b. Termination for Cause. Upon a party's knowledge of a material breach of the BAA by the other party, the non-breaching party shall provide an opportunity for the breaching party to cure the breach. If the breaching party does not cure the breach within thirty (30) days, following the breaching party's receipt of a written notice from the non-breaching party setting forth the details of such material breach, then the non-breaching party shall have the right to terminate this BAA and the Services Agreement according to the terms of the Services Agreement, or, if termination is not feasible, shall report the problem to the Secretary or any other competent authority.

c. Effect of Termination.

i. Except as provided in Section 5.c.ii. below, upon termination of this BAA for any reason, Business Associate shall, if feasible, return or destroy all PHI received from Customer in accordance with the Services Agreement. This provision shall apply to PHI that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Business Associate. Business Associate shall retain no copies of the PHI.

ii. In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the PHI is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide to Customer notification of the



conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon notice to Customer, Business Associate shall extend the protections of this BAA to such PHI and limit further Uses and Disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI pursuant to the terms of the Services Agreement.

### 6. Miscellaneous.

a. Indemnification. Business Associate agrees to indemnify Customer from and against any fines or penalties imposed upon Customer as a result of any enforcement proceeding commenced by the Secretary or any civil action brought by a state Attorney General against Customer, which proceeding or action results directly and solely from any act or omission by Business Associate which is both a violation of the HIPAA Rules and a material breach of this BAA ("Claim"). Business Associate shall not be obligated to indemnify Customer for any portion of such fines or penalties resulting from (i) Customer's violation of the HIPAA Rules or this BAA, (ii) the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Customer, or (iii) Claims which otherwise could have been avoided or mitigated through the commercially reasonable efforts of the Customer. The foregoing indemnity obligation is expressly conditional on Customer granting Business Associate the right at Business Associate's option and expense, and with counsel of its own selection, to control or participate in the defense of any such Claim, provided however, that to the extent any such Claim is part of a larger proceeding or action, Business Associate's right to control or participate shall be limited to the Claim, and not to the larger proceeding or action. In the event that Business Associate exercises its option to control the defense, then (i) Business Associate shall not settle any claim requiring any admission of fault on the part of the Customer without its prior written consent, (ii) the Customer shall have the right to participate, at its own expense, in the claim or suit and (iii) the Customer shall cooperate with the Indemnifying Party as may be reasonably requested. The foregoing states Customer's sole and exclusive remedy and CompuClaim's sole liability for any loss, damage, expense or liability of Customer for any Claims in connection with this BAA.

b. Injunctive Relief. Business Associate acknowledges that any unauthorized Use or Disclosure of PHI by Business Associate may cause irreparable harm to Customer for which Customer shall be entitled, if it so elects, to seek injunctive or other equitable relief.

c. Regulatory References. A reference in this BAA to a section of the HIPAA Rules shall mean that section of HIPAA, the Privacy Rule, the Security Rule, the HITECH ACT, or the final Omnibus Rules as amended and in effect, and for which compliance is required.

d. Amendment. The parties agree to negotiate in good faith any amendment to this BAA that may be required from time to time as is necessary for the Customer or Business Associate to comply with the requirements of the HIPAA Rules. If the parties cannot reach mutual agreement on the terms of any such amendment within sixty (60) days following the



date of receipt of any such written request made by Customer to Business Associate, then either party shall have the right to terminate this BAA and the Services Agreement upon providing not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to the other party.

e. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Section 5(c) above shall survive the termination of this BAA.

f. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express or implied in this BAA is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than Customer, Business Associate and their respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever.

g. Independent Contractor. Business Associate, including its directors, officers, employees and agents, is an independent contractor and not an agent (as defined under Federal common law of agency) of Customer or a member of its workforce. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Customer shall have no right to control, direct, or otherwise influence Business Associate's conduct in the course of performing the Services, other than through the enforcement of this BAA or the Services Agreement, or the mutual amendment of same.

h. Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This BAA may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. Signatures may be made and delivered electronically and shall have the same force and effect as original signatures.

i. Precedence; Entire Agreement. Any ambiguity in this BAA shall be resolved to permit the parties to comply with the HIPAA Rules. This BAA constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede all previous communications, representations, agreements and understandings relating to the HIPAA Rules, including any and all prior business associate agreements between the parties.

Sacramento City Unified School District	CompuClaim, Inc.
By: (Signature)	By:
Name: <u>Dan Sanchez</u>	Name: Michelle Pope
Title:Purchasing Manager	Title: President, COO
Date: 06/28/2021	Date:8/5/21



### SCHEDULE E

### Please complete contact information for submission of invoices

Electronic Invoicing Information Sheet					
FOR ELECT	RONIC INVOICING				
Name: Katrina Kafouros-Parker					
School District: Sacramento City Unified Sc	hool District				
<b>Phone:</b> 916-643-9171					
Email: SPED-invoices@scusd.edu					
Address: 5735 47th Avenue					
City: Sacramento	State: CA	<b>Zip Code:</b> 95824			
Special Instructions/PO# SA22-00014					



## Contract Schedule C Enhanced Consulting Support Services

This agreement is made between **CompuClaim**, Inc. and the Sacramento City Unified School District, hereinafter called the **SCUSD**, this September\_, 2021 as an addendum to our existing contract dated July 1, 2020.

Enhanced Consulting Support Services will provide Sacramento City Unified School District additional support and oversight to ensure the district has a support staff person working directly with the Medicaid Coordinator/Director of Special Education to oversee their Medicaid program.

Sacramento City Unified School District has the potential increase their reimbursement revenue annually. To reach this potential the district requires a well-developed plan to document all eligible services and optimize all opportunities with complete oversight and management of their program.

Based on limited Administrative district staff to effectively oversee the CA Local Educational Agency-Billing Option Program (hereinafter called LEA BOP), CompuClaim will assign an Account Manager to provide additional consulting support services as outlined below.

### Schedule C: Consulting Support Services

CompuClaim will provide Consulting Support Services to the Sacramento City Unified School District during the 2021-2022 school year that includes the following additional support services:

- Identify and review all eligible services as outlined in the CA Medi-Cal SPA are being provided and logged for all students.
- Performance report review will be conducted on a monthly basis and submitted to the Director of Special Education by the assigned Account Manager. Details of providers and caseloads will be reviewed to ensure all staff are logging services in a timely fashion to facilitate Medicaid reimbursement. As part of the performance review process, the Account Manager will:
  - Communicate directly with in-district providers who are behind in logging activities, and
  - Ensure all allowable providers are established in the service portal by reviewing the districts TSP list
- Work with the Director to update all providers using the service portal and update users.
- Provide assistance with entering parental consents and ensuring district receives monthly status reports on outstanding consent.
  - Parental consent is required for all IEP/IFSP services.

Enhanced Consulting Support Services Between Sacramento City Unified School District and CompuClaim Page 1 of 2



- CompuClaim will provide assistance with entering provider NPI for prescription into the service portal, ensuring district receives monthly status reports, and provide education and guidance as necessary to district administration around the procurement physician ORP NPI;
- CompuClaim will conduct biweekly meetings with the Director of Special Education. In these updates we will discuss any outstanding services that are not being captured according to held services and where SCUSD is with reimbursement for the year. CompuClaim will provide:
  - Detailed forecast of services that is/is not currently being captured to improve reimbursement for the district

### **Consulting Support Services Compensation**

CompuClaim will provide Sacramento City Unified School District with consulting support services during the 2021-2022 SY to provide more intensive oversight and management of their existing School Based Medicaid program.

The *SCUSD agrees* to pay *CompuClaim*, Inc. of consulting support services as outlined in this **Schedule C**, a monthly fee of \$5,000.00 beginning October 1, 2021 thru December 30, 2021. This amount will be invoiced monthly upon signed agreement for consulting support services. The designated CompuClaim staff member will conduct one district meeting at the initial implementation of this contract and then conduct monthly telephone meetings with the Director to keep the district apprised of the progress and action items requiring attention

Enhanced consulting support services will be invoiced on a monthly basis starting with May 2021 invoices. If the district does not wish to extend the consulting services agreement past December 30, 2021, then the district must notify CompuClaim in writing at least 30 days before the addendum end date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their signatures below.

District		CompuClaim, Inc.			
	DocuSigned by:				
By:	Kose Ramos cc6FE7C204D7402	By: Malele A.C.			
-	(Signature)	(Signature)			
Name:	Rose Ramos	Name: Michelle Pope			
Title:	СВО	Title: President, COO			
Date:	09/08/2021	Date: 9/13/21			

Enhanced Consulting Support Services Between Sacramento City Unified School District and CompuClaim Page 2 of 2



### Business Services Contracts Office

5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824 (916) 643-2464

Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer

### Letter of Agreement

Pursuant to the terms of Sacramento City Unified School District's RFP #22-03 for CABLING INFRASTRUCTURE, (Name of Company) <u>K S Telecom Inc.</u>'s response to RFP #22-03, dated (mm/dd/yyyy) <u>01/14/2022</u>, (Name of Company) <u>K S Telecom Inc.</u> will provide the equipment and services per RFP #22-03 effective the date of issuance of Sacramento City Unified School District Purchase Order(s).

(Name of Company) <u>K S Telecom Inc.</u> and Sacramento City Unified School District acknowledge that this agreement is for E-Rate eligible products and services, which are contingent on funding by the School and Libraries Division of USAC/FCC and the Sacramento City Unified School District for E-Rate 2022 (Year 25), and Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education approval.

The Sacramento City Unified School District (District) reserves the right to terminate the referenced Request for Proposal (RFP) and all documents associated with the Request for Proposal, including but not limited to this Letter of Agreement, in its sole discretion at any time, with or without cause, upon written notice to the other party. In the event of termination, notice shall be deemed served on the date of mailing and shall be effective immediately. The Sacramento City Unified School District shall not be responsible for any costs to Bidder prior to termination.

Sacramento City Unified School District

Authorized Representative Signature

Date

Rose Ramos

Name

(Name of Company)

Authorized Representative Signature

01/14/2022

Date

Eric Vander Linden

Name

### Chief Business Officer

Title

5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824

Address

Rose-f-ramos@scusd.edu

Email

916-643-9055

Phone

V.P. of Operations

Title

PO Box 330 Penryn, CA 95663

Address

evl@KSTelecomInc.com

Email

916-652-4735

Phone



P O Box 330 Penryn, CA 95663-0330 916 652-4735 x 210 916 652-4296 Fax www.KSTelecomInc.com jpb@KSTelecomInc.com

January 13, 2022

## **Sacramento City Unified School District**

### RFP 22-03 Cabling Infrastructure for E-Rate Year 25

### Addendum 1 Acknowledged

**K S Telecom, Inc. (KST)** is providing a quote for the exterior WAP cabling, fiber optic cabling, connectivity and certification for the 16 sites listed in the RFP Addendum #1 documentation for Sacramento City Unified School District - Cabling Infrastructure for E-Rate Year 25 project. **KST** is quoting a Ortronics connectivity and Belden cabling solution.

### Exterior WAP Copper Cabling

**KST** will provide, install, and terminate a total of **(122)** CAT 6A riser-rated copper cables (2 per WAP) from the existing MDF/IDF locations to the **(61)** new exterior WAP locations as described in the RFP Addendum #1 documentation. The cables will terminate onto CAT 6A jacks within new or existing 24-port modular patch panels at the existing MDF/IDF locations and onto CAT 6A modular ends at the exterior WAP locations. **KST** is utilizing the 200ft cable length estimate provided by the district to provide a total of **(24,400ft)** of CAT 6A copper cabling. Cable and jack colors are to be matched with the *Data Cable Listing* document provided by the district.

No plenum-rated or outside plant rated areas were addressed during the site walk, therefore, all cabling quoted is riser-rated and all locations are deemed to be at the same location as the IDF. If any plenum-rated or outside plant rated cabling exists, that can be accommodated with the contingency.

### Fiber Optic Cabling

**KST** will provide, install, and terminate **(45,263ft)** of 12-strand single-mode indoor/outdoor plenum-rated fiber optic cabling from the existing MDF to each existing IDF location per the as-builts and RFP documentation provided by the district. The fiber optic cabling will be terminated onto adapter panels using connectorized pigtails within a fiber enclosure at the MDF/IDF locations for each campus. Fiber optic cabling will route within existing pathway as no pathways were outlined during the site walk. All connected fiber optic strands will be fusion spliced.

### Pathway (J-Hooks)

**KST** will install up to 25ft of J-Hook pathway per exterior WAP location as no pathways were disclosed during the site walk. If additional J-Hook pathways or any conduit, surface mount raceway, sleeves, etc. are required, they will be dealt within the contingency. If this amount exceeds the contingency, then the remainder will be billed towards the district.

### Testing, ID & Documentation

All newly installed CAT 6A copper cables, by **KST**, will be tested to CAT 6A standards with a Fluke level IV tester. All newly installed fiber optic cables by **KST**, will be tier 1 and Tier 2 (PMLS, 2 wave lengths, bi-directional & OTDR traced) tested to meet or exceed loss limits. Electronic as-built drawings can be provided to the customer upon completion of the project, provided electronic site drawings in CADD or Visio are made available to **KST**. Hand-marked as-built drawings may be provided otherwise. To be more environmentally friendly, summary soft copies of the test results will be provided to the customer, at the project's conclusion.

**KST** will label all newly installed cables, faceplates, LIUs, surface mount boxes, patch panels and rack systems to site standards. All cables will be labeled, using mechanically printed labels.

### The base price for this project is: \$359,800.00

\*This price includes materials, labor, shipping, and tax.

\*\*This project is quoted using prevailing wage rates.

\*\*\*This quote is valid through 09/30/2023.

\*\*\*\*Project is quoted at normal work hours M-F, excluding holidays, 7:00am to 5:00pm. If project requires work outside of the normal work hours additional charges may apply.

\*\*\*\*\*Vendors have indicated throughout the quoting process, that there is a minimum of 10-12 week lead time for manufacturing the cabling once ordered. Once the PO is received, KST will order the cabling.

### Add Option 1 - Copper/Fiber Optic Patch Cords: \$9,200.00

\*This price includes materials, shipping, and tax. No labor is included in this option.

- (184) Single-mode LC to LC 2-meter fiber optic patch cords
- (122) CAT 6A 3ft copper patch cords

### Add Option 2 – Replacement of existing MDF Fiber LIUs: \$13,000.00

\*This price includes materials, labor, shipping, and tax for the 13 sites with new fiber cabling.

### Add optional 10% contingency is: \$38,200.00

\*KST will only bill for what is necessary and approved by the district. \*\*Any remaining contingency will not be billed.

### This Project Excludes:

- 1. Providing, installing, programming, etc. any active components.
- 2. Any electrical work.
- 3. Pathways including conduit, boxes, fire rated pathways, fire blocking, sleeves, strings, surface mount raceway, etc. (Per the above, **KST** has provided no new pathways for the

fiber optic system and 25ft of J-Hook pathway per exterior WAP location. Any additional pathway would require contingency or district funds).

- 4. MDF or IDF build outs, including plywood backboards, grounding feeds and busbars.
- 5. Physical cross connections.
- 6. Fire, Intrusion, AV, Clock/bell, assisted listening, etc. cabling or components.
- 7. Asbestos, lead paint, or any other hazardous removal or abatement (No Hazardous materials were addressed during the site walk. Any penetration of these materials would be done under the contingency or by the district).
- 8. Any painting of conduits, boxes, etc.
- 9. Voice feeds, hardware, and terminations.
- 10. Fiber feed counts more than 12 strands per MDF/IDF.
- 11. Cable tray or ladder rack supports.
- 12. Wire Management as new copper cabling per MDF/IDFs is minimal.
- 13. Copper or fiber optic patch cords unless the option for these is taken.
- 14. Overtime, weekends, or holidays
- 15. MDF/IDF Cabinets (Not required per the site walk).
- 16. Training of any kind.
- 17. Demolition of fiber optic cabling.
- 18. COVID related costs, testing, delays, etc.
- 19. Anything other than noted above as this is how we understand the project based off the information that has been provided.

### Warranty Information

**K S TELECOM, Inc.** warrants all materials and craftsmanship, installed, or performed by **KST** to be free from defects for a *period of 2 years from* the date of substantial completion. **KST** shall fix or replace, at its sole discretion, all defective materials and/or craftsmanship, at no charge to the customer, excluding damage because of negligence, abuse, misuse, and/or acts of God. Normal and customary service charges shall apply for the diagnosis of repair or non-warranted defects. Any changes to LAN/WAN configuration or programming after acceptance is the responsibility of the customer.

**KST** has multiple BICSI RCDD's on staff to oversee the project along with BICSI certified technicians and installers to do the on-site installation.

C-7, Contractor License #: 790922 Expires 2-28-23 DIR# 1000000120

### Please call or email if you have questions.

Sincerely,

JP Baysari Project Manager/Estimator **K S Telecom, Inc**. (916) 652-4735 Office ext. 250 (310) 776-2824 Cell jpb@KSTelecomInc.com



### **Business Services**

**Contracts Office** 

5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824

(916) 643-2464

Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer

### Letter of Agreement

(Name of Company) <u>ANS-NET, TMC</u> and Sacramento City Unified School District acknowledge that this agreement is for E-Rate eligible products and services, which are contingent on funding by the School and Libraries Division of USAC/FCC and the Sacramento City Unified School District for E-Rate 2022 (Year 25), and Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education approval.

The Sacramento City Unified School District (District) reserves the right to terminate the referenced Request for Proposal (RFP) and all documents associated with the Request for Proposal, including but not limited to this Letter of Agreement, in its sole discretion at any time, with or without cause, upon written notice to the other party. In the event of termination, notice shall be deemed served on the date of mailing and shall be effective immediately. The Sacramento City Unified School District shall not be responsible for any costs to Bidder prior to termination.

Sacramento City Unified School District

Authorized Representative Signature

Date

Rose Ramos

Name

(Name of Company) AMS. NET, Inc.

Authorized Representative Signature

Date

### **Chief Business Officer**

Title

5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824

Address

Rose-f-ramos@scusd.edu

Email

916-643-9055

Phone

Secretary Title Eve Commerce Way, Livermore, CA Address Inder Tracking Wams. net 94551 Email 925-245-6100 Phone

### Project Cost Summary - SCUSD - E-Rate 25 - Category Two Equipment

### **Project Information**

Sacramento City Unified School District E-Rate 25 - Multiple Sites - Category Two Equipment -95275 Project # 95275 January 10, 2022 Account Manager

Jared Bayless jbayless@ams.net (925) 245-6186

AMS Quote #	Description	Subtotal	Taxes	Total
Q-00058787	E-Rate 25 - Multiple Sites - Category Two Equipment - 95275	\$47,558.55	\$3,789.81	\$51,348.36

### **Project Summary**

Project Total	\$47,558.55
Estimated Total Taxes	\$3,789.81
Grand Total	\$51,348.36

Vendor:AMS.NETAddress:502 Commerce Way, Livermore, CA 94551Phone:925-245-6100SPIN:143005880



#### Customer

#### Sacramento City Unified School District 5735 47TH Ave FI 2 Sacramento, CA 95824-4528 ATTN: Bob Lyons

## **Customer Quotations**

Project Name	Sacramento City Unified School District E-Rate 25 - Multiple Sites - Category Two Equipment - 95275
Project #	95275
Account Mgr.	Jared Bayless
AM Phone	(925) 245-6186
AM Email	jbayless@ams.net
Inside Account Mgr.	Teri Edwards
IAM Phone	(925) 245-6149
IAM Email	tedwards@ams.net

Line	Item Description	Manufacturer	Qty	Unit Price	Extended Price
Que	ote # Q-00058787, E-Rate 25 - Multiple S	ites - Category Ty	wo Equipme	ent - 95275	
1	C9124AXI-B-EDU Cisco Catalyst 9124AX Series - EDU	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$1,110.57	\$43,312.23
2	NETWORK-PNP-LIC Network Plug-n-Play License for zero-touch device deployment	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
3	AIR-AP-NO-BRACKET AP Bracket Not Required	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
4	SW9124AX-CAPWAP-K9 Capwap software for Catalyst 9124AX	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
5	CDNA-E-C9124 Wireless Cisco DNA On-Prem Essentials, 9124Tracking	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
6	DNA-E-3Y-C9124 C9124AX Cisco DNA On-Prem Essential,3Y Term,Trk Lic	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
7	AIR-DNA-EDU-E EDU Aironet CISCO DNA Essentials Term Licenses	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
8	EDU-DNA-E-3Y CISCO DNA Essential Term Licenses for EDU SKUs - 3 Years	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$108.88	\$4,246.32
9	PI-LFAS-AP-T Prime AP Term Licenses	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
10	PI-LFAS-AP-T-3Y PI Dev Lic for Lifecycle & Assurance Term 3Y	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
		Dago 2 of 4			



AMS.NET, Inc. 502 Commerce Way, Livermore, CA 94551 925-245-6100 • 925-245-6150 Fax www.ams.net

11	AIR-DNA-E-T Aironet AP License Term Licenses	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
12	AIR-DNA-E-T-3Y Aironet DNA Essentials 3 Year Term License	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
13	AIR-DNA-NWSTACK-E AIR CISCO DNA Perpetual Network Stack	Cisco Systems Inc.	39.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
14	AMS-FREIGHT-DROPSHIP Freight	None	1.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
				Subtotal:	\$47,558.55
				Estimated Tax:	\$3,789.81

Quote Total: \$51,348.36

### Order Summary

Project Total	\$47,558.55
Estimated Total Taxes	\$3,789.81
Grand Total	\$51,348.36